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Financial Highlights

Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to
announce the following financial highlights:

BHEREMERAR ([ARQF]) MEKBAR]
(G A [AKE ) MASH NIFBRHE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=+—-HLHE

2013 2012 Change
—B-=F% e &
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREETTT
Revenue Wz 3,646,874 3,247,986 12.3%
i |
Gross profit A 606,016 592,202 2.3%
(Loss) Profit before tax A (B8 &mF (120,894) 76,515 (258.0%)
(Loss) Profit attributable to KAEEB AEG
owners of the Company (B8 FE (129,289) 71,662 (280.4%)
Basic (loss) earnings per share, &MEK (F5E) &7
in RMB (AR®T) (0.10) 0.05 (300%)
Revenue Gross profit Profit (Loss) before tax
W= E7 AR (&)
RMB’OOQ RMB’OO_O RMB’OO_O
4,000,000 AR 700,000 ARIETT 90,000 — ARETI
3,646,874
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3,247,986 600,000 P . o
3,000,000 30,000
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400,000
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300,000
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100,000 120000
(120,894)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately RMB129.3 million.

Basic loss per share was RMBO0.10 (the year ended 31
December 2012: earings per share RMBO0.05), the calculation
of such basic loss per share amount is based on the loss
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company, and
the weighted average number of shares of 1,336,353,917
(2012: 1,335,299,269) in issue during the year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company does
not recommend the payment of the final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil). The Company had not
declared and paid any interim dividend or special dividend
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
24 May 2014 to 26 May 2014 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of determining shareholders’ entitement to attend
the annual general meeting (the “AGM”), during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In
order to qualify for attending the AGM, shareholders should
ensure that all transfer documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, are lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar (see below) for registration by no later
than 4:30 p.m. on 23 May 2014.

On or before 30 April 2014:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Address: Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

On or after 1 May 2014

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement
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Words from the Chairman FENEE

On behalf of Leoch International Technology Limited, | am Zl—‘/\%ﬁi’%f%:izﬂﬁ’?x&%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂfDZK%’%@
pleased to present the Group’s annual results report for the  Z2-ZF—=F+_-A=+—HIt+ @A ([EEE
twelve months ended 31 December 2013 (the “Period”) for EHWJ )Z%%ﬁﬁ% BEMBEREAE -
shareholders’ review.

In 2013, we were in a period of transformation, facing an =& BPIEEREAES - I B A IR
unfavorable global economic environment, rising costs, fierce i&ﬁaﬁkﬁ FXZNIE KA K T %ﬁ%mﬁl?j‘l%%lﬁ
market competition and many other challenges. On the %@Z"*Hﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ%&%ﬂ % Bt FIE

one hand, our sales and gross margin were affected by the  EF £ F—HEAEBEESH féuu&m}m

adverse factors previously mentioned. On the other hand, 7] %RES - BIEAHANIFE N AIRE R E R3S - I
the Group had consistently adhered to its strategy of product 38 & K3 R MR THE &2 E%M%ﬂ%ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁ@
technology improvements, and as a result, had vigorously #2557 - RIE - [0 8 HA A PIFEIR 6 5T AN 75 18
invested in our product research and development during the ERL ARMNECEEES %%Mﬁﬁ?ﬁ’] FER
Period, strengthened our brand construction and enhanced — REFEHSHNEEES Bt RPN T —=F
our product quality to shape our long-term competitiveness. S FEIEAARB1203FE T ﬁﬁ%ilﬂ,ﬁﬂﬁz
Meanwhile, during the Period, we had proactively reviewed

and made provisions to improve, as well as to adjust and

optimise the production capacity structure of the Group in

order to better capture those rare opportunities in a few years

6 Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013




Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

ahead. Hence, we recorded a net loss of RMB129.3 million
in 2013, as compared to a net profit of RMB71.7 million over
the same period of last year. In spite of this, | am glad to
report to the shareholders that we have been well prepared
and backed by a good momentum, and we are confident in
continuously to bring long term value for our shareholders.

Market Opportunities and
Challenges

The lead-acid battery industry maintained its rapid growth
in 2013 with continuous expansions in overall market size.
The commercialisation and industrial automation of the
manufacturing industry characterised by the expanding
consumer demands have driven up increasing domestic
demands for high-end devices such as telecommunication
equipment, computers, electronic products and transportation
vehicles. Serving as components required for these high-
end devices, lead-acid batteries also saw a growing
demand. In 2013, the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology granted 4G (TD-LTE) licenses to the three major
telecom operators, whereby opening a feast for booming
4G investment. It is expected that between 2014 and 2016,
in the peak of 4G construction, the demand of domestic
telecom industry for lead-acid batteries will be in line with
such rapid growth.

On the other hand, since the nation-wide consolidation of the
lead-acid battery industry with over one thousand enterprises
being closed down, suspended or reconstructed from 2011,
the production capacity of the entire industry has resumed
swiftly due to the low entry barrier and low investment costs
or the continuous production capacity expansion of the
surviving enterprises, resulting in the situation of excessive
production capacity and oversupply, which in turn has
created fierce price competition and contraction in margins.
These are the challenges the entire industry faces. Currently,
with the environmental protection requirements imposed
on the lead-acid battery industry becoming more and more
stringent, the industry consolidation has entered its final
adjustment transition, which provides a rare opportunity
for the lead-acid battery industry to exercise restructuring,
merger and acquisition, or to optimize its production
lines. Part of the production capacity of the Group had

FENBARBN7AET - BE L NATRK
ARESLIRER  RAZDELFE LEFEL
RAEHFERRRERRENBRREE-

h 351 78 B Pk &

EEMTEE T —=—FRELRERE  B1Bm5
RIERHERA S EREM LRI EE S

HEBONFRKTEEA  PEHBE TER B
FTEMERBTAESIHRENETEGR-

EEMEAELESMBRBENTIMY  HBRINERE
e —E—=FT{EHPM=REFELHENR
4G (TD-LTE) W8R8 MR T4GIRERE B =%
—E T RFR I RAGEBR N S IEH  BA
BIERREANT KA E 5 4G FNIRIE
ﬁ o

S—H B —FRERHEHERCTRE
VAR BAC A ETREEWEN  FENK
Bn  BEEEATENPIRFKANG - SRlgrd
EMERSERER UHETENERD RER
18 AMmERERLER  HARK  MERERT
FHRAIAE TS REBETRERAOSE - Z A0
MBREMITRRREBEL B LB TXBACE
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

undergone upgrades and transformations, to satisfy the new
environmental protection standards before the end of last
year, while gradually resuming its production.

Business Development

During the Period, the production capacity of the Group
has reached approximately 18 million KVAh. The Group
has proactively tapped into other major emerging markets,
and expedited its production capacity constructions for
the distribution overseas to match the demand in oversea
markets. During the Period, the production base of the Group
in Sri Lanka, which mainly targets at the Indian market, has
officially started production and has begun supply in batches.
The joint venture factory in Malaysia had also accelerated
its construction, which, together with the production base
of the Group in Sri Lanka, is expected to supply products at
cheaper costs of logistics and transportation by the second
half of next year. The Group will continue to expand its
production capacity in the coming years, which will therefore
be sufficient in accommodating the anticipated market
growth in order to strengthen its leading position in the lead-
acid battery industry and expand its market share. The
Group will continue to partner with high-end customers. The
partnership further improves the influence and awareness of
the Group’s products in battery markets, which is positive for
the Group to further expand future market share worldwide.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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Chairman’s Statement EEHRE

Prospects

The Group has concluded from its experience in 2013.
Tempering growth in difficulties, the whole management
team has become better prepared for the transformation
of the Group in 2014 based on better procedures and
system management that seizes greater market growth
opportunities. The management is fully confident in the
market opportunities of lead-acid batteries, being one of
necessary components of such high-end devices such
as computer systems, telecommunication equipment
and transportation vehicles. The Group will continue its
commitment to enhancing production capacities and
intensifying on its R&D capabilities to improve manufacturing
processes and servicing, catering for customer needs and
consolidating its competitive advantages. Thus, it aims to
build itself into the leading enterprise of lead-acid battery
industry in the world and create value for shareholders and
the society.

Acknowledgement

The rapid growth of the Group is attributable to its loyal and
hardworking employees who devote themselves to corporate
development. Taking this opportunity, I, hereby, on behalf
of the Board of Directors, express my deepest gratitude to
the contributions of all the Group’s employees and to the
long-term support and trust by shareholders and business
partners. The Group is full of confidence to continuously
make contributions to shareholders and the society.

Dong Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEFNWR DN

Business Review

The Group is a vertically integrated enterprise primarily
engaged in the development, sale and manufacture of lead-
acid batteries. The Group sells over 2,000 models of lead-
acid battery products, ranging in capacity from 0.251 Ah to
4,055 Ah. Among the PRC battery manufacturers, the Group
offers one of the broadest lines of lead-acid battery products.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s revenue
amounted to RMB3,646.9 million, representing an increase of
12.3% from RMB3,248.0 million in 2012. Lead-acid batteries
are generally classified into three major market categories,
namely reserve power batteries, SLI batteries and motive
power batteries. Details of business operations of the Group
in these three categories are as follows:

Reserve power batteries

Reserve power batteries are the major revenue contributor
of the Group. The Group’s sales of reserve power
batteries during the Period amounted to RMB2,765.0
million, representing an increase of 16.6% from 2012.
Reserve power battery products are further classified
into four major application markets, namely uninterrupted
power supply system (“UPS”), telecommunications, other
consumer products and renewable energy. Sales of UPS,
telecommunications and renewable energy batteries
increased as compared to a slight decrease in other
consumer batteries. The increase was mainly arisen from the
businesses from a new larger domestic UPS manufacturer.
The Group’s sales in the telecom category increased,
mainly due to the increased demand of telecom customers’
increased overall investments for the commencement of
4G operation in 2013, and the Group’s share in telecom
operators sales has also increased. The Group’s sales in
renewable energy batteries increased due to the widespread
application of emerging renewable energy, such as solar and
wind power generation worldwide. The Group’s sales in other
consumer categories slightly decreased during the Period,
was primarily due to weak consumer market demand.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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SLI batteries

SLI batteries are used mainly in starting up automobiles
and motorcycles. The Group’s sales of SLI batteries during
the Period amounted to RMB698.0 million, representing a
decrease of 8.3% from 2012. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the Group’s internal adjustment of automobile
batteries by vigorously developing its new products during
this year. Plant inspection and testing being conducted by
automobile manufacturers in respect of the Group’s batteries
also caused the decrease in sales.

Motive power batteries

Motive power batteries are mainly used to provide power
for electric vehicles such as forklifts, golf carts and electric
bicycles and other portable devices. During the Period,
the Group recorded sales revenue of RMB148.0 million,
representing an increase of 67.1%. The increase in sales
was due to the growth of the Group’s batteries for golf carts
and forklifts. Despite the keen competition from this market
segment, the Group believed this segment’s huge market
was worth devoting more R&D and promotion efforts for the
Period, resulting in a bigger growth.

Sales network

The Group distributes its products to more than 100
countries and regions across the world. The Group’s regional
sales centres are located in Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhaoging,
Nanjing, the United States of America, the European Union,
Hong Kong, Singapore, India, Sri Lanka and Malaysia,
together with 39 domestic sales centres across the PRC.
Currently, the Group has over 500 dedicated sales and after-
sales employees. The Group will continue expanding its
sales teams and marketing network to support the sales,
distribution, and aftersales services for the reserve power
batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries of the
Group.
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Research and development of new products

The Group is a leader in R&D and application of lead-
acid battery technologies in China. The Group’s battery
research and development team consists of more than 400
researchers and technicians. To support its R&D efforts,
the Group works closely with international and domestic
battery experts and research institutions to develop new
technologies. Currently, the Group holds 676 patents and
there are 944 proprietary technologies in the process of
patent applications.

The Group has grasped and applied most of the lead-acid
battery technologies in the world, including technologies
used in the first generation open-type fluid infusion battery,
the second generation Absorbent Glass Mat battery and
new energy battery, the third generation pure lead battery,
and the fourth generation Stop-Start battery. The Group is
one of a handful of enterprises in the world possessing the
third and the fourth generations of technologies. The Group’s
strong R&D capabilities enable it to produce a broad range of
battery products deploying most of the key lead-acid battery
technologies. Currently, the Group has developed more
than 2,000 different types of battery products employing
various application technologies, making the Group one of
the battery enterprises with the broadest range of lead-acid
batteries.

Production bases

During the Period, the Group operated seven well-built
production bases, including five wholly-owned production
bases in the PRC, a production base in Sri Lanka, and a joint
venture production base in Malaysia, with a total site area
of approximately 910,000 sg.m.. Currently, there is a joint
venture production base under construction in Malaysia with
infrastructure works completed and equipment installed. Trial
production is commencing soon. As at the end of 2013, the
Group’s production capacity has increased to 17.9 million
KVAh from 11.0 million KVAh as at the end of 2012. The
Group is continuing to further expand its production and
manufacturing capacities.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major sales cost for the Group’s battery
production. According to Shanghai Metals Market, an
information service provider of the non-ferrous metal market,
lead prices were generally declining under slight fluctuation
during the year. Domestic average lead price decreased from
RMB15,291 per ton in 2012 to RMB14,178 per ton in 2013,
representing a decrease of approximately 7.3%. To cope
with potential risks of fluctuations in lead price, the Group
adopts a price linkage mechanism, passing raw materials
price fluctuations to customers to hedge relevant risks. The
Group’s centralized procurement of raw materials enables
it to trim down costs of raw materials through favourable
negotiations on bulk purchase contracts.

Production suspension of Zhaoqing Leoch

Zhaoqing Leoch, a subsidiary of the Group that engages in
the production of lead-acid batteries, suspended production
for self-examination and rectification in July 2012 as required
by local authorities to cooperate with the local government
for a special environment protection campaign. Zhaoging
Leoch, with a focus on reserve power battery products,
accounted for approximately 14% of the comprehensive
production capacity of the Group in 2013. Upon the
completion of the environmental improvement campaign by
Zhaoqing Leoch in accordance with the requirements of the
relevant governmental department, on 18 October 2013,
Zhaoqging Leoch received a reply notice from the relevant
governmental department which in principle permitted
Zhaoqging Leoch to resume its production operations.
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Future Prospects

Batteries, one of the necessities in modern society, are
mainly used in UPS at data centres of computer networks,
automobiles, motorcycles, telecommunication base
stations, trains, subway, solar and wind power stations,
substations, electric vehicles, elevators and lifts, backup
lights and medical equipment. As such, these equipment
industries have been dominated in Europe and the United
States of America, and accessory batteries have also been
manufactured overseas traditionally. However, the surging
application of these equipment amid the urbanization paces
in the PRC is pushing forward a shift for such equipment to
be manufactured domestically. Hence, the Group believes
that the lead-acid battery market will enjoy continuous
growth as driven by domestic industry upgrading and the
ongoing shift of the high-end industries from overseas.

The Group anticipates that lead-acid batteries will sustain the
growth momentum in three categories, namely reserve power
batteries, SLI batteries and motive power batteries. To grasp
these market opportunities, the Group has formulated the
following strategic plans for the three categories of lead-acid
batteries:

Reserve power batteries

Equipment manufacturers and operators are the Group’s
major customers. Reserve power battery products have four
major application areas, namely UPS, telecommunications,
other consumer products and renewable energy. Our UPS
batteries sales have been affected by the poor economy of
Europe and the United States. Thanks to the 4G construction
vigorously propelled by the telecom industry in the PRC, the
demand of the telecom industry for batteries will increase
remarkably. Therefore, the Group believes that in the long
run, reserve power batteries will sustain growth in these
four major application markets. The Group has exerted all
its efforts to expand its market share to secure its leading
position in the domestic market of reserve power batteries.
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SLI batteries

China has been ranked first in vehicle production and sales
in the world since 2010, with over 20 million vehicles, being
higher than over 10 million in the United States and over 10
million in the European Union. A consensus has therefore
been formed in the market that the momentum of vehicle
production and sales in the PRC will continue from 2014
to 2022, further multiplying the demand for SLI batteries.
The Group has strengthened its investment in SLI batteries,
aiming to become one of the leading suppliers of SLI
batteries for automobiles in the PRC.

Motive power batteries

The demand for motive power batteries has been propelled
by the extensive promotion and application of the batteries in
electric transportations such as electric bicycles, low-speed
battery vehicles and forklifts. The Group will maintain its
competitiveness in the sector of low-speed electric vehicles
and forklifts which will withess more extensive application as
driven by industrial automation.

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s revenue
amounted to RMB3,646.9 million, representing an increase of
12.3% compared to the year ended 31 December 2012. The
loss attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to RMB129.3 million as compared to profit attributable to
the owners of the Company of RMB71.7 million for the
corresponding period in 2012. Loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was RMBO0.10.
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Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by 12.3% from RMB3,248.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
RMB3,646.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2013.

The revenue of reserve power batteries increased by
16.6% from RMB2,371.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 to RMB2,765.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2013. The revenue of SLI batteries decreased
by 8.3% from RMB761.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 to RMB698.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2013. The revenue of motive power batteries
increased by 67.1% from RMB88.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2012 to RMB148.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2013. Details of the Group's revenue for the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 by category of
batteries are set out below:

Wy

AEFBHRRBEE-_E——E+-_A=1+—H
I FERAREI24805 & 7T EH112.3% 2 &,
E-E-—=F+-_A=1+—RIEEHARK

i —

364698 & T

HERELNNEREE S ——F+A=1—
HItFEEMARE2371.38 87T EFHB66%EE
E-TET-=F+-_A=1+—HILEENARK
2,765.0B & Lo BB EMNNAHBE_T—=
FH+ZA=Z+—HIEFENARBTGI1BELT
[E83% e HE=—E—=F+_A=+—HIFE
MARKEIBOEE T BN EMNREREE—
T——F+ZA=+t—HIFENARKS6H
BT AT A%EEE-_E—=6+_-A=+—
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BE_T—=FRk=FT—Z-F+HA=+—HL
FE IREERE D HUEEALE

2013 2012
—E-Z=F —E-CF
Percentage
increase/
Revenue Share (decrease) Revenue Share
B8R/
Product category ERER W& 174 (T he) %= e fktt
RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT
Reserve power batteries EREN 2,764,990 75.8% 16.6% 2,371,303 73.0%
SLI batteries EEE 697,975 19.1% (8.3%) 761,144 23.4%
Motive power batteries BNEL 148,037 4.1% 67.1% 88,566 2.7%
Other Hit 35,872 1.0% 33.0% 26,973 0.9%
Total X 3,646,874 100% 12.3% 3,247,986 100%
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Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally
located in the PRC (People’s Republic of China excluding
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC,
the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and
Taiwan), the United States of America, the European Union
and other Asian countries/areas. The Group recorded
growth in its sales in the PRC, the United State, and other
Asian Countries/areas while there was reduction in sales in
European Union.

The Group’s sales revenue in the PRC increased by 16.7%
from RMB1,463.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to RMB1,707.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2013, representing 46.8% of the Group’s total
revenue (for the year ended 31 December 2012: 45.1%). The
increase was mainly attributable to the increased sales in the
batteries for telecommunications category due to an increase
in overall investments of domestic telecom operators, which
are the major customers of the Group’s telecommunication
batteries. The Group's sales revenue in the United States of
America increased by 1.2% from RMB508.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB514.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013. The Group’s sales revenue
in the European Union decreased by 2.9% from RMB630.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB612.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. For the
United States of America market and the European Union
market, there were no significant changes as the Group
kept the similar promotion and pricing strategy in these
markets during this year. The Group’s sales revenue in other
Asian countries/areas increased by 20.3% from RMB456.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB549.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase
was principally due to the substantial increase in sales in
India as a result of the Group’s effort to develop the Indian
market. The Group’s sales revenue from battery products
in other countries increased by 39.2% from RMB188.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB262.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 which mainly
include customers from Africa and South America, with the
traditional suppliers in such areas being European battery
manufacturers. The increase was attributable to the higher
market competitiveness of the Group’s products as a result
of the Group devoting its effort to develop emerging markets
and adjust products to markets of the third world countries.
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The following revenue information is based on the location of
the customers for the years ended 31 December 2013 and
2012:

NTREAEERBE T —=FK_F
TZA=t—BLUFE S H R AR

_:qg

2013 2012
—E-=F —E-C-F
Percentage
increase/
Revenue Share (decrease) Revenue Share
BR/
g fhtt (Th) % 6 fht
RMB000 RMB'000
AREFT ANEE T
PRC H 1,707,625 46.8% 16.7% 1,463,502 45.0%
United States of America E35 514,799 14.1% 1.2% 508,867 15.7%
European Union (34 612,295 16.8% (2.9%) 630,286 19.4%
Other Asian countries/areas HiBNER /1 549,532 15.1% 20.3% 456,675 14.1%
Other countries HipE XK 262,623 7.2% 39.2% 188,656 5.8%
Total 2t 3,646,874 100% 12.3% 3,247,986 100%
Cost of Sales HER K

The Group’s cost of sales increased by 14.5% from
RMB2,655.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2012
to RMB3,040.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. The increase was mainly attributable to the dampened
capacity utilisation rate and additional expenses due
to the increased environmental investments for overall
improvements in environmental facilities of the Group’s
plants, which led to a faster growth percentage in cost of
sales than sales revenue accordingly.
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Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 2.3% from RMB592.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB606.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The overall
gross profit margin decreased from 18.2% for the year
ended 31 December 2012 to 16.6% for the year ended 31
December 2013. It was mainly attributable to the higher
percentage of depreciation and staff costs than that of sales
during the Period.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased by 135.1% from RMB43.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB102.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, mainly due to
the increase of investment income during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution costs increased by
19.7% from RMB159.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 to RMB191.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2013, primarily due to sales increase and
expansion in sales network.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 4.7%
from RMB229.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to RMB240.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2013, mainly due to the increased administrative staff in order
to strengthen the management following the continuous
expansion of the Group during the Period.
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R&D expenses

The development expenditure of the Group increased
by 33.2% from RMB93.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2012 to RMB125.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2013. The increase in expenditure was mainly
used for performance enhancement of existing products
and development of new products, enhancement of product
competitiveness and increased commitment in research and
development.

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased by 55.0% from
RMB12.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
RMB5.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Impairment Losses Recognised due to
Suspension of Zhaoqing Leoch

The impairment loss during the Period was principally due
to the long-term suspension and the related provision for
investment for the Group’s Zhaoging production facilities in
the first half year of 2013.

On 18 October 2013, Zhaoging Leoch received a notice
from the relevant government department that in principle
permitted Zhaoging Leoch to resume production operations
after completing the environmental improvement campaign in
accordance with the requirements of the relevant government
department. Zhaoqging Leoch has resumed production
operations gradually then. Notwithstanding the aforesaid
resumption of production, the majority of the above provision
for investment was kept as at 31 December 2013 based
on the accounting principle of prudence. The Board will
keep considering the necessity of the above provision for
investment in accordance with the accounting requirement.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013

e

AEBMMERYHE LT ——F+=A
=+—HIEFENHARKIR8H ST & N33.2%
BRI T =ZF+-_A=+—HBHIEFENAR
#12508 Bt T ZERNHIRAME R MR
MFERRAE  REERMBRT N GINAERA
FTEe

Ht g B

AEEMNHECEERYHEBEE T ——F+=A
—t+—HIEFENAREBI258E T #A55.0%
EHE_T-—=F+-_A=t+t—HIEFENAR
LR

Ei%ﬁﬁi%%%%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ

EEHARERRTIERHR T —=F L¥F
RAEEERELERBNRBREEMLNEER
BB EFTRH R BB FTE

R-E—=F1+HA+/\B ZEERTHRRERH
EFIN 2SCEITIRIRENE - BB BE P
RERA L ERFREEENIEY B RIGE TS IREE
E-@EML ERNgREERZERE Lt
REBBARIEIN - Z—=F+_A=+—RH1)
RE - EF B REBGTERFER LB
B o



Management Discussion and Analysis BB R 2T

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 57.2% from
RMB62.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
RMB98.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2013,
mainly due to the increase of interest rate during the Period.

(Loss) Profit before Tax

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded
loss before tax of RMB120.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2013 as compared to profit before tax of
RMB76.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense increased by 73.0% from RMB4.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB8.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, mainly due to
the increase in income tax expense of some subsidiaries.

(Loss) Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of RMB129.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 as compared
to profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
RMB71.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had net current assets
of RMB96.3 million (31 December 2012: RMB369.9 million).
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories,
trade and bills receivables, cash and bank balances,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables. The Group’s
current liabilities mainly consist of trade and bills payables,
other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.
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Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components of
the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2013, the
Group had inventories of RMB722.3 million (31 December
2012: RMB847.1 million). The decrease in inventories was
primarily due to the enhancement in inventory management
by the Group.

Trade and Other Receivables
(a)  Trade and bills receivables

The Group’s trade and bills receivables primarily related
to receivables for goods sold to its customers. As at
31 December 2013, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB1,092.5 million (31 December 2012:
RMB957.9 million). The increase in trade and bills
receivables was primarily because of the increase in
sales revenue.

(b)  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

The Group’s prepayments and deposits mostly related
to the purchase of raw materials. As at 31 December
2013, the Group had prepayments, deposits and other
receivables of RMB59.1 million (31 December 2012:
RMB130.5 million). The decrease in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables as compared to
2012 was primarily because the Group decreased its
prepayments for raw materials after negotiation of the
payment terms with the suppliers.

Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December
2013, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB1,067.7
million (31 December 2012: RMB1,006.9 million). The
increase in trade and bills payables was mainly because of
the Group’s increased procurement for increased turnover.
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Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of payments for its expenditures related to construction
and renovation of its production facilities, payments in
connection with transportation charges, advance payments
from customers for shipments, current portion of deferred
government grants, and accruals for payroll and benefits
for its employees. As at 31 December 2013, the Group
had other payables and accruals of RMB369.7 million (31
December 2012: RMB243.1 million), the increase was mainly
due to the provision of the employee social insurance.

Capital Expenditures

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
invested RMB347.7 million (31 December 2012: RMB689.2
million) in property, plant and equipment for its new
production facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB96.3 million (31 December 2012:
RMB369.9 million), among which cash and bank deposits
amounted to RMB822.4 million (31 December 2012:
RMB848.3 million). As at 31 December 2013, the Group had
bank borrowings of RMB1,222.5 million (31 December 2012:
RMB1,394.5 million), all of which are interest-bearing. Except
for borrowings of RMB39.4 million which has a maturity over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars and Singapore dollars, and
the effective interest rates of which as of 31 December
2013 were 0.95% to 7.80% (31 December 2012: 1.00% to
7.84%).
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A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured by
pledges over certain assets of the Group including property,
plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits and trade
and bills receivables. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s
gearing ratio was 24.4% (31 December 2012: 27.4%), which
was calculated by dividing total borrowings by total assets as
at the end of each respective period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2013 (31 December 2012: nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operated primarily in the PRC. For the Group’s
companies in the PRC, their principal activities were
transacted in RMB. For other companies outside of the
PRC, their principal activities were transacted in U.S.
dollars. However, as a result of the Group’s revenue being
denominated in RMB, the conversion into foreign currencies
in connection with payments is subject to PRC regulatory
restrictions on currency conversion. The value of the RMB
against the U.S. dollar and other currencies may fluctuate
and is affected by, among other things, change in PRC’s
political and economic conditions. The Group’s product
sales adopted a price mechanism by which the currency
fluctuation is basically transferred to the customers, but
the Group’s foreign currency trade receivables may still be
exposed to risk in the credit period. The Group commenced
using forward currency contracts since the year 2012 to
eliminate the foreign currency exposures arising from sales
denominated in U.S. dollar with a total amount of US$65
million in 2013 (2012: US$5 million). The forward currency
contracts must be in the same currency as the hedged item,
i.e. U.S. dollar.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 10,257 employees.
Employee benefit expense (including directors’ remuneration),
which comprised wages and salaries, performance-
related bonuses, equity-settled share option expenses and
retirement benefit scheme contributions, totalled RMB465.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2013 (the year
ended 31 December 2012: RMB435.1 million).

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes
that led to any material impact on its normal business
operations.
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREERE

Directors
Executive Directors

Dong Li (%), aged 47, is an executive Director and our
chief executive officer, chairman and founder. He has been
appointed as our Director since April 27, 2010, the date of
the incorporation of our Company. He is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Dong graduated from
Northwest Textile University of Science and Technology, the
predecessor of Xi'an Polytechnic University, in 1988 with
a bachelor’s degree in engineering and Xi’an International
Studies College, the predecessor of Xi’an Internationa
Studies University, in 1990 with a bachelor of arts degree.
Mr. Dong has over 10 years of experience in the battery
industry. He led our development and application for over 20
patent rights relating to batteries. Contributing to his business
experience and social participation, he received various
recognitions and honours in the past including Outstanding
China Nongovernmental Entrepreneur (& E{&F R & RH%
%%), Rising Star Entrepreneur of Shenzhen (;Z3Il [ £l
¥%21), Honorary Citizen (%2R ) of Zhaoging City
in China and Texas in the United States, and also holds
social positions including Committee Member of the Youth
Committee of All-China Federation of Returned Overseas
Chinese (FEIBHEFLZ 22X 8), Council Member
of China Society For Promotion of the Guangcai Program
(PENTEERESIESE), Member of the Commercial
Council of the All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce
(FPEXEIFKEBEE), Vice Chairman of Guangdong
Commercial Chamber of High-Technology Estate (EXR &
BEEEme8E€K), Honorary Chairman of the Chinese
CEO Organization (EBEZF IEHEg£EE &) and
Executive Vice President of the Southern California. Overseas
Chinese Association (EBIEMMNEAEFH SRS T
%82 K). Mr. Dong is a Controling Shareholder of our
Company.
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Zhao Huan (f8ER) , aged 38, is an executive Director and
vice president in charge of international sales, administration,
human resources and operation of our Company, as well
as the global promotion of our products. She has been
appointed as our Director since June 11, 2010. Ms. Zhao
graduated from Guangdong Economics Management
Cadre College specializing in finance in 1996 and from the
University of Hertfordshire in the UK in 2004 with a master of
arts degree in international business. She has over six years
of experience in international sales. Ms. Zhao first joined
our Company in 2004 as a foreign trade clerk. She was
subsequently promoted to foreign trade manager, deputy
general manager of foreign trade department and finally to
her current position, in which her responsibilities focus more
on the overall management and strategic development of our
sales and marketing. Ms. Zhao personally held 1,500,000
share options in the Company as at 31 December 2013.

Philip Armstrong Noznesky, aged 74, is an executive
Director of our Company and sales president of Leoch
Battery Corp. Mr. Noznesky has been appointed as our
Director since June 11, 2010. He is also the sales president
of Leoch Battery Corp. Mr. Noznesky graduated from Xavier
University in 1962 with a bachelor’s degree in sciences and
obtained a master of arts degree in Russian History from
Georgetown University in 1965. He joined us in 2007 as
sales president of Leoch Battery Corp. in charge of the sales
of our products in the U.S. market. Before joining us, Mr.
Noznesky had been in the management of other companies
in the battery industry, including Energy Battery Group,
Accumuladores Mexicanas, GNB Inc. and General Battery
Corp. He has over 40 years of experience in sales of battery
in the U.S. market. Mr. Noznesky personally held 1,500,000
share options in the Company as at 31 December 2013.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Chan Karho Alfred ([R5 %), aged 54, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company, the chairman of the remuneration committee, a
member of the nomination committee and a member of the
audit committee of the Company since 17 November 2013.

Mr. Chan, is a seasoned executive with 30 years of
international demand chain experience in the food, toy,
outdoor and sporting goods industries. He has held senior
positions in The Pillsbury Company, General Mills Inc., Mattel
Inc., and Jarden Corporation. As managing director, chief
operating officer and senior vice president, Mr. Chan has
successfully led multiple global sourcing and manufacturing
operations in the United States, China, Hong Kong and
various southeastern Asian countries. Mr. Chan is an
University of Minnesota Carlson School of Management
graduate from the Minnesota Executive Program, Master
of Science degree from North Dakota State University, and
Bachelor of Arts degree from Moorhead State University.
Mr. Chan personally held 1,000,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2013.

Cao Yixiong Alan (& Ji ) , aged 45, has been appointed
as our independent non-executive Director since October
14, 2010. Mr. Cao holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from
the Anderson School of the University of California, Los
Angeles. He worked at the auditing department of Coopers
& Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the executive director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
chief executive officer, director and founding partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. Cao is also currently
the chairman of the board of supervisors of Chongaging
Tongli Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.. Mr. Cao
personally held 300,000 share options in the Company as at
31 December 2013.
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Liu Yangsheng (ZI[54) , aged 67, has been appointed
as our independent non-executive Director since October
14, 2010. Mr. Liu studied wireless communications at Beijing
College of Posts and Telecommunications, the predecessor
of Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications,
from 1965 to 1970. After that, he worked at Beijing College
of Posts and Telecommunications for more than 10
years until 1984. Mr. Liu joined the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications, the predecessor of Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology, in 1984, and served as the
director of the cadre members department and director of
the human resources department. Mr. Liu retired from the
Ministry of Information Industry, the predecessor of Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology, in 2007. Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology is responsible for
the overall management such as promulgation of industry
policies and strategies, implementation of laws and
regulations, and assessment for approvals and permits of the
telecommunication industry in the PRC which covers aspects
of telecommunication equipment such as telecommunication
batteries. Therefore, during his time with Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology and its predecessor, Mr. Liu
had the experience in working in the telecommunication
battery area. Mr. Liu is now the chairman of Cosmos Posts
& Telecommunications International Leasing Co., Ltd. (325
HEHREERR QA and a supervisor of Viton Wireless
Technology AG, a company listed on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (stock code: CHEN99). Mr. Liu personally held
300,000 share options in the Company as at 31 December
2018.
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Chief Financial Officer and
Company Secretary

Mr. Domine Ko, aged 52, joined the Company as Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary in November 2013.

Mr. Ko has over 30 years of experiences in accounting,
auditing, banking, corporate finance and consulting. He
has in particular extensive international banking and finance
knowledge such as debt and equity financing, cross-border
M&A and other corporate financial activities. Prior to joining
the Company, he has held various senior positions with
public companies listed in Hong Kong, Canada and Tokyo
Stock Exchanges, as well as with private companies invested
by premier private equity funds. Mr. Ko obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Murdoch University,
Perth and completed a Corporate Financial Management
training program from Harvard Business School, Boston. Mr.
Ko is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.

The remunerations of the member of the senior management

for the years ended 31 December 2013 are within the band
of Nil to RMB1 million.
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The Board is pleased to submit the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

Principal Activities and
Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The principal activities of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2013 are set out in note 4 to the financial
Statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 70 to 71 of this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend to payment of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 74 of this annual
report and in note 35 to the financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise
the share premium account and shareholder’s contribution
less accumulated losses. As at 31 December 2013, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB1,517 million.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a prorate
basis to existing shareholders.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 219 to 220 of this
annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Directors

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Dong Li (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Huan
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan

Mr. Liu Yangsheng

Mr. An Wenbin (resigned on 17 November 2013)

Mr. Alfred Karho Chan (appointed on 17 November 2013)

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. Dong
Li and Ms. Zhao Huan will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Further, Mr. Alfred Karho Chan, who was appointed by the
Board in November 2013, shall also be subject to re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years from 17
November 2013, which may be terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either party.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 26
to 30.

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares
or Debentures

Save as disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Directors’ Interest in Contracts

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of
the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in
the shares of the Company which (a) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or (b) were required
under Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
required to be kept by the Company referred to in that
section; or (c) were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) set out in the Listing Rules were as follows:
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Mr. Dong Li Interest under a Trust 1,001,800,000"(L) - 74.92%
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Ms. Zhao Huan Beneficial Owner - 1,500,000°(L) 0.11%
HELt ExBEAA
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky — Beneficial Owner - 1,500,000°(L) 0.11%
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Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan Beneficial Owner - 300,000“(L) 0.02%
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£l e ERBAA
Mr. Alfred Karho Chan Beneficial Owner - 1,000,0000(L) 0.07%
REFEE ERERA
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Notes:

(1) Mr. Dong Li is deemed to be interested in 1,001,800,000
Shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Jingle Bells Group Limited, which is in turn
wholly owned by DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited.
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited is the trustee of
a discretionary trust established by Mr. Dong Li and the
beneficiaries of such trust are family members of Mr. Dong Li.

(2)  Ms. Zhao Huan has been granted options for 1,500,000 Shares
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

3) Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky has been granted options for
1,600,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
Please see “Share Option” below for further details of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

(4)  Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
Shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

5) Mr. Liu Yangsheng has been granted options for 300,000 Shares
under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share Option”
below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

6) Mr. Alfred Karho Chan has been granted options for 1,000,000
Shares under the Share Option Scheme. Please see “Share
Option” below for further details of the Share Option Scheme.

(7) This is based on 1,337,075,000 Shares, being the number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2018.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013

B & :

(1)  EFEAWSKE B Master Alliance Investment
Limited (Jingle Bells Group Limited2 & #4& 2
AR))E %= %A H1,001,800,000/% ik 17 + #
A # %% > MJingle Bells Group Limited8] DB
International Trust (Singapore) Limitedz & # A& ©
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limitedf!| &=
PHREMBR2EERZZEA ZEAENTR
ANBEFTEENREKE -

@ REBRXAFESMERESS BBLXLIDE
% 11,500,000/ B 0 &9 8 B © B R A B 35 A
BROE B ER T B —fhe

() IREBEBEBRAMBEENERMESTE  Phiip Armstrong
Noznesky3t 4 B % # +1,500,0000% % 15 &9 #& A%
o HRARBEERERETENFBR T
At —&f o

4)  IREBEBARESS) B RS 4 B R H300,0000%
B tn w0 B R - BB IR RT IR B R T At [BB AR
] —He

(5) IRIEEEREHERTE] - BIB5 A St A B &% H300,0008%
RE 1D B0 BE IR i - BE I A AT Bl M0 F 1B R TV ik [ BB A%
W] —fe

(6) IRIREEARAERT S PR & St B X H1,000,000
RE RS 15 B BB AR AE - BERRAE ST BIAVREIS R T ot [ B8 A%
W] —fe

(7) AP JTIA1,337,075,0000% 8% 1D (BN =& —=
FHZA=T+—BBITHRMNEEB ) BERER

fee
(=
Sl

B EXBBEEN RF—=F+_A=+—
B BEARREENEBITRABRARRRK
HAMAROEE (&R E 7 RIEERGIEXVED)
BB AR S E ST A RN AR R
RIEFE 5 KBS 1501 53521677 B 19 22 A8y
EfERZORR  IFEERBEFETAMER
RA R AREARERIOAR MREE-T
—=FtZA=THULEFER TMRERHK
TR A R s ORI



Report of the Directors EEEH &

Share Option

A.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 25 May 2010, the
Company approved and adopted a share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
enabling the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2013 was 30,654,000 shares
(representing approximately 2.3% of the Company’s
total issued share capital as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

Details of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to selected
participants for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the Company and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2013 was 21,040,000 shares (representing
approximately 1.6% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date).

Details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

Nature of Interest

S

FTERROBROEZN AR

RIZE—=F1+"A=1+—0B REREFLPE
GBI E336IEFTF B E LML THIAL (T
BREARREZREZITRAR)FARNE%L
A B MK R

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding ©

Number and class
of securities*

BRRER EEME BEHEARERN BOBREIHO

Master Alliance Investment Limited Beneficial Owner 1,001,800,000(L) 74.92%
ERBAEA

Jingle Bells Group Limited™ Interest of Controlled Corporation 1,001,800,000(L) 74.92%
R EE MR

DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited® Interest under a Trust 1,001,800,000(L) 74.92%

*

Notes:

Q)

(EEialiok: Fan

The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
Shares.

Jingle Bells Group Limited is deemed to be interested in
1,001,800,000 Shares which are held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited, a company wholly owned by Jingle Bells
Group Limited.

DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited is deemed to be
interested in 1,001,800,000 Shares held by Master Alliance
Investment Limited, a company wholly owned by Jingle Bells
Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by DB International
Trust (Singapore) Limited. DB International Trust (Singapore)
Limited is also the trustee of a discretionary trust established
by Mr. Dong Li and the beneficiaries of such trust are family
members of Mr. Dong Li.

This is based on 1,337,075,000 Shares, being the number of
Shares in issue as at 31 December 2013.
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As disclosed above, at 31 December 2013, no person,
other than the Directors whose interests and short positions
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

Connected Transactions

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements, some of which also
constituted connected transactions under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, details of which are as follows:

A. Continuing connected transaction which
is exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement, but
subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements under
Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules

Y

Leases with Mr. Dong Li and his Associates

A master leasing agreement dated 8 November
2012 (the “Master Leasing Agreement’) has
been entered into between the Company and
Mr. Dong Li. Pursuant to the Master Leasing
Agreement, members of the Group will lease
from Mr. Dong Li or Mr. Dong Li's Associates
properties for the use by members of the Group.
Individual tenancy agreement will be entered into
between members of the Group and Mr. Dong Li
or Mr. Dong Li’s Associates with respect to the
leasing arrangement of individual leased property.
The Master Leasing Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2012
and ending on 31 December 2015. Upon expiry
of the term, the Master Leasing Agreement will,
subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules,
be renewed for further period of three years
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(i)

by mutual agreement. The annual caps for the
transactions under the Master Leasing Agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December
2015 have been set at RMB3.5 million, RMB3.5
million and RMB3.5 million. For the year ended 31
December 2013 the aggregate rent paid by the
Group under the Master Leasing Agreement was
approximately RMB3.2 million.

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company entered into a master agreement
with Mr. Dong Li dated 1 August 2010 (the
“Original Master Sales Agreement”) which
sets out the terms and conditions upon which
members of the Group will sell to Mr. Dong Li’s
associates, and Mr. Dong Li's associates will
purchase from members of the Group, products
including lead-acid batteries, mainly motive power
batteries, and related parts. The products to be
sold and purchased under the Original Master
Sales Agreement shall be at the prevailing market
price, namely, the price at which the same
type of products is sold by us to independent
third parties on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business in the PRC. The
Original Master Sales Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2010.
Upon expiry of the term, the Original Master Sales
Agreement will, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, be renewed for a further period of
three years by mutual agreement.
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The Company and Mr. Dong Li renewed the
Original Master Sales Agreement and entered into
a new master agreement dated 25 October 2012
(the “Master Sales Agreement’). The Master
Sales Agreement is for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2013 and ending
on 31 December 2015. Upon expiry of the term,
the Master Sales Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed
for further period of three years by mutual
agreement. The annual caps for the transactions
under the Master Sales Agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December 2015 have
been set at RMB60.0 million, RMB60.0 million
and RMB60.0 million. For the year ended 31
December 2013, the aggregate amount received
by the Group under the Master Sales Agreement
was approximately RMB51.1 million.

Continuing connected transaction
subject to the reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements
under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules

The Company entered into a master agreement dated
1 August 2010 with Mr. Dong Li (the “Original Master
Purchase Agreement’) which sets out the terms
and conditions upon which members of the Group
will purchase from Mr. Dong Li’s associates, and Mr.
Dong Li’'s associates will sell to members of the Group,
products including battery cases, parts, models,
chargers and electronic products (for the manufacturing
of the Group’s battery products or sale as accessories
of the Group’s battery products) and electric scooters
(for use by members of the Group). The products to be
sold and purchased under the Original Master Purchase
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market price,
namely, the price at which the same type of products
is sold to us by independent third parties on normal
commercial terms in the ordinary course of business in
the PRC. The Original Master Purchase Agreement is
for a term of three years commencing from 1 January
2010. Upon expiry of the term, the Original Master
Purchase Agreement will, subject to the requirements of
the Listing Rules, be renewed for further period of three
years by mutual agreement.
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The Company and Mr. Dong Li renewed the Original Master
Purchase Agreement and entered into a new master
agreement dated 25 October 2012 (the “Master Purchase
Agreement”). The Master Purchase Agreement is for a term
of three years commencing from 1 January 2013 and ending
on 31 December 2015. Upon expiry of the term, the Master
Purchase Agreement will, subject to the requirements of the
Listing Rules, be renewed for further period of three years
by mutual agreement. The annual caps for the transactions
under the Master Purchase Agreement for each of the three
year ending 31 December 2015 have been set at RMB60.0
million, RMB60.0 million and RMB60.0 million. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate amount paid
by the Group under the Master Purchase Agreement was
approximately RMB28.1 million.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
continuing connected transactions under paragraphs (A) and
(B) above and confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  normal commercial terms; and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
such transaction on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules.
A copy of the auditor’'s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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C. Connected transaction which is
exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement,
but subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements under Rule
14A.32 of the Listing Rules

Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Marshell”) is a wholly owned subsidiary
of Mr. Dong Li, which makes Guangdong Marshell a
connected party of the Company. Guangdong Marshell
entered into a purchase agreement dated 25 March
2013 with the Company, pursuant to which the Group
has agreed to purchase certain reserve power battery
facilities, including environmental protection facilities,
manufacture facilities and inspection facilities for reserve
power batteries and related products, from Guangdong
Marshell for a total consideration of not more than
RMB25 million. Details of this transaction are set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 25 March 2013.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in relation to the aforementioned connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions.

Directors’ Interest in Competing
Business

During the year, none of the Directors is considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.
On 21 December 2010, each of the controlling shareholders
of the company namely Mr. Dong Li and Master Alliance
Investment Limited (the “Controlling Shareholders”),
entered into a deed of non-competition (the “Deed of
Non-Competition”) with the Company pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders has individually, jointly,
unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken and represented
to the Company and each member of the Group that,
among other things, he/it will not and will procure that his/its
associates will not engage, directly or indirectly, in businesses
which will or may compete with the business carried on or to
be carried on by the Group.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Major Suppliers and Customers

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the
Group’s major largest suppliers are as follows:

21.9%
52.7%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the
Group’s major customers are as follows:

14.0%
26.1%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in these
major suppliers and customers.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is
confirmed that there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

Subsequent Events

No significant events have been taken place subsequent to
the balance sheet date.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Dong Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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CREARE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with
all the principles and code provisions set out in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2013 with the exception of
the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. Key corporate governance principles and practices
of the Company as well as details relating to the foregoing
deviations are summarized below.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate
governance practices that are appropriate to the conduct
and growth of its business and to review its corporate
governance practices from time to time to ensure
they comply with the increasingly tightened regulatory
requirements and to meet the expectations of shareholders
and investors.
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A. The Board

A.1 Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board, led by the chairman of the Company,
is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance. The
Board has delegated to the senior management
the authority and responsibility for the day-to-
day management and operation of the Group.
In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference. All Directors
have carried out their duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations
and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major
matters of the Company, including: approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of
responsibilities to the senior management of
the Company. These responsibilities include
implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and
management of the Company in accordance with
the management strategies and plans approved
by the Board, formulating and monitoring the
operating and production plans and budgets, and
supervising and monitoring the control system.
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A.2  Board Composition A2 EEZHKE

AT RIFRITES

A.2.1Executive and Non-Executive Directors

The Board comprises three executive
Directors: Mr. Dong Li (Chairman), Ms. Zhao
Huan and Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky;
and three independent non-executive
Directors as at 31 December 2013: Mr. Liu
Yangsheng, Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan and Mr.
Alfred Karho Chan (who was appointed on
17 November 2013 when Mr. An Wenbin
resigned on the same day).

Each of the independent non-executive
Directors possesses different business
experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Board has at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors with
at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise.
The Board has received a written annual
confirmation from each independent
non-executive Director of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Board continues to regard each of
them as independent up to the date of this
report.
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The Company has at least one-third of
its Board members being independent
non-executive Directors. Independent
non-executive Directors have been
invited to serve on the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee. Through
participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board
committees, all independent non-executive
Directors make various contributions to the
effective direction of the Company.

The list of Directors (by category) is set
out under the section headed “Corporate
Information” in this annual report and is also
disclosed in all corporate communications
issued by the Company pursuant to
the Listing Rules from time to time. The
independent non-executive directors
are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing
Rules.

A.2.2Board Diversity Policy

During the year ended 31 December 2013,
the Board has adopted a Board Diversity
Policy (“Policy”) on 21 August 2013 to
comply with a new code provision A.5.6 of
the CG Code on board diversity effective
from 1 September 2013. The Policy aims
to set out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Company’s Board. A truly diverse
Board will include and make good use of
differences in the skills, regional and industry
experience, background, race, gender
and other qualities of Directors. These
differences will be taken into account in
determining the optimum composition of the
Board. All Board appointments will be based
on merit while taking into account diversity
(including gender diversity).
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The implementation of the Policy is
monitored by the Nomination Committee
who will also review the Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of
the Policy. The Nomination Committee will
discuss any revisions that may be required,
and recommend any such revisions to the
Board for consideration and approval.

A.3 Board Meetings

The biographical details of the directors and the
relationships among the members of the Board
are disclosed under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report.

A.3.1Board Practices and Conduct of Meeting

Schedules for regular Board meetings are
normally agreed with Directors in advance
to facilitate their attendance. In addition,
notice of at least 14 days is given for a
regular Board meeting. For other Board
meetings, reasonable notice is generally
given. Draft agenda of each Board meeting
is usually sent to all Directors together with
the notice of meeting in order to give them
an opportunity to include any other matters
in the agenda for discussion in the meeting.
Board papers together with the related
information are sent to Directors at least
3 days before each Board meeting. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to Directors
for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection. The company
secretary of the Company is responsible for
keeping minutes of all Board and committee
meetings.
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The chairman, the company secretary
and chief financial officer and other
relevant senior management members
normally attend regular Board meetings
and, where necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business
developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the
Group. The Board and each Director also
have separate and independent access
to the senior management whenever
necessary. Where appropriate, the Directors
can obtain independent professional advice
at the expense of the Company.

According to current Board practice,
any material transaction, which involves
a conflict of interests for a substantial
shareholder or a Director, will be considered
and dealt with by the Board at a duly
convened Board meeting. The Articles of
Association contain provisions requiring
directors to abstain from voting and not
to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such
directors or any of their associates have a
material interest.
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A.3.2Directors’ Attendance Records at Board

ABEEHRFEE T 2L

B

Meetings

The Board meets regularly for reviewing
and approving the financial and operating
performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies
of the Company. Additional meetings are
held when significant events or important
issues are required to be discussed
and resolved. During the year ended 31
December 2013, 11 Board meetings, one
Shareholders meeting were held and the
attendance records of each director at these
Board meetings and Shareholders meeting
are set out below:

Attendance/ Attendance/

EFeTHRTER UK
BUER S R & BRI ARERH
NBEAEAD B B BE SRS R BOR o
MBEREHXEESEEN®
KR BeRTHENEH R
BHE_T—=F+-A=1+—H
HFE BIOITHREZSER
R—RBERERAE SEENLE
IECINE

HERE HRRE/

Number of Number of EEgeE RRAE

Name of Director Board Meetings General Meetings EENF #A #H
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Dong Li 11 11 RS 111 1
Mr. Zhao Huan 11411 17 BELL 111 11
Mr. Philip Armstrong Philip Armstrong

Noznesky 211 11 Noznesky7t &£ 211 1
Independent BUHRTEE

Non-executive Directors
Mr. An Wenbin®) 211 17 o pal 21 11
M. Liu Yangsheng 211 1n BG4 RAE 211 17
M. Cao Yixiong Alan 211 1n BINERE 211 17
Mr. Alfred Karho Chan® oM 0/ BRZ 5 o 0/
Notes: B 5T

(1) Mr. An Wenbin resigned on 17 November
2013.

(2) Mr. Alfred Karho Chan was appointed on 17
November 2013.
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A.4  Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that the roles of the chairman and the chief
executive officer of the Company should be
separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Dong Li is the chairman of the Board and
the chief executive officer of the Company. As
Mr. Dong is the founder of the Group and has
extensive experience in the Lead-acid battery
industry, the Board believes that it is in the best
interest of the Group to have Mr. Dong taking up
both roles for continuous effective management
and business development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure
of vesting the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company in the same
person will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.

A.5  Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors is engaged for a term
of three years commencing from their respective
dates of appointment and is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Articles
of Association.

According to the Articles of Association, all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years. Besides, any new
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy shall submit himself/herself for re-election
by shareholders at the next following general
meeting.

A4

Ab

BERME

EERITIHARE

TEEATRISFRHE X EA2 MERTE
AN E)FE B EITHARE M BREE D
BT EARB—AHE-

EFRERARRINESTSEREHRT
BAEE - ANBELREREEEIHA - 1
MBREMITEREEEENRR WE
EEHRE ERLERIMB TEA%
B &END ANAREREEX
EENMEGER-

E5eRn ARER—-AETAR
AEFERITBARMEAEHRE
BIEREANTNEEFEREREZ
RO D Ko e~ o

ZHEREEEE

BERITES B IFRITE ST
HHRAESENZRERRESA=F"
WARBERMARESRENEE-

T

REZRRAR AEESFHARIE

=FREEE M TARESEZ
EREREROFEIES  ARKE
BRERARE ERSXBRREE-




Corporate Governance Report ¥ E 48

Pursuant to the aforesaid provisions of the Articles
of Association, two of the Directors, namely
Mr. Dong Li and Ms. Zhao Huan shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the meeting. Further, Mr. Alfred
Karho Chan, who was appointed by the Board
to fill a causal vacancy in November 2013, shall
also retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election at the meeting. The
Company’s circular, sent together with this annual
report, contains detailed information of the retiring
Directors pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The procedures and process of appointment,
reelection and removal of directors are laid down
in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing Board
composition, developing and formulating
procedures for nomination and appointment of
Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive directors. Details
of the Nomination Committee and its work
performed are set out in the “Board Committees”
section below.

A.6 Directors’ Training

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the
CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of
the latest changes in the commercial, legal
and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.
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For the period from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2013, all Directors provided their
records of training to the Company. All Directors,
namely Mr. Dong Li, Mr. Philip Armstrong
Noznesky, Ms. Zhao Huan, Mr. Liu Yangsheng,
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan, Mr. An Wenbin and
Mr Alfred Karho Chan participated in this
continuous professional development mainly by
reading various materials regarding directors’
responsibilities, prevention of breaching listing
rules and disclosure of inside information, etc.

Company Secretary’s Training

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided
his training records to the Company indicating
more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending in-house
briefings, attending seminars and reading relevant
guideline materials.

Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct governing the Directors’ dealings
in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiry has
been made of all the Directors and all of them
have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees have been established with
defined written terms of reference, which are available
to shareholders on the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s website. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

The practices, procedures and arrangements in
conducting meetings of Board committees follow in line
with, so far as practicable, those of the Board meetings
set out in section A.3.1 above.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

B.1 Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Dong Li, Mr. Cao Yixiong
Alan and Mr. Alfred Karho Chan (who replaced Mr.
An Wenbin on 17 November 2013), the latter two
being independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
An Wenbin was the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee until 17 November 2013 when Mr.
An Wenbin resigned and Mr. Alfred Karho Chan
was appointed as chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.
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The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
of the remuneration of the Directors and the
senior management and on the establishment of
a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy; (b) review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; (c) make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive director and senior management of
the Company which include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss
or termination of their office or appointment;
(d) make recommendations to the Board of on
the remuneration of non-executive directors of
the Company: (e) to review and approve the
remuneration payable to the executive directors
and senior management of the Company for
any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with relevant
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive; (f) review and approve compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are
otherwise reasonable and appropriate; and (g)
ensure that no director of the Company or any of
his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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B2

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings and
performed all functions as disclosed above.
The attendance records of each member at the
meeting are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. An Wenbin® 1/2
Mr. Dong Li 2/2
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. Alfred Karho Chan® 1/2
Notes:

(1) Mr. An Wenbin resigned from the remuneration
committee on 17 November 2013.

(2)  Mr. Alfred Karho Chan was appointed as a member
of the remuneration committee on 17 November
2018.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three members,
namely, Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan, Mr. Liu Yangsheng
and Mr. Alfred Karho Chan (who replaced Mr.
An Wenbin on 17 November 2013), all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Cao Yixiong Alan, is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and he possesses relevant accounting
and financial management expertise.
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The principal duties of the Audit Committee
are amongst others to (i) review the financial
statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the
staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function or external auditor
before submission to the Board; (ii) review
the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and
make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor; and (i) review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings on 28
March 2013 and 27 August 2013 respectively,
with the presence of Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan, Mr.
Liu Yangsheng and Mr. An Wenhin together with
the Company’s external auditor and the senior
management and performed the following major
tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2012 annual audit
and 2013 interim review work, auditor’s fees
and terms of engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2012 annual and
2013 interim financial statements, results
announcement and report, the related
accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the relevant audit findings.
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B.3

During the year ended 31 December 20183,
the Audit Committee held 2 meetings and the
attendance records of each member at the
meeting are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan 2/2
Mr. An Wenbin™ 2/2
Mr. Liu Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. Alfred Karho Chan® 0/2
Notes:

(1) Mr. An Wenbin resigned from the audit committee

on 17 November 2013.

2) Mr. Alfred Karho Chan was appointed as a member
of the audit committee on 17 November 2013.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three
members, namely, Mr. Dong Li, Mr. Liu Yangsheng
and Mr. Alfred Karho Chan (who replaced Mr.
An Wenbin on 17 November 2013), the latter
two being independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. Dong Li is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The principal duties of the Nomination
Committee are to (a) review the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy and Board Diversity Policy
which aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Company’s Board; (b) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (c) assess the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors; and (d) make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment or reappointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman and the chief executive.
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In 2013 ,the Nomination Committee considered
and approved the Board Diversity Policy, so as
to ensure the Board members reach a balance
in terms of skills, experience and diversified
visions, to elevate the efficiency of the Board and
maintain a high level of corporate governance.
All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits
of diversity of the Board members. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background,
experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made
upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the
Nomination Committee held 2 meetings and
the attendance records of each member at the
meeting are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. Dong Li 2/2
Mr. An Wenbin® 1/2
Mr. Liu Yangsheng 2/2
Mr. Alfred Karho Chan®@ 1/2
Notes:

(1) Mr. An Wenbin resigned from the nomination
committee on 17 November 2013.

2) Mr. Alfred Karho Chan was appointed as a member
of the nomination committee on 17 November
2013.
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Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of the Company with
a view to ensuring that such financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements
and applicable accounting standards are complied with.
The Board has received from the senior management
the management accounts and such accompanying
explanation and information as are necessary to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment for
approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities
for preparing the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining an effective internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s
assets and for reviewing the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis. The senior management
reviews and evaluates the control process, monitors
any risk factors on a regular basis and reports to the
Audit Committee on any findings and measures to
address the variances and identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control system
of the Company including the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° to review and Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

During the year, the Board considered the following
corporate governance matters:

° reviewed the corporate governance duties under
the CG Code; and

° review the compliance with the CG Code.

External Auditor and Auditor’s
Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 68 to 69 of this annual
report.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, the
remuneration paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the
Company’s external auditor, for audit services to the
Group in relation to annual audit and for non-audit
services, comprising professional services for tax and
ERP assessment services, amounted to HK$3.3 million
and RMB4.4 million, respectively.

Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the
Controlling Shareholders, an annual declaration on
his/its compliance with the undertakings contained in
the Deed of Non-Competition entered into by each
of them in favour of the Company pursuant to which
each of the Controlling Shareholders has individually,
jointly, unconditionally and irrevocably undertaken
and represented to the Company and each member
of the Group that, among other things, he/it will not
and will procure that his/its associates will not to
engage, directly or indirectly, in businesses which will
or may compete with the business carried on or to be
carried on by the Group. Details of the Deed of Non-
Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus under
the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed and were satisfied that each of the Controlling
Shareholders, has complied with the Deed of Non-
Competition for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor’s understanding of the Group’s
business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognises the importance of transparency and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which will
enable shareholders and investors to make the best
investment decisions.

The Company maintains a website at www.leoch.
com as a communication platform for shareholders
and investors, where information and updates on
the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information and other information are available
for public access. Shareholders and investors may write
directly to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of
the Company provide an important channel for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
chairman of the Board as well as the chairmen and/or
other members of the Board Committees will endeavor
to be available to answer questions raised by the
shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated
senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them
informed of the Group’s developments.
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Shareholder Rights

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a
separate resolution is proposed for each substantially
separate issue at shareholder meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will
be voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll
results will be posted on the websites of the Company
and of the Stock Exchange after each shareholder
meeting.

Convening an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company (‘EGM”)

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2011 Revision) or the Articles
of Association. Shareholders who wish to move a
resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting following the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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Enquiries from Shareholders REE

Shareholders are welcomed to send their enquiries and RARIEGD IR R B B A A1 E AT 5B &

concerns to the Board addressing to the Company FEMEESRNERARKRER

Secretary of the Company through the following

channels:

) by mail to the Company’s place of business at ) EHEEARRREEHMBEBNRDE
Workshop C, 33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing AR BESTR B R KESBECE : 3k

Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong; or

i) by email at office@leoch.com. i)  EEZoffice@eoch.com °

Changes to Constitutional Documents BREX %

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was HE-ZT—=F+-A=1T—HIEFE K
no significant change in the Company’s constitutional RNAERXHMEANENES  BZEX
documents, and these documents are published on the HEFIERA A R R TR A o

websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
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e

Ernst & Young RXE IS B R Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
EY& i 22/F, CITIC Tower BERBRFEER Fax 8 H.: +852 2868 4432
¥ ] 1 Tim Mei Avenue, R{ERE22E ey.com
Central, Hong Kong
To the shareholders of HELTEBRFEMERAT
Leoch International Technology Limited 2RRBRR

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the ‘Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
70 to 218, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2013,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (‘IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with IFRSs and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

GEEZERBER

Year ended 31 December 2013

BE—_T—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

2013 2012
—E-=F T
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR®T AR®FTT
REVENUE Uy &5 6 3,646,874 3,247,986
Cost of sales $HE A (3,040,858) (2,655,784)
Gross profit EH 606,016 592,202
Other income and gains H I A R ez 6 102,139 43,453
Selling and distribution expenses SHE Ko SHA A (191,408) (159,871)
Administrative expenses TERAX (240,521) (229,761)
Research and development costs e X (125,006) (93,817)

Impairment losses recognised due to HRERIE L+ BRI

suspension of Zhaoging Leoch Battery BERAF ([EEELT])

Technology Co., Ltd. (‘Zhaoqing Leoch”) 1% 2 i #& 32 A Rl (B 18 2k 7 (168,049) -
Other expenses HMAx (5,646) (12,545)
Finance costs B 7% A AN 8 (98,813) (62,850)
Share of profits (losses) of associates FE(REEE R ElR A (EE) 394 (296)
(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX BiAl (&E8)aF 7 (120,894) 76,515
Income tax expense FrisHiA X 11 (8,395) (4,853)
(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RERE (F5E) BT (129,289) 71,662
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Htt2HEEE
Other comprehensive loss to be REEEHBAESR»>BEE

reclassified to profit or loss in BEamEamEmEEE:

subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of ~ B IBINEKRIIE H =58

foreign operations (8,239) (530)
Net other comprehensive loss to REERBEEHH»ESE

be reclassified to profit or loss in BaaH 2 EEEFE

subsequent periods (8,239) (530)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS rEEHMEZHEEE

FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MR BiE (8,239) (530)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) AEER2ME(EE)

INCOME FOR THE YEAR U &= 48 58 (137,528) 71,132

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income #& 2 HEWE R

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®T T ARBFT
(Loss) Profit attributable to: AT ATEMN
(B8) =AM :
Owners of the Company iN/NETE7 =N 12 (129,289) 71,662
Total comprehensive (loss) income IWTATEGEEZE
attributable to: (B8 WaEr:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NCIE RN (137,528) 71,132
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE EXRAREBESFEREA
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY (LS (F518) &R
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic AR
— For (loss) profit for the year —AFE (BE)EF RMBAR¥(0.10 = RMBAXKH0.057
Diluted e
— For (loss) profit for the year —AFE (BE) RMBAR¥(0.10% = RMBAXH0.0657

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year AN [E R & ##K I B 5B B 7S R 2 BT 55134

are disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements. B2 o




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e AR R
31 December 2013
—2-=#+-A=t+-8

2013 2012
—E—= —E——4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR®F AR®BFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KA 15 1,929,472 1,817,342
Prepaid land lease payments TAf LR EF0E 16 69,076 73,390
Investments in associates REE N R E 19 18,657 12,224
Available-for-sale investment A ERE 20 10,500 =
Financial assets at fair value AR EEEHTABRN
through profit or loss EREE 21 - 5,215
Intangible assets mEEE 17 91,585 60,981
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FLEBEWE HE K&
property, plant and equipment HBEE ZWE 2 7,375 14,737
Deferred tax assets RIEFIAE = 31 65,544 48,068
Non-current portion of pledged deposits & & #77 ZX 89 FE BN HA 26 15 26 548 165,500
Total non-current assets JEmENE ERE 2,192,757 2,197,457
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories rEs 23 722,293 847,094
Trade and bills receivables B 5 RURIE K R ER 24 1,092,527 957,925
Prepayments, deposits and ENZIE FI2 Kk
other receivables H Ath f& W RIB 25 59,069 130,528
Tax recoverable Ji& 3R 3] 7 T8 100,395 108,084
Amounts due from related companies Uk A N B FRIE 29 6,121 7,362
Financial assets at fair value ARAEBEEHFT ABRN
through profit or loss EREE 21 10,484 =
Equity investments at fair value N EBEEEHT ABDN
through profit or loss EmtEE 22 - 935
Pledged deposits EEBER 26 684,255 765,423
Cash and cash equivalents BHENIREEEY 26 138,105 82,893
Total current assets MBEERHAE 2,813,249 2,900,244
CURRENT LIABILITIES BB &
Trade and bills payables B ZEMN AR ENFET 27 1,067,658 1,006,935
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNRIBREFEA 28 369,716 243,078
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITEE 30 1,183,141 1,208,115
Financial liabilities at fair value AR EBEEHTABRN
through profit or loss SRAE 21 5,117 =
Amounts due to related companies JE 1~ A3 A R FIE 29 31,595 13,431
Income tax payable FERTFT1SHL 59,695 58,767
Total current liabilities mBAREE 2,716,922 2,530,326
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 96,327 369,918
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERRBAERE
LIABILITIES 2,289,084 2,567,375

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & Bk R

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P & ARBT T ARBETT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEIBEE 31 12,547 8,939
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFRIRITIEE 30 39,376 186,433
Deferred government grants 35 RE TR 478 B 26,860 27,722
Total non-current liabilities EmBBEESE 78,783 223,094
Net assets BEFE 2,210,301 2,344,281
EQUITY =
Issued capital B BT A 32 114,551 114,455
Resenves {1 35(a) 2,095,750 2,229,826
Total equity A RE 2,210,301 2,344,281

Dong Li Zhao Huan

X ik
Director Director

EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBHR

Year ended 31 December 2013
BHE_ZT—=Ft+_A=+—HItEE

Share Share Statutory  Exchange Proposed
Issued premium Merger option reserve  fluctuation Retained final
capital account” reserve’ reserve’ fund* reserve’ profits* dividend” Total
Bk
BRTRA ROEER  AHRE BRERE iERES EXRDRE REEN  RERE Ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE AREFT ARETT ARETR ARETR AR%ETz ARETT ARETR
Note (note 32) (note 35(a))  (note 35(a)  (note 35(a)  (note 35(a))
Bt (Mis2) (Wiztas)  (PHiEdsi)  (FitsEese)  (Hiatsse))
At 1 January 2013 W-E-=£-f—-H 114455 1,237,646 275,105 29,822 78576 (3697) 612,375 - 2344281
Loss for the year ~EEER - - - - - - (129,289) - (129.289)
Other comprehensive income ~ ANFEE M2 E R :
for the year:
Exchange differences on RERNEBMES 28
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - (8,239) - - (8,239)
Total comprehensive income for A [§ 2 E N R A%
the year - - - - - (8,239) (129,289) - (137,528)
Exercise of the share option {7 (@ ARk 12 kY 9% 1,951 - (1,736) - - - - 311
Equity-settled share option B EERERETH
arrangements - - - 3,237 - - - - 3,237
Appropriations to reserves (A - - - - 2,556 - (2,556) - -
At 31 December 2013 RZZ-=%
+-A=1+-A 114,551 1,239,5% 275,105 31,323 81,132 (11,936) 480,530 - 2,210,301
At 1 January 2012 R-F--%5-fF-H 114,267 1,285,012 275,105 18,376 70,979 (3,167) 548,310 21,332 2,330,214
Profit for the year REERH - - - - - - 71,662 = 71,662
Other comprehensive income A EE M2 Az :
for the year:
Exchange differences on RERNEBMES 28
translation of foreign
operations - - - - - (630) - - (630)
Total comprehensive income for AN fE 2 E #5445
the year - - - - - (630) 71,662 - 71,132
2011 final dividend declared ~ BER=F——F
RERE 13 - 3,967 - - - - - (21332) (17,365)
2012 interim and special “E-—EdHR
dividends RRIRE 13 - (54,206) - - = - = = (54,206)
Exercise of the share option TR R 188 2872 - (2,294) - - - - 766
Equity-settled share option INEREERRER
arrangements - - - 13,740 - - - - 13,740
Appropriations to reserves BERE - - - - 7,597 - (7,597) - -
At 31 December 2012 RZ%-=%
+-A=+-H 114455 1,237,645 275,105 29,822 78,576 (3,697) 612,375 - 234481
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * W ERERAKGREVBRARRNZERE FE

of RMB2,095,750,000 (2012: RMB2,229,826,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE_Z—=F+_A=+—HILtFE

2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR® TR ARBFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXERMBHEESRE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit before tax AT (EE) & A (120,894) 76,515
Adjustments for: TR IEEL A
Finance costs IR IDEIN 8 98,813 62,850
Interest income FEMA 6 (25,483) (21,366)
Fair value gains, net ~nBEEKE  FRE 6 (29,178) (2,250)
(Gains) losses on disposal of items of BEWME WER&E
property, plant and equipment HER (Wz=) &8 7 (9,334) 800
Share of (profits) losses of associates FEfREE = AR CaF))
B8R (394) 296
Depreciation e 15 152,521 97,959
Amortisation of prepaid land TET b A0 & SRR 85
lease payments 16 1,686 1,331
Amortisation of intangible assets BT & B 5 17 14,199 4,729
Amortisation of deferred i SE KT #e B 8 8H
government grants (862) (389)
Government grants credited to other B E MU A B R AT A R
income 6 (17,703) (12,418)
(Reversal of impairment) impairment B 5 WA
provision for trade receivables (BERIRE) RERE 24 (2,223) 7,727
Impairment of items of property, e &g
plant and equipment IH BRAE 15 64,483 -
Impairment of prepaid land A T EFIERE
lease payments 16 2,690 -
Write-down of inventories to MHFEERZRFE
net realisable value 23 102,322 -
Equity-settled share option expenses DAt i E AR 33 3,237 13,740
233,880 229,524
Decrease in inventories FERD 22,478 143,868
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 NG IE K&
JFE LA 22 4 388 (131,138) (132,985)
Decrease in prepayments, ERNFIE ek
deposits and other receivables A 18 WK IB R > 79,084 8,591
Increase in trade and bills payables B ZEMNFIBR
JE T RIRIE N 60,723 443,622
Increase in other payables and accruals &t E % K&
JEET & ARG 110,372 21,116
Movements in balances with related ERRAE AR 2 R
companies HEHREY 18,164 14,308
Cash generated from operations LEFIRE 393,563 728,044
Income tax paid =ENIZIR T (21,335) (25,875)
Net cash flows from operating activites &2 EB ISR L MEFEH 372,228 702,169




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 8B E&RER

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

P & AR®TR ARETT

Net cash flows from operating activites A& & /FZFTER &R = FE 372,228 702,169
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHNRAESRE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received B F B 6 25,483 21,366
Purchases of items of property, BEWE BENMEKEEER

plant and equipment (324,185) (609,689)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BREWME WEKEZHEHEE

property, plant and equipment ®IFT 1S 508 27,590 2,730
Investment in associates REEE QR E (6,366) (7,078)
Purchase of an available-for-sale BE-—BAHEERE

investment (10,500) -
Additions of intangible assets I & FE Y18 0 (44,803) (36,579)
Decrease in time deposits with terms #83A31E A 2 E 87 5B 2

over three months - 28,500
Investments in financial instruments KESMTH 29,781 (2,638)

Net cash flows used in investing activities % & & B i F &9

HeRe s (303,000) (603,388)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance expenses M7 31T KR EETITH X 470 766
New bank borrowings FERITEER 1,631,348 1,705,844
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERITEE (1,803,380) (1,382,922)
Interest paid EAAE 8 (98,813) (62,850)
Dividend paid EfIRE - (71,571)
Decrease (increase) in pledged deposits & I FRZUR D (B 40) 246,120 (290,432)
Receipt of government grants W BB 7 B 6 17,703 12,418
Net cash flows used in financing activites RE & ESFTAE &R EF5E (6,552) (88,747)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z&HRERER

Year ended 31 December 2013
BE_ZT—=F+_A=+—HILFE

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T ARM¥T T ARBFT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND HEeRBESEEYIEMFELRE
CASH EQUIVALENTS 62,676 10,034
Cash and cash equivalents REVNRE RIS EEY
at beginning of year 82,893 73,371
Effect of foreign exchange [EREFHHZE TR
rate changes, net (7,464) (512)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERNEESRRASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 138,105 82,893
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRASCEEDERIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances and Re MIRITHEBR K
unpledged deposits TR 26 138,105 82,893




Statement of Financial Position

B AR R R
31 December 2013
—E—=F+ZA=+—H

2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 AR¥ET R AREFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTE AR RRE 18 1,594,900 1,602,358
Non-current portion of pledged deposits & #7177 &) FE BN HA 26 15 26 - 165,500
Total non-current assets FEMBENE ERE 1,594,900 1,767,858
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Pledged deposits EEBER 26 400,000 394,150
Cash and cash equivalents ReREEZEEY 26 1,725 390
Prepayments, deposits and other BRFRIE FT& &k
receivables H A, [l W kIR 25 9,399 12,267
Total current assets mMEEELE 411,124 406,807
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals H A RIA R FERT & A 28 361 47
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITIEE 30 373,778 362,473
Total current liabilities mEN B EERE 374,139 362,520
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 36,985 44,287
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABRRBERE
LIABILITIES 1,631,885 1,812,145
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTEIRITEE 30 - 156,068
Net assets BEFE 1,631,885 1,656,077
EQUITY s
Issued capital BEITRA 32 114,551 114,455
Resenves i 35(b) 1,517,334 1,541,622
Total equity T AR RE 1,631,885 1,656,077
Dong Li Zhao Huan
3 HE
Director Director
EFE EE

=z
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Corporate Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Group is principally
engaged in the manufacture, development and sale of
lead-acid batteries.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company is Master
Alliance Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate holding company
is DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited, which
is the trustee of a discretionary trust established by
Mr. Dong Li and the beneficiaries of whom are family
members of Mr. Dong Li.

2.1Basis of Preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs which comprise standards and
interpretations approved by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments
and equity investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

B 755 R 3R B

31 December 2013
—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

ARER

AR YR ZE—EFMHA =+t BIREH
EHERANEF2E (—NAN—FFBIFE
R Ri7e MMER]) ERSH ST MK R E
HRERAR MARRRNEEZS—ZF
T— AT RBRERBHMERIMERAR]
([BERAr)) £ e R AR SR R
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands ° Z~£= ]
TERERE FEMESHBRES-

ARRIESE ([EE)RR RNARMEREE
IR A R RPN B R X B B 7 A 32 B Master
Alliance Investment Limited ° 5xA&42A% A &) &
DB International Trust (Singapore) Limited * £ 4
EFEENIHNERETNIEAN HXER
AREFFRENKIKRKE

mBEE

A EMFHRR IREBIR MRS R RS
B EEERETENZSSEIENER]
Mk A KB B R ARG ERARTE ° %5 H
R IIRBELRANEPIRE EITES
MIANEREREERAAEBEEIN
HZEVBHRRAARE (AR 25 B
ZEERIN MBEEBESRABRESREONT

ﬁo

BrEAREHERAT |
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMs:

31 December 2013
“T-=Ft-A=t+-H

2.1Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1 #{RBEZE (&)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2013. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements
of control described in the accounting policy for
subsidiaries below. A change in the ownership interest
of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted
for as an equity transaction.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013

BOHEE

ZEFREMHHRRBEARRLEWE AR
(BB AEBDREBE_T—=F1+_-A
=t+—BILFENMBHRE - ME A FER
RAZ WK S HEAR LA —
BB BRRE B RRZREHARE
BESIEHIE 2 A EEHRA AR AR
BAREZFEHRERLE 2SI

BamhkEMeERaSARRERNARES
NEZHEB AN - B B BIEE
P s AE SR BRI AL - ERER BIAK B A R A
ZEBNMASRBERNREENAE BE I
A FAXERERERG AR B B2

HEEERIFRBET NIMBRR SRR
AT A —IRIEFIE R RE P AR Z AN
REd rAEESEHNTHEEEHEKRE
HHEEEE-HNERREARER CE
(WARREZDE) HIRER R H B



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#FRMisE

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

2.2Changes in Accounting Policies

and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

IFRS 7 Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Amendments Instruments: Disclosures —

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

2.1Basis of Preparation (continued) 2.1 #4RBEZE (&)
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3F&RMs:

31 December 2013
“F-ZFt-A=t-H

2.2Changes in Accounting Policies
and Disclosures (continued)

IFRS 13

IAS 1
Amendments

IAS 28 (2011)

IAS 36
Amendments

Annual
Improverments
2009-2011 Cycle

Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to IAS 1
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Presentation of
lterns of Other Comprehensive
Income

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Amendments to IAS 36
Impairment of Assets
— Recoverable Amount
Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets (early adopted)

Amendments to a number of
IFRSs issued in June 2012

The adoption of the new and revised IFRSs has had no
significant financial effect on these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#FRMisE

2.3Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting

Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

IFRS 9
IFRS 9, IFRS 7

and IAS 39
Amendments

IFRS 10, IFRS 12

and 1AS 27 (2011)

IAS 19
Amendments

IAS 32
Amendments

IAS 39
Amendments

IFRIC-Int 21

Financial Instruments®

Hedge Accounting and
amendments to IFRS 9, IFRS
7 and IAS 39°

Amendments to IFRS 10,
IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)
— Investment Entities’

Amendments to IAS 19
Employee Benefits — Defined
Benefit Plans.: Employee
Contributions?

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Amendments to IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of
Hedge Accounting'

Levies'

]

31 December 2013
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMisE

31 December 2013
—T-=F+-A=+—~8

2.3lssued but not yet Effective 2.3 FE MR 1B R A Wz BB B 7%

International Financial Reporting HWEER| (&

Standards (continued)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 L REZZE—NE—A— Bz &RnBzFEH
January 2014 A Rk

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2 RZZE—NELA Bz &RnBzFER
2014 a4 &K

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is 8 ) # B 78 TE 1B 71 B] BR 4N A oR Il &£ 2 B H#f

available for adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are LT AESeNWARERAE AT EMEER
expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows: BRETFE R A B A — B R
IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part R FBE N F+— F BGRB8 S %

of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely

FoR T MR BEER S ERIE395 2 &
replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and TA:

BERENEMTEE —ERNE

Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification —H S o AEERE TR R EEN D HE N
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of S URBEERMEESIEAINIE  TEAR
classifying financial assets into four categories, an EERESIECREENEBREA RS EE
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently NEARESREEYEEREENEAEE
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the A AR AN A A BETE B 5 L EE
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing o e =1 BI| BR05R MR ERRE RS &/ E
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow ENDBEMtE R E-

characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of IAS 39.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMis:

2.3Issued but not yet Effective

International Financial Reporting
Standards (continued)

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS
9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and
incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of IAS 39. Most of
the Additions were carried forward unchanged from IAS
39, while changes were made to the measurement of
financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI’). The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the
fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under
the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

In December 2013, the IASB added to IFRS 9 the
requirements related to hedge accounting and made
some related changes to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 which
include the corresponding disclosures about risk
management activity for applying hedge accounting.
The amendments to IFRS 9 relax the requirements for
assessing hedge effectiveness which result in more
risk management strategies being eligible for hedge
accounting. The amendments also allow greater
flexibility on the hedged items and relax the rules on
using purchased options and non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments. In addition, the
amendments to IFRS 9 allow an entity to apply only
the improved accounting for own credit risk-related
fair value gains and losses arising on FVO liabilities as
introduced in 2010 without applying the other IFRS 9
requirements at the same time.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMisE

31 December 2013
—T-=F+-A=+—~8

2.3lssued but not yet Effective 2.3 FEMR{E R A Wz BB B 7%
International Financial Reporting WEXER| (&
Standards (continued)
IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety. BIRR B RS R EOR B E 2 K BIR =
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS FTHERIZE30%E - R EEVR AT - B &5t 2ER)
39 on impairment of financial assets continues to FEIFRNE @ﬁé{FZ»ﬁMﬁEEE’HE SlEE R
apply. The previous mandatory effective date of IFRS A -BRertERZEEge N T —=F 1=
9 was removed by the IASB in December 2013 and a ﬂ5'”%‘?!Bf’ﬁﬂﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁ—ﬂ”%%ﬁE’\]Jﬁ?@%‘li?&
mandatory effective date will be determined after the HES - e b4 B BN 2 EIRRER e
entire replacement of IAS 39 is completed. However, AERI| ZE305% TTAk 18 T LAEEE 7 » 5% ZERI ]
the standard is available for application now. The Group HRIRESFE - RIBM R E AT A PSR R 1E %R
will quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases, B AEESEREMERECEATE-

when the final standard including all phases is issued.

Amendments to IFRS 10 include a definition of an BRI 15 i 5 R 10 E] AN B IE— %
investment entity and provide an exception to the ﬁ%‘%ﬁ’zﬁ% WARE —HIREERTER
consolidation requirement for entities that meet the ERBREE AR - BEBEEBRVB®RESE
definition of an investment entity. Investment entities are E'J%QH)‘? KEBRBEZNBARARBES
required to account for subsidiaries at fair value through BEt ABa MIETUARRE - BRI mE 4
profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 rather than BIZE125% R EIBR & 5 R 275 (T ——
consolidate them. Consequential amendments were F)EERBEIEE] - BRI B EERIZF12
made to IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011). The amendments RIEFTANMEINIREERB ZEERE AR
to IFRS 12 also set out the disclosure requirements AR EN FE B RS B 75 d s B R B 105R FT 57 E
for investment entities. The Group expects that these Z MIREER WASEBPZEETH
amendments will not have any impact on the Group as TEHAREERBKERZE-

the Company is not an investment entity as defined in

IFRS 10.

The IAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of e ERERRBITARBIEESHEE
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set off” kemBEBEEBEBE AT
for offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. R ] R - ZZ BT S SRR &5t 2R
The amendments also clarify the application of the B IR ERGEE RS 2 B (a0
offsetting criteria in IAS 32 to settlement systems (such RREETRES) - Mz R 5 R AER A
as central clearing house systems) which apply gross REEEERE - AEERBRR - —NF—H
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The —BERMZEBE] MZEFEIBHEETE
amendments are not expected to have any impact on HASEI BN RIBEKERE -

the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 January 2014.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#FRMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give
the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s profit or loss to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries that are not classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

31 December 2013
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31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant 2AFEESTTHEME ()

Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates is
included in the consolidated profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in associates
are treated as non-current assets and are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMis:

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments
and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMis:

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

@iy is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

(vi) a person identified in (a)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMis:

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 8 — 10 years
Office equipment 3 -5 years
Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
Tooling and equipment 3 -5 years

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

QAT EESTTHRBE (&)

ME BERRBETE

FREERTIZIN W WS MR IR AR R
FHTE RAEMIRER BRI - W% BE &
RERBXRABREEBAEREEEEZRH
BEE ARG HEESOR Mt B e (A B IR e (S
R o

YR BB MR EEBRAEFERELDN
i (Pl RREER)  —RNEESL
HARI A e 3R AP HIARR © R E BIRERIRZE - RIS
RBENFESARAERZEEY TIAER
fLEZEENREFETIIR - HATHE
EK*K D BB Kk AR R B E %

RSB EAERFHRERITE
EMEUQE

FEUEREE  NREENE B RS
T B O AT D I R R A R T
BB WE WS RS T E A
T

EF 204
R K i 23 8-104F
/N 354
RE 4-55F
TARE®E 3-5%




d

B

31 December 2013
—T-=F+-A=+—~8

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant
and machinery under construction or installation and
testing. It is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction or installation and testing and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction or installation and
testing. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMis:

2.4Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received,
excluding other sales taxes or duties. The following
specific recognition criteria must also be met before
revenue is recognised:

@)

©)

(©

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred, the title has
been passed to the buyer and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying
the rate that discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.

When funds have been borrowed generally, and
used for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, a
capitalisation rate of 4.62% (2012: 3.75%) has been
applied to the expenditure on the qualifying assets.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(‘RMB”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries and associates are currencies other than
the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMis:

31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant 2AXTESTTHERME ()

Accounting Policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continueq)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
puUrposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4Summary of Significant 2AFEESTTHEME (&)
Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued) a8 (&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible BEMIBEEIBAA T?Dﬁ@*ﬁ—irﬁﬁ
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax EARPATIEE R AR AT IBEERR
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is M LA 3R A8 JE SR At A1) FR R 85 BT 00780 T e
probable that taxable profit will be available against ZE PUREERGATER R R REAT
which the deductible temporary differences, and the THE B AR - FRIE:

carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the s EREMBEEBTREEXBEN A

deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition as cost. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software
Computer software of the Group is amortised on the

straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.
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31 December 2013
—T-=F+-A=+-~8

2.4Summary of Significant 2AXTESTTHERME ()

Accounting Policies (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and developrment costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets, except in the case of financial assets
recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:
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31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by IAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as other income and gains and negative net changes
in fair value presented as finance costs in profit or
loss. These net fair value changes do not include any
dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” above.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Reassessment
only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in interest income
in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in other expenses.

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

QAT ESHHRME (/&)

RERHMEHMEE (&)

AR BEEEF AR 22 BEE (&)

BATANZITETAEARIWEBITAT
B WELBER BN EREE S ONEER
BERRTETIHE R EAOWIFRIER
BREERAAEBEEHF AR BEA
REBEAEB-ZEFRAATELARAAE
B & AR BENZESNIBRNER - EE
BOEREBARNERSREIESHE
ERAABEEN S BRERRRRIRT 8%
EREFFE

ESCREWHE

B N MR IR IR A B Sk AT REE N R (FE
REMIS DR BRE)RSITESREE -
et 8% ZFEENRAERAERT
FORABERR AR E DR E R BT E o 51
BERKARDEBREEEENTAITEX
B WO BREERERMNEAA RN E
RAMZZ 58 M - BN REHFT ABE RS
AN B R EEENERERERAT
tEE MRS °




106"

o

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMis:

31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Avallable-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are those which are intended to be held
for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold
in response to needs for liquidity or in response to
changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve
to profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant 2AFEESTTHEME (&)

Accounting Policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continued to recognise the transferred asset
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
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in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises TEHE LS -
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the

associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects

the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of the reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An
impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively
for financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset
in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If
a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to other expenses in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Avallable-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or
loans and borrowings as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, amounts
due to related companies, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

Subsequent measurerment

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depend on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39
are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continuead)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads.

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

QAFTESHHERBE (&

RERBESEY

MmEGEEReRERMSs HekReF
BYBREFERRE SOEHER AR ATRER
EHRABEANSERY —MNEBAKL=EA
NEHAREEEDARZERBMNERS
MBI E Bk AREREEETENK
REENRESERE —FHHRITES °

RPBRAERMS BERIREZEEYEE
FER G MRTRS (BEEHEZR)  mE
RETZEREI -

FE

FEERAME R A SR FERENBIEES
AR - IXAERINEF IR E - RTBAARE
MR ERA RS RHEER AR
S BOR B AL B AR AN » FE S an S SRR an
R B IR E R MR - BERSEAA K
SEBREE MR TEOEE D

Al IR FEE IR SEHR TR N EE
FFTEERE £ AT E -




Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMis:

31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant 2AFEESTTHERME (42

Accounting Policies (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to
the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

Leases

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases, net of any incentives received
from the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-
settled transactions”).
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31 December 2013
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2.4Summary of Significant 2AFEESTTHERME (42

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial lattice model, further details of
which are given in note 33 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefit expense.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of the reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4Summary of Significant

Accounting Policies (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operates in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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31 December 2013
—T-=F+-A=+—~8

Significant Accounting
Estimates

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years are discussed
below.

() Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment of trade receivables is made based
on an assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts
requires management’s judgement and estimates.
Provision is made when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
the debts. Where the actual outcome or future
expectation is different from the original estimate,
the differences will impact the carrying value of the
receivables, doubtful debt expenses and write-
back of impairment of trade receivables in the
period in which the estimate has been changed.
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3. Significant Accounting
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any
indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Other non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair
value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.
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31 December 2013
—T-=F+-A=+—~8

3. Significant Accounting
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

)

V)

Useftul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. It could change significantly
as a result of technical innovations, competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycles
or unforeseeable change in legal enforcement
rights in future. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or it will write off or
write down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Usetul lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation charges for its intangible
assets. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful life of intangible
assets of similar functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations.
Management reassesses the useful lives at each
reporting date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs to be incurred
to completion and disposal. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of selling products of a
similar nature which could change significantly
as a result of competitor actions. Management
reassesses these estimates at each reporting
date.
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3. Significant Accounting
Estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets
that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The amount
of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2013
was RMB92,018,000 (2012: RMB60,928,000).
Further details are contained in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Valuation of share options

As described in note 33 to the financial
statements, the fair value of options granted
under the share option scheme is determined
using the binomial lattice model. The significant
inputs into the model were the weighted average
share price at the grant date, risk-free interest
rate, exercise price, expected volatility of the
underlying shares, expected dividend yield and
expected life of options.

(viii) - Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance
with the accounting policy for research and
development costs in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be
capitalised requires management to make
assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation of the assets, discount rates to be
applied and the expected period of benefits. At 31
December 2013, the best estimate of the carrying
amount of capitalised development costs was
RMB84,510,000 (2012: RMB56,526,000).

3.

hY

+

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

B hAE (&

AT THBER (&)

(Vi)

(vii)

(Vi)

BEFREE

a8 FERR T A Rl B AR (E A HI R E B 22
8B UANARHSANABBHELRSL
KRB ABRIAEEERE SsmA R
IRE R ZRERRLEHIAEE BE
AERNECH REESET R EIEE
MR B 12 8 SR Bk 1 O By ] K %
B 7% 3R BI SIS (F A HIE - R —
T—=F+" A=+ BRERNHIA
BETE S ARER018000T (ZF
— % : AR#¥60,9280007T) ° # —#
BN HHRERMEIIA-

BRI 1E

AR T HR AR N T33P - BE AR At 2
REBEBREAAEER JIFRA AN
REEIETVEETE - XA AR RIAR
AR H R hIRE T RUE - E R A
R ITE(E - TREIERAR (7R 8 - TREARX
BR N IEHRE I FH

PR

PSR AR BRI S R 72 4FTE B 3
MR EFAEN A ST BT E AR
ETENMNBEEEEEYZEE
FEFTHBEAMRE BERANTRER
BT EEFZEREERRE - KT
—=F+-_A=+—H EEBEEHER
BEARRARKAREAEEDNRERGT
A ANREB84510,0007T (—ZZT——45F: A
R¥56,526,0007T ) °




1247

d

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMis:

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

4. Particulars of Companies

Comprising the Group

As at the year end, the Company had direct or indirect

4. ARAEEN DB

RER > RRAIAT = ZH B

S NEERE

interests in the following principal subsidiaries: 1 S R e
Place of Percentage of
Date of Incorporation/ equity interest
incorporation/ registration and Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
K/ ERR BETR A F EERAE
WEAR R/ A BEHY BRER BEEAL FTEER
Direct Indirect
B k3
% %

IHETENERATA 11 March 2003 PRC* US$52,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Leoch Battery (Jiangsu) Corp.) —ET= R 52,000,000 7 manufacture and sale
(‘Jiangsu Leoch’) =A+-H of lead-acid batteries
([IgEL])0 REER SEMEEN

BRESH

EEETERRINARAR 9 May 2005 PRC* US$34,365,975 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Zhaoqing Leoch Battery “ZTRERANA  HE 34,365,9755 T lead-acid batteries
Technology Co., Ltd.) BENHENREE)
(‘Zhaoging Leoch’)

([EEEL])

ZRNENHEREHERA 26 July 2006 PRC* US$10,001,455 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology “ETRE R 10,001,455% T lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Uplus’) © tA=+iH SENEERREED
(TRBHERHE])O

METRERRMARAR 26 April 1999 PRC* RMB20,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Shenzhen Leoch Battery —NANE HE ARE manufacture and sale
Technology Co., Ltd.) mA=+,H 20,000,0007C of lead-acid batteries
(“Shenzhen Leoch’) REER SENMFEEN
(TFRYEL]) BRESH

REMETRERRITARAR 27 November 2002 PRC* RMB3,500,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(Dongguan Leoch 2 R AR 3,500,000 lead-acid batteries
Battery Technology Co., Ltd.) +-A=t++tE SENEERREE Y

(‘Dongguan Leoch’)
((Rz®L])D
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4. Particulars of Companies

Comprising the Group

31 December 2013
—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

4. ERAEEN D TS

(45

(continued)
Place of Percentage of
Date of Incorporation/ equity interest
incorporation/ registration and Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
R/ ER K BETR ANFEERE
WEAR R/ 2 A 8 EEBE HEER EEADL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
B GF
% %
EMELREREMERAR 23 July 2013 PRC* RMB100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid
(Guangzhou Leoch Battery “T-=F R AR%100,0007 batteries
Technology Co., Ltd) +A=-t+=H HERRESH
(‘Guangzhou Leoch’) @
(TEMEL])®
Kinetic Growth International Limited 11 January 2008 Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
(“Kinetic Growth’) “ZZ\E-A+—-0 FA 28T batteries
EEERBRAR ([#8]) HEREEEN
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ US$200,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.’) “TT=F ATtH EE~ 200,000 T batteries
([Leoch Battery Corp. ] ) HERRESH
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) “ZIRENATNR BA 12,000,000/ 70 sale of lead-acid
BLER(EE)BRAA batteries
((BL8R]) REERIARHE
BB
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BVI™ US$1 = 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’) “ZTTHF HBRIFES™ E REZK
(THonour Label | ) ZAZTNB
Peak Year Investments Limited 25 January 2007 BVI™ US$1 = 100 Investment holding
(‘Peak Year') e RERTAEE 1ET REER
([Peak Year |) —A=+HA
Shieldon International Limited 19 January 2007 BVI™ US$1 = 100 Investment holding
(‘Shieldon’) “EZLE-RATNE EBRLEE™ 1ET REER

([Shieldon | )
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31 December 2013
“F-ZFt-A=t-H

4.
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Particulars of Companies

4. ARAEERN DB

) . — —f
Comprising the Group (&
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
Date of Incorporation/ equity interest
incorporation/ registration and Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
B/ wE & BETR KAREERE
WEAR R/ 2 B EELE BREX BEADL TEEH
Direct Indirect
B F:
% %

Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 = 100 Investment holding and
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) “TELE B 1,000,000 7 sale of lead-acid
([Leoch Battery Company | ) mA=+HHA batteries

REZRIARHE
BB

Nanjing Leoch Battery Technology 15 March 2006 PRC* RMB300,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
Co., Ltd. (‘Nanjing Leoch’) “STXFZATRA HE* AR #300,0007T batteries

HRELRERRMERAR HEREEEN
(k85 4))

Beiing Leoch Engineering 14 December 2004 PRC* RMB1,000,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
Technology Co., Ltd. “TTNmE R AR 1,000,000 batteries
(“Beijing Leoch’) TZATHEA HERREEM

TRETRERRMARAR
(TEREL])

Kunming Leoch Engineering 25 May 2006 PRC* RMB500,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
Technology Co., Ltd. —ZTRE HE AR #500,0007 batteries
(*Kunming Leoch’) AAZTHA HERREEM

BERBTRTIERMAERAR
([EBEL])

Xining Leoch Engineering 25 November 2006 PRC* RMB700,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
Technology Co., Ltd. —ZTRE R AR#700,00070 batteries
(“Xining Leoch”) +—A=+%H HERREEM

EERTRTIERMAERAR
(g3 54))

Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp. 27 September 2007 PRC* RMB1,000,000 = 100 Sale of lead-acid
(“Shenzhen Leoch Battery’) “TELE HE AK¥1,000,0007C batteries

RYELEBRMERD A NAZt++H HERREEM

(MRYELE]])
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31 December 2013
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4. ERAEEN D TS

Comprising the Group (&
(continued)
Place of Percentage of
Date of Incorporation/ equity interest
incorporation/ registration and Issued and attributable to
Subsidiaries registration business paid-up capital the Company Principal activities
R/ ER K BETR KA REERE
WEAR R/ 2 A 8 EEBE HEER EEADL FTEEH
Direct Indirect
B GF
% %

Catherine Holdings International 3 May 2010 BVI** US$6 100 - Investment holding
Company Limited “Z-TERA-A HERZEHE™ 6%TT REER
(‘Catherine Holdings’)

([ Catherine Holdings |)

Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 April 2010 Singapore SG$2,000,000 - 100  Sale of lead-acid
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.’) “E-TENARA  HME 2,000,000 103 7 batteries
([Leoch Battery Pte. |) HERRESH

Leoch International Holding 21 April 2011 Singapore SG$1 - 100 Investment holding
Pte. Ltd. “T——F AR TR IET REER

mA=+—H

Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp. 26 October 2010 PRC* HK$302,202,386 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
(“Anhui Leoch Power’) © —T-%F R 302,202,386 7T lead-acid batteries

ZHELERRITERAR +A=+xE HERHERRET)
((ZEHBLER])O

Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR987,010,608 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
(“Leoch Lanka’) ¥ —E-——F HEFR 987,010,608 lead-acid batteries
(Leoch Lanka | ) “ —A=tK~H HERREL HERFENRET

Leoch Batteries India Private Limited 31 October 2012 Indlia INR500,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid
(“Leoch India’) &) 2 HE 500,000E0E E Lt batteries
(Leoch India ) © +A=t-8 HEMRESH

Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help”) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HK$1 = 100 Investment holding
(IBig Help ) “Z——%nRTNE FE 18T REER

* HEEREARANE  TREREEER
RITTEE - A BRI BT =

PRC represented the People’s Republic of China
excluding the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of
the PRC, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan.

AN - 1
(=]

ok *

%

USA represented the United States of America. EREENREREH -

BVI represented the British Virgin Islands. = RBRUHBEABRLRS-
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4.

Particulars of Companies
Comprising the Group
(continued)

Notes:

M

The additional capital injection into Jiangsu Leoch
amounted to USD12,754,789 in 2013, and the related
capital verification report was issued by Jiangsu Dingxin
Certified Public Accountants (ST & R =2 ETEHEAER
NCIN

The additional capital injection into Guangzhou Leoch
amounted to RMB100,000 in 2013, and the related
capital verification report was issued by Guangzhou
Zhengyue Certified Public Accountants (‘&N IE 8%
).

The additional capital injection into Anhui Leoch Power by
the Company amounted to HK$73,317,429 in 2013, and
the related capital verification report was issued by Anhui
Shicheng Certified Public Accountants (‘% #5 ttt &5 & &1 &F
S

The increase in capital injection into Leoch Lanka
amounting to LKR352,390,225 by Leoch International
Holding Pte. Ltd. was completed in 2013.

The increase in capital injection into Leoch India
amounting to INR500,000 by Leoch International Holding
Pte. Ltd. was completed in 2013.

The name of Anhui Uplus was changed from Anhui Leoch
Battery Technology Corp. (‘R#E L+ EMFE M AR Q7"
in 2013.

The name of Dongguan Leoch was changed from
Dongguan Leoch Battery Technology Co., Ltd. (‘R E
TREREMEMRAT) in 2013.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length. Details of
investments in subsidiaries are listed in note 18 below.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013

A0 P A 0 2 ] M0 31

(45

GES

(1) Z—ZE—Z=F AQAAEIEHELTEINEE
12,754,789k T  BAE AR EREE AT
RO ESMEEMERAREL -

@ ZE—=F ARAMEMETEINEEA
E#100,0007T - BRAE AN E B = E B EM
EBEBMAEL -

@) =B =F AQARATHEELTHREINE
&73,317,429%8 0 BEAEAZEREEH
TR SR B AT -

4) Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd.[mLeoch
Lankat& finj¥ &352,390,225H7 B R E Lt -
BR-F-—ZF5mM-

5) Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd.[mLeoch
Indiatg i1 /£ E500,000E0 EFE L ER=ZF
—=FmHK

6 MNIE—=F ZTHETEMRMERAAF
ERRBTBANERLT-

7 MRIE—=F RETELREIRRMER
AAEEERR=EL-

EREIIZARBMB AR DEFRRE AR
FEXEATEZEIBRAREEEFE

EEKID LB AR -BEERRFHIINE
B AR EREERBBNITRE - 1M
BRI ZREFHIIN T XMEE18A -
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. . e BN
Operating Segment Information 5. && 5 ILE R
The Group is engaged in the manufacture and sale AEBERERETNHEWNREENER B
of lead-acid batteries. For management purposes, FERERE AEEREEEME S —E55%
the Group operates in one business unit based on its A B — ARG 05 - BNRE R IHEak
products, and has one reportable segment which is the EhD
manufacture and sale of lead-acid batteries.
No operating segments have been aggregated to form WS FHE & D ERLAMEA iR S & 5
the above reportable operating segment. 2o
Geographical information hEER
(@  Revenue from external customers @ KEIEEFHIM
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR®BFTT
PRC e 1,707,625 1,463,502
European Union (¢ 612,295 630,286
USA EH 514,799 508,867
Other Asian countries/areas HimMBER, & 549,532 456,675
Other countries HiH R 262,623 188,656
3,646,874 3,247,986

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.

X EE R TER P B DT o
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5.

Operating Segment Information
(continued)

Geographical information (continued)

(b)  Non-current assets

REDRER (&)

HEERN (&)
b) FRBEE

31 December 31 December

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

+=ZB=+—H +=—HA=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBET T

PRC R 1,983,853 1,904,996
Other countries/areas HMER & 132,312 73,678
2,116,165 1,978,674

The non-current assets information of continuing
operations above is based on the locations of the
assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

Information about a major customer

Revenue of approximately RMB510,066,000 was
derived from sales to a single customer, including sales
to a group of entities which are known to be under
common control with that customer, exceeding 10%
of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2013. There was no revenue from a single
customer exceeding 10% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013

LR E R SERB EEE M TIER
ZEEENUE TEESMTANMRER
HEE-

FHR-—ETEEFNEHR

I zs 49 A R #510,086,000 K B B —FF
MSHE - BB IR EZ BT PR ERIZEHIA
SEMEMNEES  BRAEEHE—T—=F
+*HZ+—E¢$J§Z BINZERI10% ° REZE
—F+-A=t+—RHLLFEREHS
f%?)fiﬁ%A%Et BAEE AU EEHI10% ©
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6. Revenue, Other Income and 6. Wi EMUW A KUk
Gains
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents Was - IRENAREE B L %58 - BTE SRS
the net invoiced value of goods sold. An analysis of BEE - Bl - ARS8 DA
revenue, other income and gains is as follows: e
Group
rEME
2013 2012
—E—-=F —_Eg—=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Revenue Wz
Sale of goods HEBY 3,646,874 3,247,986
Other income and gains E A R e
Rental income e W= 75 181
Bank interest income RITF B A 25,483 21,366
Government grants* BT B 17,703 12,418
Sale of scrap materials SHEER 3,736 448
Exchange gains, net PE W W zs - 258 9,350 1,687
Fair value gains, net ARrBEENE  FE
Financial assets at fair value AREEEHT ABEZN
through profit or loss TREE 29,253 2,164
Equity investments at fair value DA EBEEETAETH
through profit or loss EmMIEE (75) 86
Gains on disposal of items of property, Y% BE KRB E
plant and equipment B = 9,334 —
Others HAib 7,280 5,103
102,139 43,453
* Various government grants represented cash payments * SREBNRRL i T M G TASE
and subsidies by the local finance bureau to the Group FYIR & OB K Bh  AS RIS & R BT A% o
as an encouragement to its investment and technological BEE R SHA A REER GG AE
innovation. There are no unfulfilled conditions or I o

contingencies relating to these subsidies.
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7.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMis:

. N/ A2 = N2
(Loss) Profit Before Tax 7. BiAl (E5HE) @A
The Group’s (loss) profit before tax is arrived at after REBERFAT (B8 ) B F TR (FHA) A
charging (crediting): TIEBRHE:
Group
E
2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T AR®ET T
Cost of inventories sold FEFERAR 2,626,507 2,327,140
Employee benefit expense (including & E @FIF X (B2
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): E=We (MFE9) ) :
Wages and salaries FMRTE 404,431 396,498
Performance-related bonuses AR S TEAT 39(d) 709 1,186
Equity-settled share option DA EBRERST 33
expenses 3,237 18,740
Retirement benefit scheme RIREF GBI K
contributions 56,603 23,671
464,980 435,095
Research and development costs IR ID N 125,006 93,817
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN N & 2,544 2,137
Depreciation of items of property, VI - BB &R 15
plant and equipment HENE 152,521 97,959
Amortisation of prepaid land lease Tt b & FIE B §5 16
payments 1,686 1,331
Amortisation of intangible assets* I & 17 14,199 4,729
(Reversal of impairment) impairment & ZEWGIA CRERE) 24
provision of trade receivables VERIEEE ] (2,223) 7,727
Impairment of items of property, EERELTHNYE- 15
plant and equipment for BB M ITE B R E
Zhaoqging Leoch** 63,037 -
Impairment of prepaid land lease TE LA & R IR R E 16
payments** 2,690 -
Write down of inventories to FEMBE &R )FE 23
net realisable value** 102,322 -
Impairment of other items of property, EAb¥1% - BiE & 15
plant and equipment &8 B RE 1,446 -
Minimum lease payments under KEMEE THRE
operating leases HESAK 7,150 7,355
Losses (Gains) on disposal of items of I B ¥ - /= Kk X &
property, plant and equipment HEMEE (k) (9,334) 800

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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7. (Loss) Profit Before Tax
(continued)

ok

The amortisation of intangible assets is included in
“Administrative expenses” and “Cost of sales” in the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Zhaoging
Leoch, had suspended its production operations in
accordance with the request of the local environmental
protection bureau to conduct self-examination and
enhancement of their production plants from July 2012
to October 2013. Although Zhaoging Leoch resumed
operation in November 2013, considering the effect
of this suspension with a period of over one year, the
management performed impairment tests on property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments
and inventories of Zhaoging Leoch as of 31 December
2018, and accordingly recognised impairment losses
amounting to RMB63,037,000, RMB2,690,000 and
RMB102,322,000, respectively.

The management performed all impairment test on non-
current assets of Zhaoqing Leoch as one cash-generating
unit (“CGU”).

The recoverable amount of the CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering an eight-year period. The discount
rate applied to cash flow projections is 13%.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use calculation
of the CGU for 31 December 2013. The following
describes each key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections to undertake
impairment testing of the CGU:

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

7. BiEy (B1R) = (&)

*k

EIZEENEHD BB B HEL
7B S K [ ERA ] o

CEALES

ARBIZEWBRARIZEEELRIBM AR
RENEREILEE UR-_E——F+A
EZT—=-F+RETEBERRERALEER
E-REERBEITN _T—=F1+—AkE
AE BERIBACEERRS —FHF
2 EEEHERELHEE_T—=—F1+=
A=+—BHWE BREREZH BN L
HERBERFEETRENR  BHitH 5l
T 2R (B /5 18 A R #63,037,0007T * A R #
2,690,000t & A R #102,322,0007T °

EREREER L RS EEER AR
SEABM((REELEM])ETRER

Al

REeEEBMN 2 AKE B FEREEER
EZNFHMBEE 2R RETRRREE
AEBEFEEEEE -HEREBRMER
B BE IR F A18% ©

ERE_T—=%F+=-A=1+— EIZEE%F
EBENZFREEREFRERBRR-T
ﬁfﬁé

Bl T EREERIEERSREEAE
A B DR E R R S TH 5 RER
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—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

7. (Loss) Profit Before Tax
(continued)

. BiEy (&R) aF (&)

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine HEENE-ARETEPREBREEFR X
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the ZEEZEEARNEERAFEE 2 EHNE-

gross margins for the Group in current year.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and ALER 3 — RE IR K Ty AL AT 62 Al I R R A AR
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant units. B A @R RFE Rk -

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market PEERESEABURTHER ZERBRE
development of the CGUs and discount rates are Z{Efﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ—y—,ﬂl\*w SR —5 -

consistent with external information sources.

The recoverable amount of the CGU was BeELSBMMNATKELIEAS AR
RMB463,830,000, less than their net book value, and an 463,830,000 0 ' ER EEEFME MR
impairment loss amounted to RMB65,727,000 (2012: Nil) AEEF BREYBEIAREEEEARK
was noted and recognised during the current year. 65,727,000 (ZE——F: F) -

8. Finance Costs

An analysis of finance costs is as follows:

8. R AR

ISR ATIR T -
Group
EE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF B 69,095 51,170
Interest arising from discounted bills 2k iﬁ%%)fx%ﬁéﬁ’ﬁﬂ 2 47,162 30,280
116,257 81,450

Less: Interest capitalised B EEBEREF B (17,444) (18,600)
98,813 62,850

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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9. Directors’ Remuneration 9. EEME
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant BT CEMRAD RBEBRQRIRGIE16115K
to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong BLEEZFAMESFFIBRT

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

2013 2012
—E—-=fF ==&
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Fees e 288 294
Other emoluments: H{th i <
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind % 285 R E WA 1,777 1,603
Performance-related bonuses* TR S TE AT 678 1,186
Equity-settled share option expenses** VARE 25 45 H BB AR ME R S 636 698
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R KA8 F 5T 214 3K 17 17
3,108 3,504
3,396 3,798
* One executive director of the Company is entitled to * RAT—RATESEREEIIZLAEER
bonus payment which is determined at a percentage of R BHz BN LEE Z AR

the profit after tax of the Group.

* During the year, one independent non-executive director > RERN —BBIFNTEEFAEMAER
was granted share options, in respect of his services R 2 AR 7S M AR ¥R AR & ) B AR dE 5T B B 4%
to the Group, under the Share Option Scheme of the RERRHE  HoE— P BE N MIESS - 2 E
Company, further details of which are set out in note BEZ AR EEERNGEHREERRPE
33. The fair value of these options, which has been RVNFEEEE MBE_T—=F1+=
recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was A=1T—BLEFEEMBRERPATAZS
determined as at the date of grant and the amount B EFALXEZMeEES -

included in the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2013 is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosure.
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9. Directors’ Remuneration
(continued)

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013

directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

(a) Independent non-executive

9. EEME (&

(@) BUFHATES

FRRABILIFATEST N 2B

directors during the year were as follows: ™
Salaries, Equity- Retirement
allowances  Performance- settled benefit
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions  remuneration
e BER NERGE BAER
ik BEVEA  EREBTL  BRERX I 5 HMeE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARBTT ARETR ARETr  ARETn  ARETR
2013 ZB-ZF
Independent non-executive BUFanES:
directors:
Mr. An Wenbin XMW RE 80 - - 59 - 139
Mr. Alfred Chan RERLA 16 - - 22 - 38
Mr. Liu Yangsheng B DL 96 - - 59 - 155
Mr. Cao Yixiong BEMERE 96 - - 59 - 155
288 - - 199 - 487
2012 2%
Independent non-executive Buknngs:
directors:
Mr. An Wenbin B4 9 - - 127 - 225
Mr, Liu Yangsheng 2GRS 98 - - 127 - 205
Mr. Cao Yixiong EMERE 98 - - 127 - 205
294 - - 381 - 675

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the

year (2012: Nil).

D M) S FEN T T EE = S A5 EL At B
S (ZT——F :#|)o
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9. Directors’ Remuneration 9. EEME (&
(continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) HMITEE
Salaries, Equity- Retirement
allowances  Performance- settled benefit
and benefits related  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions  remuneration
e 2R NERLE BIRER

ik BURR  EXHARA  BRERX EE FHAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTLE  ARETT  ARMTT  ARETR  ARETR  ARET:R

2013 —B-=F
Mr. Dong Li Y - 550 - - 11 561
Ms. Zhao Huan it G - 489 - 231 6 726
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky ~ Philip Armstrong
Noznesky7t £ - 738 678 206 - 1,622
- 1,777 678 437 17 2,909
2012 2%
Mr. Dong Li BSNA - 550 - - 11 561
Ms. Zhao Huan BELT - 296 - 159 6 461
Mr. Philip Armstrong Noznesky ~ Philip Armstrong
Nozneskyt £ - 757 1,186 158 - 2,101
- 1603 1,186 317 17 3,123
There was no arrangement under which a director FABEE(EAESHEXRBRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration and FEMEN T AEETERNESES
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the RHER BN € ER A S B ek i AR
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining SERARESBERNEE (22—
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office Fom)o

during the year (2012: nil).
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10.Five Highest Paid Employees 10.E8xesMES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two (2012: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2012:
three) non-director, highest paid employees are as

T——F WAE)

FALERHMEET BEMEES (Z
- BB B EN LSRR
9-FR HBp=% (ZF—_F: =R)F=E
EZBESHNEENFHIFBENT

follows:
2013 2012
—_Eg—= ==&
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARET T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 3 & 288 & B Y43 1,525 1,816
Performance-related bonuses 4B ENMATEAL 31 =
Equity-settled share option expenses Em A ERRERS 351 1,010
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R R4 AT 2 4 3 17 21
1,924 2,847

The number of non-director, highest paid employees

FMB T IHEFEENZSHMER A

whose remuneration fell within the following band is as T
follows:
Number of employees
EEAH
2013 2012
—Eg—= —E——F
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBELE
A R #1,000,0007C 3 8

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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10.Five Highest Paid Employees

11

(continued)

During the year, no highest paid individuals waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments and no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the non-director, highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

.Income Tax

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon,
Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands are not subject to income tax as
these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry on any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is in
the range of 15% to 35% on taxable income.

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

10.585&eHMES (&)

11.

RAFE MEEARSHEMA L REXE
BEHELANS AEETERNIFEERS
A TN ERMESER/IMAREE SN
ARE H B ) 2R Sk BB RO R 5 o

Frig %t
A BAR AR B B 2 AR RATE &

RAEERIRE A E A S R AE NS
FTSHL

%

RIEFASEHSHNHA NP NRR]HA
& ALAE SRR ATER -

MR ERER X ST MM E A A
(Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon}z Catherine
Holdings ) PR L BB Be X A¥ S W MR 75 & S5 3 Bh
(FEMH = ERRON) Sas S ER 255 A U %
ZMB A R BEIBBARPTISHL

Leoch Battery Corp. JYRA EBIFEMA L « ZEASE
Bl AN TS T - BLER DM R = - @A

HIBE F R R AT R T F15%E36% °
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11.Income Tax (continued) 1. 8% (&

The provision for Hong Kong current tax is based on
the statutory rate of 16.5% of the assessable profits
of the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong, i.e.,
Leoch Power Supply and Leoch Battery Company. No
provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made by
Kinetic Growth and Big Help as they did not carry on
any business in Hong Kong and had no assessable
profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong during the
year. The Singapore authority approved Leoch Battery
Pte’s application for the Global Trader Programme
status on 2 August 2011. The provision for Leoch
Battery Pte’s current income tax is based on the tax
rate of 10%.

The provision for PRC current income tax is based on
the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits of
the Group as determined in accordance with the new
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law which was approved
and became effective on 1 January 2008, except for
certain subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC which are
charged tax at preferential rates.

Jiangsu Leoch and Anhui Uplus were recognised as
high-tech enterprises by the PRC tax authority in 2012
with an effective period of three years and were entitled
to a 15% corporate income tax rate for year 2013.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013

BEANBMIBNEE SR EBEMK
SR E A A1+ F R MlLeoch Battery
Company®J FE &7 Bt ja 7 * H2A TE 1 £16.5%5T
E o (AL N Big Helpdf SR B S I S Ef]
¥ BRAFE RN R BB EE A SR
TR RS R ME W B IRBAFIEH
BE-FIRERN —_E——E N \A-B#t
/ELeoch Battery Pte. B BIRIKE 5 r i AY
Ef 55 ° Leoch Battery Pte. ENHARTSHR Ji% Hi K
10%ETHER S -

BRARSERTENE THBARERGESR
S - Fp B BN EARR S B B T IR IBE R B R PR 1S
BE(RZFENF—A—BEMLERER)
TR 7 R [ 1 JE SR N LA25%6 KA TE B R 5+

sy
= o
e

TERE TR EHOENN - — —FEmh
BfHGE BRERASIT RN  BRERA
=F Mo ZFCEMEHRER15% -



11.Income Tax (con

The major components of
year are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

tinued)

income tax charge for the

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

1. FR8% (&

RAFEREEEHAEHR LT

Group

rE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREF T
Current — PRC BVHAR 18 — A 4,947 17,185
Current — Hong Kong BVEARE I — & B 9,998 6,797
Current — Singapore BVHARH 18 — 3Nk 5,073 12,749
Current — USA BN ERT IE — < B 2,245 2,845
Deferred tax (note 31) ERERITE (FfEE31) (13,868) (34,723)
Total tax charge for the year FAMIBS LB 8,395 4,853
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11.Income Tax (continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable
to (loss) profit before tax at the statutory rates for the
country in which the Company and the majority of

1. FR8% (&

ERRTAT (BR) B ASHRASIRAR
A M ERE D KB QR EMATERR (Al
)RNRE R R IR BN R H AR X

its subsidiaries are domiciled (i.e. the PRC) to the tax HOETER AT -
expense at effective tax rates is as follows:
Group
rE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFTT
(Loss) Profit before tax Al (E518) = Al (120,894) 76,515
Applicable tax rate of the Group AEERERAHE 25% 25%
Tax at the applicable tax rate BEBAHEGTERTIA (30,224) 19,129
Tax concession for certain subsidiaries AETHEBRARIMMEESR (6,144) (37,307)
Income not subject to tax B/A R U a (11,576) (2,501)
Expenses not deductible for tax A0 B 2 39,479 10,715
Tax losses utilised from previous periods 2 fH Bl B ~ % T8 &5 48 (6,686) -
Tax losses not recognised RIERIEEE 22,857 14,817
Deferred tax assets valuation allowance EEIRE E (L ERE 689 -
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate IR A S B ERR R EH
IR X 8,395 4,853
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31 December 2013
—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

12.(Loss) Profit Attributable to 12. 78X B R A (B5E)
Owners of the Company 22 Al
The consolidated (loss) profit attributable to owners BHE_T—=F+_A=1T—HBLFE &
of the parent for the year ended 31 December 2013 NAEE ANELRE (BR) MEEEEA
includes a loss of RMB27,740,000 (2012: a profit of R#27,740,0007T (ZF—Z—F a5 M AR
RMB680,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 680,0007T) * B AN A 7] B 75 R 3% 1 [ B 1
statements of the Company (note 35(b)). (BI7E35(0)) °
13.Dividends 13. IR B
2013 2012
—g—-= —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Interim — nil mH -\ (T _F:
(2012: 1.43 HK cents per share) FR%1.43781l) - 15,503
Special dividend - nil FRRE—E (ZT——%F:
(2012: 3.57 HK cents per share) FI3.5778l) - 38,703
- 54,206

The Company does not intend to declare the payment
of any interim and final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2013.

14.(Loss) Earnings Per Share

Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Company

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share
amounts is based on the (loss) profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,336,353,917 (2012: 1,335,299,269) in issue during
the year.

14.

ARRTMRERXNBE-_T—=F1+_A
=t —HIEFENEAH B ERERE

ARAEBRERITE ARG
B2 (F1R) &R

BRER (F18) BFSETRA R AT i@E
wE AN (BB) 2 REANBEITER
A hnAEF 521,336,353 917/% (—ZT— —4F:
1,335,299,2600% ) & 7 AELEFTH -
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31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

14.(Loss) Earnings Per Share

Attributable to Ordinary Equity
Holders of the Company
(continued)

The calculation of diluted (loss) earnings per share
amounts is based on the (loss) profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year, as used in the basic (loss)
earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share are based on:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMis:

14. 5D R IB RS H AR
=

2R (BB &BA (&

BREE (518) BN SREIZA R RS EE
@B ARMGFA (BR) nflREEstE -
u‘ffﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ’] B N BRI E BT

AARE A (HF :ﬁ’_ﬂxgﬁ()@ﬁ@)”ﬂﬁﬁ
FH%*HH) J«/(&TEJ“EAZ%%FF&T 1 TfER
BEEEE )L RR iR R T sk e T3
T Wxﬁ’]bﬂ%qzﬂ%l

STESRERREE (BE)RFBKEN
—|T:

2013 2012
—_Eg—= —FT——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
(Loss) Earnings (EE) &R ARET AREEFTT
(Loss) Profit attributable to ordinary RARFTESRERR
equity holders of the Company, g (18 BRI 2 A RF]
used in the basic and diluted (loss) TR A ARG
earnings per share (E8) = A (129,289) 71,662
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14.(Loss) Earnings Per Share

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

31 December 2013

—F-=%+-A=+-§

14$@ﬂ'ﬁf§hﬁkﬁm

Attributable to Ordinary Equity Bk (F1E)BR (&
Holders of the Company
(continued)
Number of Number of
shares shares
B A 21
2013 2012
Shares 47) —E-= —T-CF

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in  FA R st BB E A (E512)
issue during the year used in the basic (loss)  BFz FREEITEBRK
earnings per share calculation miEFHE 1,336,353,917

Effect of dilution — weighted average number of #&7 2 — L@ MNEFHE:

1,335,299,269

ordinary shares: share options PR - 9,399,950
1,336,353,917 1,344,699,219
The effects of share options have been excluded from BHE_T—=—F+_A=1T—HLFE B

the calculation of diluted loss per share for the year frtEZ EE B5
ended 31 December 2013 as their effects would be

anti-dilutive.

HEkEERET 5k
FRRSEZEREE REEYE -
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31 December 2013

—F-=%#+-A=+-§

15.Property, Plant and Equipment

15. % -BEKRRKRME

Group
558
Plant and Office Motor Toolingand  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
| &3 HERME BAERME AE IARRE ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARBTT
2013 —B-=f
Cost: A :
At 31 December 2012 and W=F-—F+-fA=1-H
1 January 2013 k=Z-=%-f-H 493,251 740,126 24,672 27,254 121,884 716,557 2,123,744
Additions R 42,238 51,713 1,085 1,419 9,158 242,066 347,659
Transfers a5 85,765 412,874 2,657 - 51,200 (552,586) -
Disposals RE (14,008) (2,297) (149) (1,108) (10,776) (8,201) (36,539)
Exchange realignment ]S (276) - &) - @ - (281)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-Z4+ZA=+-H 606,970 1,202,416 28,242 27,565 171,554 397,836 2,434,583
Accumulated depreciationand R 47 E RHfE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013 - (53,456) (176,597) (14,909) (12,951) (48,489) - (306,402)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (28,040) (98,157) (3,309) (4,584) (18,437) - (152,521)
Impairment e (9,130) (15,669) (495) (166) (4,575) (34,448) (64,483)
Disposals RE 1,684 10,750 76 968 4,805 - 18,283
Exchange realignment EHHE 31 - (19 - - - 12
At 31 December 2013 RZF-—=F+-A=1-H (88,911) (279,673) (18,650) (16,733) (66,696) (34,448) (605,111)
Net carrying amount: REFME:
At 31 December 2013 W=E-=%#+-fA=1+-H 518,059 922,743 9,592 10,832 104,858 363,388 1,929,472
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15.Property, Plant and Equipment

31 December 2013

—F-=%+-A=+-H

15. 9% - W K st (&)

(continued)
Group
&M@
Plant and Office Motor Toolingand  Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
L & BERME BAERE RE IARRE ERIR b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTTL ARBTTL ARBTT ARBTFIL AR¥FT ARBTTT
2012 kS :3
Cost; KA
At 31 December 2011 and RZ2—%+-A=1-H
1 January 2012 k=E-——F-f- 263,632 515,312 23,694 23,698 109,424 503,939 1,439,699
Additions #h 56,146 109,783 1,170 4,120 13,171 504,762 689,152
Transfers b 173,457 118,453 3 - 202 (292,144) -
Disposals RE - (3422) (224) (664) 913) - (6,123)
Exchange realignment L 16 - - - - - 16
At 31 December 2012 RZF--F+ZA=1-H 493,251 740,126 24,672 27,254 121,884 716,557 2,123,744
Accumulated depreciation and  3HTE RIEE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2011 and AZE——F+-A=1-H
1 January 2012 k-Z--%-f-H (36,422) (125,224) (10,839) (9,477) (28,056 - (210,018)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year (17,017) (62,122) (4,180) 8,712 (20,928) - (97,959)
Disposals RE - 749 110 238 495 - 1,592
Exchange realignment EiR% (17) - - - - - (17)
At 31 December 2012 RZB-—-F+ZA=1-H (63,456) (176,597) (14,909) (12,951) (48,489) - (306,402)
Net carmying amount; REFE:
At 31 December 2012 W=2-—%#+-R=1+-H 439,795 563,529 9,763 14,303 73,39 716,557 1,817,342

At 31 December 2013, certain

of the Group’s

buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB561,257,000 (2012:
RMB488,007,000) were pledged to secure general

R-ZTE—=F+_A=1+—8 KA&EEERT
SFELHARES61,257,000 (ZF——F: A
R¥£488,007,0007T ) 2 & TEF R £ T
EAEREEER —MBTHEZER -BK

banking facilities granted to the Group. For details of REEFIEF2HME36 -

pledged assets, please refer to note 36.
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31 December 2013
—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

16.Prepaid Land Lease Payments  16.F8{f it A E K18

Group

rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —T_F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

At cost: B
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—HBHE+Z-—A=+—H 83,007 83,007
Accumulated amortisation: 2T
At 1 January w—B—8 (7,931) (6,600)
Recognised during the year RE AR (1,686) (1,331)
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—H (9,617) (7,931)
Impairment BB
At 1 January n—H—H - -
Recognised during the year RE AR (2,690) -
At 31 December Rn+=—A=+—H (2,690) =
Net carrying amount: BREEE :
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 70,700 75,076
Less: Current portion included in B ATBRNRIE FI& &

prepayments, deposits and Hbje Hﬁl IEE’J

other receivables BN ER &R > (1,624) (1,686)

69,076 73,390

The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is SRS T AR B KRE - B —IRREAMEAY -
held under a long term lease.
At 31 December 2013, certain of the Group’s N-E—=+—_H=+—8 "&EFEFE
prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying £ EFIERRE FE LA R 37,889,000
amount of approximately RMB37,889,000 (2012: TL (ZZT—=F : AR¥34,400,0007T) 2 H#H
RMB34,400,000) were pledged to secure general EBRNEBER —RBTHE ZEF (Mt

banking facilities granted to the Group (note 36). 36) °

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013



Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#FRMisE

17.Intangible Assets

31 December 2013
—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

17. BB E

Group
REH
Deferred
Computer development
software costs Total
T
E B4 B & B A st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR®ET T
Cost: X
At 1 January 2012 R-—T——&=—H—H 5,492 25,031 30,523
Additions R 1,155 35,424 36,579
At 31 December 2012 and HR=-ZE——
1 January 2013 +=—A=+—BK
—_E—=%—H—H 6,647 60,455 67,102
Additions N 3,550 41,253 44 803
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=
+—A=+—8H 10,197 101,708 111,905
Accumulated amortisation: R T
At 1 January 2012 R-_E——F—H—H (1,392) = (1,392)
Recognised during the year & AR (800) (3,929) (4,729)
At 31 December 2012 and R _-T— 4
1 January 2013 +=—A=+—HBK
e = (2,192) (3,929) 6,121)
Recognised during the year & AR (930) (13,269) (14,199)
At 31 December 2013 R-ZE—=F
+—-A=+—8H (3,122) (17,198) (20,320)
Net carrying amount: FREDF(E :
At 31 December 2012 R-ZTE——F+
—A=+—H 4,455 56,526 60,981
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F
+-A=+—8 7,075 84,510 91,585
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31 December 2013
“F-ZFt-A=t-H

18.Investments in Subsidiaries 18. RMIB AR HIRE
Company
¥ /N
2013 2012
—E-=5F —T—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBT T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE_ET IR « FRAAR 337,830 337,830
Advances to subsidiaries B FHE R A 1,257,070 1,264,528
1,594,900 1,602,358

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are listed in note

4 above.

The amounts advanced to the subsidiaries
the investments in subsidiaries above are

T2MBARNFFBER EXHE4Z5)

included in B THIB R RRFIBEIAMBARIKE -
unsecured, ZFE TR R B R EE T EE

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

19.Investments in Associates

19. A& N B E

Group
rEH
2013 2012
—E—= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
Share of net assets EEEEFE 18,657 12,224
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19.Investments in Associates

(continued)

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#FRMisE

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

19. RS N BNIRE (&

TRBENFFFBOT

Percentage
Place of of ownership
incorporation/ interest
Particulars of registration and attributable
Name issued shares held business to the Group Principal activities
rEEE
R/ R h A gD
=L FRERTROFE EEHH Bk EEEK
MSB Manufacturing Ordinary shares of Malaysia 40%  Manufacture and sale of
Sdn.Bhd.* RM1 each lead-acid batteries
SREEISAN  BRASD WERHEUEEE
Leoch Accupower (m) Ordinary shares of Malaysia 40%  Manufacture and sale of
Sdn.Bhd.* RM1 each lead-acid batteries
BREEISTH BRAE BENHERBRES)
gl
Master Electronics Ordinary shares of Hong Kong 35% Manufacture and sale of
Group Limited* US$1 each lead-acid batteries
BREEIETH e SERHERRES)
TR

* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

The Group’s shareholdings in the associates are held
through wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

AP

. W IR BB LK G 5T R E 5 FT o K Z 5T AD
EBMEHBRE e B EHAER

AEBBBARNBZ2EMBRRERER
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31 December 2013
—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

19.Investments in Associates

19. REEERBIMNIRE (&)

(continued)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TREMAEREE AR (BEFMSWIFE
information of the Group’s associates that are not RIMEHIEER
individually material:
2013 2012
—_Eg—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
Assets BE 80,091 47,645
Liabilities =R 36,729 16,793
Revenues & 29,898 29,052
Profits (Loss) wm A (E1E) 986 (748)
20.Available-for-sale Investment 20. Al HERE
2013 2012
—Eg—= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Unlisted equity investment, at cost ELETRARE IR 10,500 -

As at 31 December 2013, the unlisted equity n=
investment with a carrying amount of RMB10,500,000
was stated at cost less impairment as the directors
believed that its carrying amount approximates its fair
value. The Group does not intend to dispose of it in the
near future.

Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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31 December 2013
—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

21.Financial Assets and Liabilities  21. /Aﬁﬁ“ﬁﬁ“ TABRNE
at Fair Value Through Profit or EEREE
Loss
2013 2012
—_Eg—= —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Forward currency contracts BRHEBEYN ARET R AREFIT
Financial assets at fair value though IR EEE-E RPN =E )
profit or loss SREE 10,484 5,215
Financial liabilities at fair value though NAEBEEHT ABEN
profit or loss EA =R (5,117) -
5,367 5,215
Non-current portion: FERNEAER D
Financial assets at fair value though AREEEHT ABRZN
profit or loss TREE - 5,215
Current portion: BN ERER 5 -
Financial assets at fair value though AR BEEHT ABREN
profit or loss TREE 10,484 S
Financial liabilities at fair value though AREEZHT AEBREN
profit or loss TRBE (5,117) -

5,367




154"

d

Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&3FRMisE

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

22 .Equity Investments at Fair Value 22.2 A&

SEETABRREIR

Through Profit or Loss rRE
2013 2012
—E—= —_=—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Listed equity investments, at fair value: ERARE AR EE:
Hong Kong BB - 935

As at 31 December 2012, the listed equity investments
were classified as held for trading and were, upon

R=—F——

FH—A=1—8  LHRE

DRBFER S WRTHERIL  HAKE

initial recognition, designated by the Group as financial EERARBEEH ABRNERMEE-
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
. A
23.Inventories 23. 78
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R ARBFTT
Raw materials JR#E 96,137 156,936
Work in progress ER S 454,361 376,634
Finished goods YPK 0B 171,795 313,524
722,293 847,094

On 31 December 2013, inventories in the amount of
RMB102,322,000 (2012: Nil) were written down to their
net realisable value as disclosed in note 7.
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24.Trade and Bills Receivables

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

24. BZ RWHRIEAR BREE

Group
rE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —_g—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFIT
Trade receivables B 5 MW GRIA 1,071,028 933,809
Bills receivable FEW R IR 34,783 39,623
Less: Impairment provision B R B (13,284) (15,507)
1,092,527 957,925

The Group grants different credit periods to customers.
The credit period of individual customers is considered
on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers are
required to make partial payment before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables of
RMB80,381,000 (2012: RMB26,277,000) were under
short term credit insurance and RMB50,502,000 (2012:
RMB27,833,000) under letters of credit. In addition,
the Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had pledged
certain trade and bills receivables amounting to
RMB21,959,000 (2012: RMB67,185,000) to banks
with recourse in exchange for cash (note 36). The
proceeds from pledging the trade and bills receivables
of RMB38,921,000 (2012: RMB52,134,000) were
accounted for as collateralised bank advances until the
bills were collected or the Group made good of any
losses incurred by the banks (note 30).

AEEREFETFTTIRANGEER - SEAE
FPREEHEZ BT & TEFPERIN
AT R AR EL B MR - AR EEREH
TIREEE M EUGRIB M 35 BRI H W=
PERZEERR UWREEERR AT
BEeTHERABRRTNESR BRI
FIAH AR ¥80,381,000T (Z T — —%F:
AR #26,277,0007T) % 52 Hi{5 AR B AR PR
& AR#50502,0007T (ZE——F: AR
27,833,0007T) BISZ{Z B RR « thoh - NEE
BMERZEEHFE TR R SERE A
EERAENE - B S RBFIB AT R -

R-Z—=F+_"A=+—8 A£EEMAIR
THRPETEERENE HERGRIERER
=i SR A ARMK21,950000T (ZT——=
& AR¥67,1850007T) - AR E (5T
36) - IFE 5 EUGRIA K B Z B ATS 3K
B AREES8921,000T (ZE—=—F: AR¥
52,134,0007T) H5EB MR RITBFK -EE
ZEERBREBL S ANEERFRITEENT
] &8 A& LE (F3E30) ©
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31 December 2013
—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

24.Trade and Bills Receivables

(continued)

An aging analysis of the trade and bills receivables as
at 31 December 2013 and 2012 based on the invoice

date, net of provisions, is as follows:

Outstanding balances with ages:

Hi Ot =54 ) BRI DA :

ARECTEIA TEERARER

24. B ZRWFIAN BN EE
(/l's

TRBSIR -2 =FR-B——F =7
=+ — RE SRR R R R A

Group

TEE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —FE-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®ET T
Within 90 days 90H A 852,160 703,044
91 to 180 days 912180H 133,394 191,659
181 to 365 days 181£365H 78,210 23,251
1 to 2 years 12246 23,469 35,699
Over 2 years 2EPA F 5,294 4,272
1,092,527 957,925

Movements in the provision for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

5 YK

TR ER N EBETIT -

Group
AEE
2013 2012
—_E—= —EBE——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETFTT
At 1 January w—A—H 15,507 7,780
Impairment losses (reversed) recognised (@) #E 2R (E & 18
(note 7) (FF3ET) (2,223) 7,727
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 13,284 15,507
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24.Trade and Bills Receivables

(continued)

Included in the above provision for impairment
of trade receivables is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables of RMB13,284,000 (2012:
RMB15,507,000) with a carrying amount before
provision of RMB13,284,000 (2012: RMB15,507,000).

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables
relates to individual customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables that are not expected to
be recoverable. These balances were fully provided for.

The bills receivable are due to mature within 180 days
from 31 December 2013.

An analysis of trade and bills receivables that were not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

4. B 5 EUFK

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

AR EWEE

(/lla

B ZRRFEREREREENRESE
%FW K IE 5 A R #613,284,0007T (=&
fi,AE%waﬁmmm BHERIAREE
BAREE13284,000T (ZE——F: AR
15,507,0007T ) °

R 5 MR TR B R B S B P 1A B R Y
ERIEF AR - %% UG IR TR A
B WEEH 2 EREE

BREBER T —=FF+—_H=1+—Hi5"
180H W E|H -

WR AT & HIBERN S 5 BT IE MBI
SEOMWT

Group
rEE
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®BFTT
Neither past due nor impaired AR ER IR AR RUE 1,063,762 910,026
Past due within three months BHAREBB=[A
but not impaired MARBIE 28,765 47,899

1,092,527 967,925
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31 December 2013
“F-ZFt-A=t-H

24.

Trade and Bills Receivables
(continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large numbers of diversified customers that
have not had a history of default recently.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good payment track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, the directors believe that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality of the customers and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.

24.

515 WO 8 W

REE TR ARBE R RUGRIRS S BT HAE )
LHENZEEP -

EEEMERBER BRI TS B % & AR
BERENACHENBLEFEB -ARE
FPEEEBRAES A MERIAAIAE
2uE - RIFBELSR EFAELELE
RS REEREL R E B

25.Prepayments, Deposits and 5. AN RMIE FIE R HMEW
Other Receivables FHIE
Group Company
PN | b
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —ET——F —E-—= —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%BTn | ARBTE AR®¥TR ARETET
Prepayments SCANE S 29,730 91,933 - -
Prepaid land lease payments 81 + it f & 708
(note 16) (FFzE16) 1,624 1,686 - -
Interest receivables JE W A1 B, 9,401 12,453 9,399 12,267
Deposits and 3
other receivables H 4 e W 58 18,314 24,456 - =
59,069 130,528 9,399 12,267

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.
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31 December 2013
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26.Cash and Bank Balances and 26.%%&&&??%?%1%&7‘5,3}?@

Time Deposits N
Group Company
FEE PN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F —E-—= —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTE ARBTR @ ARETE

Cash and bank balances B RIBITHE % 138,105 52,893 1,725 390
Time deposits EHER 684,803 960,923 400,000 559,650
822,908 1,013,816 401,725 560,040

Less: Pledged for wERE R

interest-bearing RITEER

bank borrowings # (424,026) (620,130) (400,000) (5659,650)

Pledged for bills payable ERER
B $iigi (258,259) (278,380) - -

Pledged for letters of BE#iER
credit E (2,518) (32,413) - =
(684,803) (930,923) (400,000) (559,650)
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BR& RIREHEY 138,105 82,893 1,725 390
Denominated in RMB IAAREGHE 810,972 977,901 401,574 559,663
Denominated in US$ WA TTEHE 4,736 12,106 38 83
Denominated in HK$ A TTEHE 5,243 21,226 113 204
Denominated in EUR ABUTEHE 10 3 - -
Denominated in INR AENEE L EHE 1,509 1,486 - =
Denominated in SG$ PARR DO T EtHE 438 1,094 - -

822,908 1,013,816 401,725 560,040
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31 December 2013
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26.Cash and Bank Balances and 26. e RIRITERUREHZF

. . . =+ E
Time Deposits (continued) M (45
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, ARG BB LREINE - A - IBRIBEHE
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange HNEE BIER G R A5 - S8 RASIE B IRIRE -
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, REEREAE S BRERITIHARE HiRE
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, SNEELAEATINE 75

the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on FRIFITHIRS RS AIRITTERFIERMNZH)
daily bank deposit rates. Pledged deposits earn interest BRI E S ERERIZE B EHFE
at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances BREUF B - RITE B REREREFALE
and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy B RS EEERTRRIT

banks with no recent history of default.

27.Trade and Bills Payables 2. EZENRERESNRE

Group
AEE

2013 2012

—_E—= —E——4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Trade payables =Y ANE 336,427 269,799

Bills payable NS 731,231 737,136

1,067,658 1,006,935
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—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

27.Trade and Bills Payables 27. ESENFER BN EE
(continued) (#&)
An aging analysis of the trade and bills payables as at RBERR B HRENFIBRENZIRIEE
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice FHERRER AT :
date, is as follows:
Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E-=F —Fg—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREF T
Within 90 days 90H X 817,411 300,133
91 to 180 days 91£180H 204,420 673,507
181 to 365 days 1812365H 34,824 14,686
1 to 2 years 1224 8,968 11,753
2 to 3 years 2&E34F 1,622 795
Over 3 years BBl 413 6,061
1,067,658 1,006,935

Pledged assets for bills payable are
below.

listed in note 36

FEN SRR R E ERN T X625
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28.0ther Payables and Accruals

29.

28. H B RIEN BT EH

Group Company
r&EE b N/N|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F —E-= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR @ ARBTE AR%®Tx AR®TRT
Payables for purchase of BEVE BER
items of property, HEEBEER
plant and equipment e 5108 66,048 49,937 - -
Advances from customers EEEMR 59,865 60,455 - =
Accrued expenses JEETF X 45,943 25,689 - =
Accrued payroll EETTE 65,591 34,438 - -
Deferred government grants — 3% {E B2 i 4 Bh
current portion — B D 676 676 - -
Provision for social insurance 4+ & 1# & &
and retirement benefits RINEFIEAE 94,142 55,265 - =
Provision for product EmRERE
warranties 5,716 - - -
Others Hith 31,735 16,618 361 47
369,716 243,078 361 47
Balances with Related 29. EAREE N B V&S &R
Companies
Group
rE
2013 2012
—_E—= —EBE——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
Amounts due from related companies & UK BFE A T IR E AR¥ET R ARBFIT
Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co., Ltd. 7311 35 P8 &8 55 R il
BRAA] 2 658
Shenzhen Marxon Power Supply Co., Ltd. &I T B a% EIRF i
BRRAA 6,010 5,682
MSB Manufacturing Sdn.Bhd. MSB Manufacturing Sdn.Bhd. 109 1,022
6,121 7,362
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29.Balances with Related
Companies (continued)

31 December 2013

—F-=%+-A=+-H

29 . EHEFE N B &EER (A&

Group
TEE
2013 2012
—E—-=F —=E—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
Amounts due to related companies EBEQTNRIE AR¥T T AREEF T
Leoch Accupower (m) Sdn.Bhd. Leoch Accupower (m)
SDN. BHD. 10,038 -
Master Electronics Group Limited Master Electronics
Group Limited 22 -
Shanghai Donmin Vehicle Co., Ltd. FBRBREEBEFRE A A 2,568 49
Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle BRIEAR BRI
Co., Ltd. BRAA] 8,132 13,187
Shenzhen Marshell Green Power Co., Ltd. JRYIIEFER EEE SR A7) 10,632 195
Shanghai Leoch Power Supply Co., Ltd.  E#E+ERRIZERE
BRAA] 203 —
31,595 13,431

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, all balances were
trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The related companies other
than MSB Manufacturing Sdn.Bhd., Leoch Accupower
(m) Sdn.Bhd. and Master Electronics Group Limited
are controlled by Mr. Dong Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company. MSB Manufacturing Sdn.
Bhd., Leoch Accupower (m) Sdn.Bhd. and Master
Electronics Group Limited are associates of the Group
(note 19).

The details of the transactions with related companies
are disclosed in note 39.

RZB—=FR-_F-—_F+A=+—
FOFEEH#RERESIEE EEAR 2
BREEEERM ZFMBERNF (MSB
Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd. * Leoch Accupower
(m) Sdn.Bhd. 52 Master Electronics Group Limited
BROMNBEARREZTRERBRREF LA
%24l MSB Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd. » Leoch
Accupower (m) Sdn.Bhd. X Master Electronics
Group Limited 4 7% & B 6y Bt & 2 7] (MY &
19) °

BRRE N RN R S af BRI TESOHK 5
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30.Interest-bearing Bank

Borrowings

30 sTEERITEE

Group
RE
2013 2012
—Eg-= —ET——F
Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
HE AR®Tx FE  ARETR
Current BNHA
Interest-bearing bank FFERITEE
borrowings, secured BHEA 2014 1,144,220 2013 1,155,981
Collateralised bank advances, B EIFRITEZ -
secured b=giigic 2014 38,921 2013 52,134
1,183,141 1,208,115
Non-current JEENER
Interest-bearing bank AERITIEE
borrowings, secured BHEA 2017-2028 39,376 2014-2020 186,433
39,376 186,433
1,222,517 1,394,548
Denominated in RMB AARESHE 697,300 683,695
Denominated in US$ AETTEHE 303,841 309,592
Denominated in HK$ A TTEHE 198,124 379,147
Denominated in SG$ LAFT I3 At E 23,252 1,131
Denominated in EUR AR T ETE - 20,983
1,222,517 1,394,548
Interest rates per annum: FR 0.95% to 1.00% to
7.80% 7.84%
0.95%% 1.00% %
7.80% 7.84%
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30.Interest-bearing Bank
Borrowings (continued)

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

30 FTEIRITEE (&

Company
PN
2013 2012
—E—-= —E-—fF
Maturity RMB’000 Maturity RMB’000
Y AR%Trx 3 ARBTL
Current A
Interest-bearing bank FFERITEE
borrowings, secured BHEA 2014 373,778 2013 362,473
Non-current JERNHA
Interest-bearing bank ARRITEEE
borrowings, secured BHEA - 2014 156,068
373,778 518,541
Denominated in US$ WA TTEHE 195,756 200,131
Denominated in HK$ LA TTEHE 178,022 318,410
373,778 518,541
Interest rates per annum: FF=K 1.00% to 1.00% to
2.40% 2.40%
1.00% % 1.00% %

2.40% 2.40%
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30.Interest-bearing Bank
Borrowings (continued)

30 FTEWRITEE (&)

Analysed into: AT :
Group Company
rEE RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-= —E——-F —E-= —E2——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR | ARBTE AR%Tx ARBTE
Bank loans and advances AREMNRITENR
repayable: S ETE
Within one year —FR 1,183,141 1,208,115 373,778 362,473
In the second year FE_F 6,640 156,068 - 156,068
In the third to fifth years, EF=FEFRF-
inclusive BEEEME 11,702 9,565 - -
Beyond five years REF% 21,034 20,800 - -
1,222,517 1,394,548 373,778 518,541

The Group’s secured bank borrowings are secured by
the following pledge or guarantees:

(i) Pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value of
RMB1,045,131,000 (2012: RMB1,209,722,000)
for the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 36.

(i)  Cross guarantees executed by companies within

the Group.
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31.Deferred Tax 31. IRIERLIE

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities TRAFNELEHREEERBENEEIER
during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets FEiEHREEE

Depreciation
and Equipment
Provision for impairment invested in
impairment of property, subsidiaries Unpaid  Provision for
of trade plant and with revalued Unused payrolland  impairment of Unrealised
receivables equipment Tax losses amount tax credit accruals inventories profit Total
SELEMN
E5EUTE  NX HER RERKELT ARIER
BERE REAERAE HEkR %% RBAREES B8R FEAERE FERER At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Group s ARETT AREFT NRETFT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ANRETFT ARBTFT ARETT
(Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-Z%-A-HK
1 January 2012 ERERRAELR 754 2426 3300 - - 2135 - - 8615
Deferred tax credited to profit orloss ~ F AT ABRRMELTHE
during the year 1,863 4513 18,319 6,201 2811 822 = 4,924 39,463
Gross deferred tax assets
at 31 December 2012 and
1 January 2013 2617 6,939 21,619 6,201 2811 2,957 - 4,924 48,068
Deferred tax credted (charged) to
profit or loss during the year (1,498) 521 2,925 (194) (1473 6,999 6,198 3,992 17,476

Gross deferred tax assets “3-=F+-R=1-HRE
at 31 December 2013 EREAELE 1,119 7,466 24,544 6,007 12338 9,956 6,198 8916 65,544
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31.Deferred Tax (continued)

31 IEFERLIE (#&)

Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAE
Capitalised
interest
expense Others Total
BRI
FIEBEX Hth et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Group AEE AREFTT ARETFT AR®FTT
Gross deferred tax liabilites HR-Z——F—H—HH
at 1 January 2012 BIEHIEAERE 4,209 - 4,209
Deferred tax charged to FRNRBEERERN
profit or loss during the year & JEF¢ 18 4,730 - 4,730
Gross deferred tax liabilites MR =—ZF——4F
at 31 December 2012and +ZA=+—HK
1 January 2013 —E—=F—H—HH
REHIEAERE 8,939 - 8,939
Deferred tax charged to FAMKBEEERD
profit or loss during the year  iEEFi 18 2,694 914 3,608
Gross deferred tax liabilites R =—ZF—=4
at 31 December 2013 +ZA=+—AHH
BETHIARERE 11,633 914 12,547
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31.Deferred Tax (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong
and Mainland China of RMB92,018,000 (2012:
RMB60,928,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2013, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future
and therefore, no deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

31 December 2013
—2—=%+=-A=+—H

1IEER TR (&

7% B A R R B PO Hh 2 A OB 5 48
AR #92,0180007 (= E— =4 : ARH
60,928,0007T) + % 3XVA Al 4 R A F A 4R
H IR 2 RN SRR SRR T - PSR
1879 B AR — RS B B A T A
SO SRR A - RERATA
A4 IR BRI AT AR B PO BB B A A

RIBFBIMBRMAEIE - 1 BRI A5
BRECERINEREET IR EARI0%
BRFENH - ZREH—_FTN\F—A—H
RERPERARN —TTLF+-_A=1+—H
Z A&V BRI - firp B s BRSNE IR E E R R A
RRBITHSHE  ERBERINGE - 51
REE S BAT R R5%810% ° Fith » A
S BB B IR B A TR A 7%
R-ZTZFN\F—H—BEMFEFMmHADIK
PR BB TRHNAR ©

N E—=F+-A=+—B TERAEEF
e B RRER S T B A RIR R E L &R (B
FANTEIIR) R R TE IR ERIE LR IH - &
ERE ZEMB AN BRI KD
&M AmR T —=F R T ——-F+=
A=+ —B¥ AR EREEHBAE-

BErEBREMERAT
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32.Share Capital 32. I’}
2013 2012
—E-=5F —Eg—=
Authorised: JATE ¢
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 10,000,000,0000%
HK$0.1 each (HK$'000) FREE1IEITHY
TR (FAET) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEERTRHR:
1,337,075,000 (2012: 1,335,637,000) 1,337,075,0000%
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (Z2—=—F:
(HK$'000) 1,335,637,0000% )
R EEO. 15T i
EBR (F5ET) 133,708 133,564
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARETT 114,551 114,455
During the year, the movements in authorised and FR - EEMBEITRAZESH T
issued share capital were as follows:
Number of
sE:::ensaz Nominal value of
ordinary shares
HK$0.10 each \
010 cach EERNEE
0.103% T HK$'000 RMB’000
ERREE FHT ARBF T
Authorised: ETE
As at 31 December 2013 RZE—=FK
and 2012 —T—=F
+Z-ZA=+—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 858,008
Issued: BE{T:
As at 1 January 2013 and R-E—=%F
31 December 2012 —H H )54
‘|‘ A= ‘l' H 1,335,637,000 133,564 114,455
Share options exercised FACBTHERE
during the year (i) 1,438,000 144 96
RZE—=F
As at 31 December 2013 +-RA=+—H 1,337,075,000 133,708 114,551
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32.Share Capital (continued)

U)

The subscription rights attaching to 1,438,000
share options were exercised at the subscription
prices of HK$0.20 to HK$0.80 per share, resulting
in the issue of 1,438,000 shares of HK$0.10 each
for a total cash consideration, before expenses,
of HK$431,000 (equivalent to RMB311,000). An
amount of RMB1,736,000 was transferred from
the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

33.Share Option Schemes

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a pre-IPO share option
scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible persons who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible
persons of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
include the Company’s directors and other
employees of the Group. The Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme became effective on 1 June 2010
and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, approved by written resolutions of
the Company passed on 25 May 2010, are as
follows:

@)  The grantees

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is
available to the directors and employees
(whether full time or part time) of any
member of the Group.

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

2. AN (48

() 1,438,00007 BB AR AEREFT MO RRIBE B 1R T
1%0.20% 7T 20.80/8 LA R B EITF
B3 171,438,0000% FAXE{E0.10/E 7T
BIRR D - RIBRABER B ER SR E
#3431,0007% 7T (8 F R A K #311,000
L) o BEARIEIET TR & - ARH1,736,000
TR ERREREERERERNDRER
ﬁq °

k

33. BB FEST 2
1) BERAMBEMBERESS

p=]]]

ARAPIEEE R AR E SR BRHERT 2
(IERARABRENBRESE]) 54
AHAEENKINEEERERNEE
RALTRERBMEE - EALHEE
RIBERE SN A ER AL BREART]
MEFERARENEMES - BRARH
BENBRE SN T —TF A
AR FRIERITRHIIERTIN TR
REZEE—BEERFeo

BRAFREERBRER 80X 25K
RARRR-_F—ZFFAA-+HAR
BB EDRERIE - R T

(@ AEA

BRAFEERRBRE B
HFIAKEEAKERARNES
KEE (TimzReaRi) -
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

(b)  Maximum number of shares to be allotted

The maximum number of the shares in
respect of which options may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be 60,000,000 shares representing
approximately 4.5% of the total issued share
capital of the Company immediately after
completion of the global offering, taking no
account of the exercise of the over-allotment
option.

(c)  Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of each
share under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is determined by the board of
directors at its discretion and set out in the
relevant offer letters provided that it should
not be less than the nominal value of the
shares.

(d)  Duration of the Scheme

After 28 October 2010, no further options
will be offered or granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but in other respects
the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect
to the extent necessary to give effect to
the exercise of any options granted prior
thereto or otherwise as may be required in
accordance with the provisions of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme, and options
which are granted on or before 28 October
2010 may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

(continued)

(€

Exercise period and vesting period

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

33. BB Ix st &l (&)

(1) BRLFABRERNERESTS
(&)

(e)

Options granted on 1 June 2010 under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme can only be

exercised in the following manner:

Exercise period

1T £

Maximum percentage
of options exercisable
A FITREBREN
BEHEDL

TR R 7B 5
RIBEERAFRBERBRETS

R-ZF-—ZFA—BARLENE
PRAEIEATHRIA S T ST ATT(E

Vesting period

5 &

Anytime during the 10 years after

the second anniversary of
the date of offer of the options
(the “Offer Date”)

REREENBRH (EREH])
BE ZIBFR T FREAERE

Anytime during the 9 years after
the third anniversary of
the Offer Date

REBHAHRNEZRAFR
FVF A B A

Anytime during the 8 years after
the fourth anniversary of
the Offer Date

REH BN FENBFR
N\ AT

Anytime during the 7 years after
the fifth anniversary of
the Offer Date
REBLRPNERRFR
= F A E{R] R [

25% of the total number of
options granted

B X H B U 48 B925%

25% of the total number of
options granted

B X H BB AU 48 B25%

25% of the total number of
options granted

B IR BB I A B 25%

25% of the total number of
options granted

B IR BB I 4 B i25%

Up to the date immediately
before the second
anniversary of
the Offer Date

HEEEZEZHNBEHN
FEIBFRIERAL

Up to the date immediately
before the third
anniversary of
the Offer Date

HEZZZHHEBD
FEZIBAFRERARL

Up to the date immediately
before the fourth
anniversary of
the Offer Date

BEEZZZHHEBD
FIAFRIE B AL

Up to the date immediately
before the fifth anniversary
of the Offer Date

HEERZHBEHN
FEHBFAERMILE
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

(e)  Exercise period and vesting period

®

(continued)

Options granted on 14 October 2010 under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme can only
be exercised in the following manner:

3. AEnT &l (/&)

(1) BXRLFERENERETS
(4&)

e TTRHREGEE (&)
RIBFERAFRBERBERET S

N—F—FE+A+mARLD
BEETRA T AR AT

Exercise period

1T £

Maximum percentage
of options exercisable
A FIT B RS
BEHEDL

Vesting period

5 %

Anytime during the 10 years after
the first anniversary of
the Offer Date
REBLXHRBNE —RFE
+ 6 A ] B P

Anytime during the 9 years after
the second anniversary of
the Offer Date

REL) B E —BFE
UV AR faT B i)

Anytime during the 8 years after
the third anniversary of
the Offer Date

RENBENE=ZRBFEN\FAN
1 {m] B ]

Exercise of options

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

BIR R EAHA1/3

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

BIR R E A HA1/3

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

BIR R E A HA1/3

®

Any exercise of an option granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is subject to
conditions as may be specified in the offer
letter in respect of the grant of options.

Share options do not confer rights on
the holders to dividends or to vote at

shareholders’” meetings.
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Up to the date immediately
before the first anniversary
of the Offer Date

BEEEERZHNBEHN
E—RFAERRL

Up to the date immediately
before the second
anniversary of
the Offer Date

HEZEZHNBEHN
FEBEFRIERAL

Up to the date immediately
before the third
anniversary of
the Offer Date

HEZEZHNBEHN
EZRFAERRL

TTRIBIRIE
TTERIR B IR A 5 3% & Al B AR

At B B R AR AT T (E RE A AR
R B RS FTHIRR Z iR {2

PR A T a5 A AERAR S
SAEBRRAE ERFZRRER
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—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

33.Share Option Schemes .IEMRESTE (&)
(continued)
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (1) BRAHBREBRESS
(continued) (#&)
() Exercise of options (continueq) 0 TR (E)
On 1 June 2010, an aggregate of RZZE—ZFFHA—H AR
37,680,000 share options under the Pre- ANMEBEERASEN14451E
IPO Share Option Scheme were issued BEITHE X AR ERBARET
to two directors of the Company and 144 £ T~ & ££37,680, OOOT\ﬁ%Hx%"
employees of the Group. On 14 October RZZE-—ZFF+ATIA AE
2010, another 1,500,000 share options E-—RTEZEBABEETER
under the Pre-IPO Share Scheme were NHZEERBRERTEIE TSI
issued to a key management personnel of 1,500,000(0 fEfxE - R=ZE— =4
the Group. The exercise prices and exercise += H +—HB - mERITEERA
periods of the Pre-IPO Share Options FEERERENITEERITE
outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as Hﬁ%@ W' NE
follows:

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BREZE BRITEE TES
1,500,000 HK$5.0 14 October 2011 to 14 October 2021

5.07% 7T —E——F+ATNAE=E=-—F+A+NEA
2,418,000 HK$0.2 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.28 7T TR A-—HBHE-_E-_—_F,A—H
1,880,000 HK$0.4 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

04387 - —FRA-HE-Z-—FXA—H
805,000 HK$0.6 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.6 7T —FERNA-BEZE__FxA—H
2,093,000 HK$0.8 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

0.8%& T ZE-ZFAA-REZZT=F1A—H
4,528,000 HK$1.0 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.0 7T R A-HEZZT--F,~F—H
1,840,000 HK$1.2 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.287C —E——FRA-HBHE_E-_—_F,A—H
3,680,000 HK$1.4 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.4%87C T A-HBE-_E-_—F,A—H
2,740,000 HK$1.6 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.6/87C E—_FX A-HE-_Z-__F,A—H
4,390,000 HK$1.8 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

1.8/8 7T —E-——FXA-HBE-ZE-_—_F,A—H
4,780,000 HK$2.0 1 June 2012 to 1 June 2022

2.08 7T T —FRNA-HBEZE-_—_F,A—H

30,654,000
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31 December 2013
“F-ZFt-A=t-H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM fERTE (&)
(continued)
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (1) BRABBERBRESE
(continued) (#&)
(fl  Exercise of options (continueq) (N FTIERBAHE (&)
Fair value of share options: BN A EE
Average
fair value on Recognised in expense
Grant date Total shares  grantdate  Total value 2013 2012
REAH BAREX
RitA BRY FHAAEE HEE -B-=F C—B-C-F
HK$ per share RMB RMB RMB
BRAT AR¥ ARE ARE
1 June 2010 —T-ZFA—H 37,680,000 1110 36,684,000 983,000 8,009,000
14 October 2010 —E-TF
+A+MA 1,500,000 0.381 491,000 (446,000) 120,000

39,180,000

37,175,000 537,000 8,129,000
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

®

Exercise of options (continueq)

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share
Options granted was estimated as at
the date of grant by Jones Lang LaSalle
Sallmanns Limited, an independent firm of
professionally qualified valuers, using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

3. REnt &l (/&)

(1) BRLFAEBRERNERETS
(&)

O TR (E)

PR B R R EERBREDN
ARAEE RERL BB ER
BERMAEMPERITAMAR
NRIERA ZIBA R - WEE
132 o R RO PIT A 9 B AR SR B fR 1
M TAE » TREFIRMAERL

the terms and conditions upon which the Frig ARVERL
options were granted. The following table
lists the inputs to the model used:
Grant date
el =
1 June 14 October
2010 2010
—E-FF —T-FTF
A~H—H +AHTIA
Exercise price (HK$ per share) 17{EE (FRBT) 0.2-2.0 5.0
Expected dividend yield (%) TEHARR B K (%) - =
Expected volatility (%) T8 HA R 18 (%) 62.47 49.24
Risk-free interest rate (%) 41 8 i ) 2 (%) 3.64 212
Expected life of share options ~ TEHARE RS AE HY F 5 (48 )
(years) 10 10
Weighted average share price A% i B 889 hnig F 5% (E
at grant date (HK$ per share) (BB IT) 1.667 1.600
The expected life of the Pre-IPO Share BRAARAEERERENTEHFHALE

FIRE AT TER LA EIR - TRHTK IR AR 4
—ERBRERER-

Options is not necessarily indicative of
the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility may not necessarily
reflect the actual outcome.

ERDBRENEBFRLERAARR
EBENFTEAR-

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.
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31 December 2013
“F-ZFt-A=t-H

33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

() Exercise of options (continued)

The following share options were

33.

BIRRESTE (&)

(1) BXRAHBEIBRESTS
(#&)
O 7TIERRE ()

AT RFERBREEE T RA

outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option ITEER R AR HE
Scheme during the year:
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
ME¥H 15
@ BREZE TeE BREHA
HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share '000
BRET T4 SRABT T
At 1 January R—A—H 1.38 35,062 1.31 39,180
Forfeited during the year R4 1.08 (2,970) 1.20 (1,815)
Exercised FRTRE
during the year 0.30 (1,438) 0.41 (2,303)
At 31 December RTZA=t—H 1.46 30,654 1.38 35,062

The weighted average share price at the
date of exercise for share options exercised
during the year was HK$0.89 per share
(2012: HK$0.41 per share).
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(continued)

®

Exercise of options (continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Company
had outstanding Pre-IPO Share Options
for the subscription of 30,654,000
shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately
2.3% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at that date. The exercise
in full of the outstanding Pre-IPO Share
Options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 30,654,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional
share capital of HK$3,065,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,410,000) and share premium
of HK$41,690,000 (equivalent to
RMB32,677,000), before related issuance
expenses.

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

33. B It &l (&)

(1) BRLFEBRERNERESTS
(#&)

®

TTIEREIRHE (48)

RZE—=%+=—H=+—8"

RARBEERTEERAAREE
AIEARIE T REBEAAREE
Ail 5 I 1 51 2118 530,654,0000%
B HEREARAGTREBME
BT AR HI2.3% © IRIBFA D AIHY
MBERALRRE  2EITERTE
BRAARBEEIBRESEHE
1372|130, 654,000/% 58I E 37
B fn » LA R BEINIRAN3,065,00078
7T (FBE R AR ¥2,410,0007T)
K2 B% 153 % 1841,690,000/% 7T (48
£ A R#32,677,0007T) (#
BrIEEAEE TR AT ©
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31 December 2013
“F-ZFt-A=t-H

33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

(continued)

(@) Movements in the Company’s share options

33. BB It El (

&)

(1) BRLFEBERNRERESTS
(#&)

@ ARFIERNFIEERIERESE

under Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme VNN g e
Number of share options
BRENE
Name of category At 1 January Exercised Forfeited At 31 December Date of grant  Exercise period Exercise price
of participant SHEERER 2013 during the year  during the year 2013 of share options o share options of share option
RZB-Z% R-B-Z%
-B-A ERTE ERER  TZAST-R  BRERLAE BREGCES BREGRE
HKS per share
BRAT
Directors =
Ms. Zhao Huan fiil e 1,500,000 = = 1,500,000 1June 2010 1June 201210 1 June 2022 1.4
“2-%F ZT--fxR-BZ
~A-R “B-Z%5A-H
Mr. Philip Amstrong ~ Philip Armstrong 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 1June 2010 1June 201210 1 June 2022 20
Noznesky Noznesky’t & “2-%F -5 A-HE
~A-R “B-Z%5A-H
3,000,000 = = 3,000,000
Other employees EltfEE
In aggregate #it 32,062,000 (1,438,000) (2.970,000) 27,654,000 1June 2010 14 October 2011 to 021050
1 June 2022
“2-2F  Z5——FfA{MAZ 02250
~A-R ZBZE5A-H
35,062,000 (1,438,000) (2,970,000) 30,664,000
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31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM fERT S (&)

(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (2) BERETE

The Company operates a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which was
approved and adopted by the written resolutions
of all the shareholders of the Company passed
on 14 October 2010 for the purpose of providing
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote
the interests of, the Group and for such other
purposes as the board of directors may approve
from time to time. Eligible persons of the Scheme
include any director or employee (whether full
time or part time), consultant or advisor of the
Group who, in the sole discretion of the board of
directors, has contributed to or will contribute to
the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
are as follows:

@) The grantees
The Share Option Scheme is available to the

directors and employees (whether full time
or part time) of any member of the Group.

ARRET - ABRETE ([BR
BEE) BARBMERRR -F
—EFETATHBRBNERRER
HERES BERNASAKEFELER
BETEEhREAAEENE 2B E
RATRUHBEBIRE A/EFS
PR ENEMB O -FFENEER
ATEREFELER/EYAKY
AENwmEEL BN ASEEME
SEE (2RSFRE) - R SH
Ao

BT SR E 2RI T

@@ AEA

AR BI TYIR T A E B
REAFMEERES (THh2
B ) -
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)
(@  The grantees (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In
addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time or with an aggregate value (based
on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and
reporting requirements.

(b)  Maximum number of shares to be allotted

The maximum number of unexercised share
options currently permitted to be granted
under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes, must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under
share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and
reporting requirements.
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33.fBIx kst &l (&)

(2 ERERTE (&)

@)

©)

5 I -

BFARRESR T ETHAR
LEERRABEENEAMHEA
TR - EE S BUSIERNIT
EENHE N EERA+Z
ERHREE FARRINEZRRE
FBUIENTES IFEENT
{R] B B A - O (] B AR A + fiWi iR
BN N B MR R S B B 1T AR D
M0.1%3k B EBSE & BT (1R
BREE BBRAQFREME
E)E ABEAERRARAE L
ES IR E  WHEBSFA TR
BN BRI

o TACRAIR A LR

T8 R A A B 8 B
BRI 3T T ARTT 6 2 BB AR AT
EREARBZENRS LRE
B TMSRBBAR R PME(AIRRE
B BT B R Z230%  RES
T EAMRE REAERTE
NAaBER2EEZBRER] X
1T 2 = 8 B AR 1
RRARRBEHITRM Z21% °
TR Bl 2 HE—FRHZ
BRRALESERNBERAS
HofE - WIE T HE T HE LRSI
K o
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

)

(@)

Subscription price

The subscription price of share options is
determinable by the directors, but may not
be less than the highest of () the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share
options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of
the shares of the Company. A consideration
of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of the
offer of an option or options.

Duration of the Scheme

The Scheme became effective on 16
November 2010, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from the date of adoption of the Scheme
by shareholders by resolution at a general
meeting.

31 December 2013
—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

33. BB Ix st &l (&)

(2) ERERTE (&)

()

@)

WEIE

BRECABERESSRTE
BEABERORIR L EREZ B
NN B RADERE R P 2 W (B
RHZBEXRL AR AERSA
AR R RADTE B 2 AT 2 U
& Rl 2AaG5 2 EE (A
BB RE) BXBREZLN
B FE S A R .00t R B -

&1 &R AT

SEN - E-FF+—A+AA
SR B BTRBRISITI
SBRENBEARBBAAER
st BB+ F R A
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33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM fERTE (&)

(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued) (2) HBRESTE (£F)

TR EF i 5

(e)  Exercise period and vesting period ©)

Options granted on 22 November 2011
under the Share Option Scheme can only be

exercised in the following manner:

Exercise period

TES

Maximum percentage
of options exercisable
A F TR
BeBESH

REBREAIINR _FT——F
T—AZ+ - EREREREE
AHRATN T AT ATTRE :

Vesting period

BB

Anytime during the five years from
the Offer Date on or after
1 December 2012
REBAORP T ——F
TZA—B®ZERFA
{5 [

Anytime during the five years from
the Offer Date on or after
1 December 2013
REXNBBH_T—=F
TZA—BHZERAFA
(EREEEIH!

Anytime during the five years from
the Offer Date on or after
1 December 2014
REHNBEH-_FT—NF
TZA—BHZERFA
7] B
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1/3 of the total number of
options granted

BIR R EAHA1/3

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

B R R ABm1/3

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

B R H R B A B 1/3

Up to the date immediately
before 1 December 2012

BEBEE_T——F
+—-—FB—HAIEHAIL

Up to the date immediately
before 1 December 2013

HEER_T—=F
+TZ-A—HAERRI

Up to the date immediately

before 1 December 2014

BEBRE T -NE
+—-—A—HAEHAIL
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

€

Exercise period and vesting period

(continued)

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

33. BB Ix st &l (&)

(€

Options granted on 20 November 2013
under the Share Option Scheme can only be

exercised in the following manner:

Exercise period

TES

Maximum percentage
of options exercisable
A FITEBREN
BEBESt

(2) ERERTE (&)

TR R Sl ()

BREBEREAEINR_-_Z—=F

+—AZ+BEREAEREER

BATHRTAITRE:
Vesting period

BES

Anytime during the five years from
the Offer Date on or after
1 December 2014
REHNHR-_ZT—HF
T-A—BH®ZEAFA
(EREEEIN!

Anytime during the five years from
the Offer Date on or after
1 December 2015
REHBEH-_T—RF
TZA—BH®ZERFA
7] B

Anytime during the five years from
the Offer Date on or after
1 December 2016
RBABRBH T —RF
TZA—B®ZERFA
{5 [

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

ER B REER1/3

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

B R H R I A B 1/3

1/3 of the total number of
options granted

BRI E A EHA1/3

Up to the date immediately
before 1 December 2014

EEER-_TNOF
+TZ-A—HAERRBIE

Up to the date immediately
before 1 December 2015
BEEBRE_T—HF

+=—A—HAIEH AL

Up to the date immediately
before 1 December 2016

BEERE_T—RHF
TZA—HAERR/ILE
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

®

Exercise of options

Any exercise of an option granted under
the Share Option Scheme is subject to
conditions as may be specified in the offer
letter in respect of the grant of options.

Share options do not confer rights on
the holders to dividends or to vote at
shareholders’ meetings.

On 22 November 2011, an aggregate
of 15,200,000 share options under the
Share Option Scheme were issued to
three directors of the Company and 205
employees of the Group. On 20 November
2013, another 8,100,000 share options
under the Share Option Scheme were
issued to a non-executive director, a
member of management personnel, and 19
employees of the Group. The exercise prices
and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding at 31 December 2013 are as
follows:
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33.fBIx kst &l (&)

(2 ERERTE (&)

®

TTIEFEIIE

TTERIEB AR B H B AR
AT B ROE AT
AL e R

RN B T A AME#
M UEZAREINBRAE £

it

R_FE——F+—HA=+=8"
MARBN=REERASEN
2054 B BT ESTEI AT
& $£15,200,00017 BB IR - A =
T-—=F+—F=-+B B4
FHITES —BEBEABKE
RASE+NEEBBITHRE
=T Z118 T 3 4h8,100,00017 B A%
BN —E—=F+=_A=+—
H iR TEERENTTEERT
EHAE N T
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33.Share Option Schemes 33. MM fERT S (&)
(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued) (2) EBRESTE (£F)

()  Exercise of options (continueq) N TTEEARE (E)

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
BRERHE BRTEE TEH
12,940,000 HK$2.39 1 December 2012 to 22 November 2016
2398 —T——H+-_A—AH8=%
—E-RE+—HA=+=H
8,100,000 HK$0.90 1 December 2014 to 20 November 2018
0908t Z—ZT—WMNF+=-A—HZE

—F—-N\&F+—H=-+H

21,040,000
Fair value of share options: BRENDAEE:
Average
fair value on
Grant date Total shares grant date Total value Recognised in expense
BB
REBH ARy THULAEE HER BRREX
2013 2012
“E-—=fF “E-ZF
HKS per share RMB RMB RMB
FiET AR® AR® AR®
22 November 2011 15,200,000 0.949 11,775,000 2,522,000 5,611,000
RZZ—F+—-A-+_H
20 November 2013 8,100,000 0.400 2,560,000 178,000 -
RZZ-=F+-A=tH
23,300,000 14,335,000 2,700,000 5,611,000

BErEBREMERAT
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

®

33.fBIx kst &l (&)

(2 ERERTE (&)

Exercise of options (continued) N TTEMERE (E)
The fair value of the share options granted RZE—=F+— A=+ HIK
on 20 November 2013 was estimated as at HEREN AR BE RELAE
the date of grant by management, using the HEEBEERA_EABEER
binomial lattice model, taking into account A I E BRI B R IRIE A
the terms and conditions upon which the R AR AT 5T - T&RE
options were granted. The following table FIERAZ BB R ABYE K
lists the inputs to the model used:
Grant date
®HA
22 November 20 November
2011 2013
T ——%F RZE-=F
+—A=t=H t—-A=+H
Exercise price (HK$ per share) 17{EE (&M ET) 2.39 0.90
Expected dividend vield (%) TEHA AR B 2 (%) 1.54 -
Expected volatility (%) T H R 1@ (%) 66.27 50.28
Risk-free interest rate (%) 42 [ B ) 2= (%) 0.68 1.29
Expected life of share options ~ TEHARERXAE Y F 8 ()
(years) 5 5
Weighted average share price 7% H iRy I F 15
at grant date (HK$ per share)  AX(B (FRET) 2.14 0.90

The expected life of the share options is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected
volatility may not necessarily reflect the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair
value.
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33.Share Option Schemes
(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

®

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

33. BB Ix st &l (&)

(2) ERERTE (&)

Exercise of options (continued) 0 TTRBERE(E)
The following share options were AT RFEABRESEIE T 85
outstanding under the Share Option RITEE AR
Scheme during the year:
2013 2012
—E-=F —E—CF
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options exercise price options
MHEF TG
THE BREZE TH(E EREHE
HK$ HKS
per share "000 per share '000
SR T4 BRET Tin
At 1 January W—H—H 2.39 13,700 2.39 15,200
Granted during the year ERRE 0.90 8,100 - -
Forfeited during the year & A1 2.39 (760) 2.39 (1,500)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 1.82 21,040 2.39 13,700
At 31 December 2013, the Company RZE—=%+=ZA=+—8"
had outstanding share options for the RARHEBRITEERE TR
subscription of 21,040,000 shares under the i B8 Iz 4 5t 818 21,040,000
Share Option Scheme, which represented fEiED  BERALARRNE B
approximately 1.6% of the issued share BEBITRAL1.6% RIEBEAR
capital of the Company as at that date. AIMIRARAEE 2EITFER
The exercise in full of the outstanding THEERESEBHEITAAT
share options would, under the present 21,040,000/% BE /N & @ 1D+ DA
capital structure of the Company, result K EEINIRAN2,104,000 7T (1855
in the issue of 21,040,000 additional R AR 654,0007T ) KI5 %
ordinary shares of the Company and 836,189,000/ 7T (HEN AR
additional share capital of HK$2,104,000 #28,393,0007T ) (¥ Bk #H 78 %
(equivalent to RMB1,654,000) and share TR AL °
premium of HK$36,189,000 (equivalent to
RMB28,393,000), before related issuance
expenses.
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33.Share Option Schemes

(continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (continued)

3.IBIRERTE (&)

(2)

(@) Movements in the Company’s share options

BT El ()
(0) AR BRI BT T ERIE %

under Share Option Scheme 2
Number of share options
BREsE
Name of category At 1 January Granted Forfeited At 31 December Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
of participant 2013 during the year  during the year 2013  of share options of share options of share option
W=B-=F AZB-ZF
SREFNEH -A-A EREH EREAH tZA=t-B BRERLEH BRETES BRETHEE
HKS per share
BRAET
Directors 2
Mr. An Wenbin B RE 300,000 - - 300,000 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 to 2.39
—2——%+-A-+ZH 22 November 2016
2 —%t-f-B%
ZE-r"Et-A=tZH
MrCaoYniong — ENERE 300,000 - - 300,000 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 to 239
ZZ——F+-AZtZE  22November 2016
“3-%1-f-B%
3 Ft-R=TZH
Mr. LiuYangsheng ~ BIB4E%4E 300,000 - - 300,000 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 to 239
ZE—E+-FZ+ZH 22 November 2016
ZE-E4-f-H%
2 r"Et-A=tzH
Mr. Affred Chan Alfred Chan’% 4 = 1,000,000 = 1,000,000 20 November 2013 1 December 2014 to 0.90
“E-=5+-A=tR 20 November 2018
“E2-ME+-A-AEZ
ZZ-N\Ft-A=tH
900,000 1,000,000 - 1,900,000
Otheremployees ~ EftEE
In aggregate #; 12,800,000 - (760,000) 12,040,000 22 November 2011 1 December 2012 to 2.39
“E—F+-F=ftZH 22 November 2016
“E-%1-f-R%
“E-7E+-A-tZH
- 7,100,000 - 7,100,000 20 November 2013 1 December 2014 to 0.90
ZEB-=Et-A=TH 20 November 2018
“E-mE+-f-RZ
2-N\Ft-A=tH
12,800,000 7,100,000 (760,000) 19,140,000
18,700,000 8,100,000 (760,000) 21,040,000
' GRS MERME
34.Note to the Consolidated 4. IR ERBKRMEE
Statement of Cash Flows
- - ——
Major non-cash transactions FEXRERS
There were no significant non-cash transactions during REBE_ZT—=Fk=_FT—Z_F+=A

the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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35.Reserves

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
capital contributions by Mr. Dong Li, a director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to
the subsidiaries directly held by Mr. Dong Li before
the group reorganisation on 8 June 2010.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC Company Law,
the PRC subsidiaries of the Group are required
to allocate 10% of their profit after tax to the
reserve fund until this reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital of the PRC subsidiaries. Subject
to certain restrictions set out in the Company
Law of the PRC, part of the reserve fund may
be converted to increase paid-up capital/issued
capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is
not less than 25% of the registered capital. The
reserve fund of the PRC subsidiaries amounted to
RMB81,132,000 and RMB78,576,000 as at 31
December 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
companies outside the PRC. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 2.4.

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

35. &
(a) R&EHE

AEEAFERBEFENFHHEER
REESBBENETERRNGE R

=N

AEBHAHEBEARRESTRE
BRREFZER_ZTE—ZTFESAN
REHAMABEEZRFENNERR
TE

EENER

RIEFBEARNE NEBHF BB
NRIESEET OB &S F10%E A
EEAES HERRBEAEBEINT
fit & R#950% 4 Lk o £ B A REE]
ARE TRERET  HoEERRE
A FUAERAENEEER B
BATIRAS - MR B AL 18 00 F 64 45 82
AR M E A8I25% o BIF B
NAMATBEER_E—=Fr_F
——F+-A=+—HAAAAR
#81,132,0007T & A K #78,576,000

JG °
VEH KB

PE R B B AR PR E R E A B A
SNABIM SRR MELMNIEL Z5 -
ZIEBRE N T4 B R R
o
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31 December 2013
“F-ZFt-A=t-H

35.Reserves (continued)

(@) Group (continued)

(b)

Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option schemes
and the share options issued under the

35. % (48
(@) ANEE (#F)

)

BRI

BN R EEEST &) R Rat 8%
TR IRERFIS BN M S 3R R MY A

schemes are included in note 33 to the financial 33 °
statements.
Company (b) &XAF
Share Share Proposed
premium  Shareholders’ option  Accumulated final
account  contribution reserve losses dividend Total
BB EERE BRRHER  BRERE ZiEE  BRRERE /it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR AREBTTT ARETT  AR%TRT  ARETRT
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-Z-——4—-A—-ANEH 1,285,012 337,830 18,376 (64,355 21,332 1,508,195
2011 final dividend declared BER=Z——ERHERE 3,967 - - - (21,332) (17,365)
Profit and total comprehensive income 4 RY&H| 2 F1 i 25 42 58
the year - - - 680 - 680
2012 interim and special dividends ZE-CERHRERIRE (54,206) - - - - (54,206)
Exercise of the share options il e 2,872 - (2,294) - - 578
Equity-settled share option IR EBRELH
arrangements - - 13,740 - - 13,740
At 31 December 2012 and RZ2——F+t-A=t-H
1 January 2013 k=%F-=%—-f—-A 1,237,645 337,830 29,822 (63,675) - 1,541,622
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREERZEBEESE
for the year - - - (27,740) - (27,740)
Exercise of the share options 613 iy 1,951 - (1,736) - - 215
Equity-settled share option DY Entact e a7
arrangements - - 3,237 - - 3,237
At 31 December 2013 A=_F—=Ft-fA=1—H 1,239,596 337,830 31,323 (91,419) - 1,617,334
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36.Pledge of Assets

31 December 2013

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

36. & EH

K=2-=£+=A=+-A

Prepaid Property, Trade
land lease plant and Pledged and bills
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
Bt ES T B 5 EWRE
HEHE k&t  BEAEY  REKE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®Tr  AR®TR
(note 16) (note 15) (note 26) (note 24)
(HfzE16) (KzE15) (Ff5E26) (HizE24)
Interest-bearing bank FTERTEE
borrowings (note 30) (P &E30) 37,889 561,257 424,026 21,959 1,045,131
Bills payable (note 27) EREE (Fier) - - 258,259 - 258,259
Issue of letters of credit ~ ZHERE - - 2,518 - 2,518
37,889 561,257 684,803 21,959 1,305,908
31 December 2012 R-ZEBE-——_F+-_HA=+—H
Prepaid Property, Trade
land lease plant and Pledged and bills
payments equipment deposits receivables Total
Bt ER B HRME
HERE k#E BEAER  REKEE CHy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT
(note 16) (note 15) (note 26) (note 24)
(FtzE16) (FtzH15) (Fizk26) (FizH24)
Interest-bearing bank FERTEE
borrowings (note 30) (P #E30) 34,400 488,007 620,130 67,185 1,209,722
Bills payable (note 27) EREE (FiEer) - - 278,380 - 278,380
Issue of letters of credit ~ ZHEFRE - - 32,413 - 32,413
34,400 488,007 930,923 67,185 1,520,515
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—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

37.0Operating Lease Arrangements 7REHELH
(a) As lessor (@ EEALHBA
The Group leases office premises under operating AEBREBELEHEELHELAE T
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for NEYFER i &L= A1 & 8
terms ranging from one to ten years. The terms NF1EZE105F - ?EZ’J—QETEHE)EZE\
of the leases generally also require the tenants X RE® RIRIZE K€ A
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic SELAE-

rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total RZE—=F+-HA=+—H &K
future minimum lease receivables under non- BB IE R E AR F RT3 72 T 71 5 [ 21 87
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling WA HECEHENRRKERE
due as follows: JEUGRIBAREEGN R ¢
Group
AEE
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Within one year 1ER 266 81
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2824 £ 2554 » B EH EMGF 295 155
After five years REF & 18 20
579 256
194 il Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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37.0perating Lease Arrangements
(continued)

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
from its related companies (note 39(c)) and
the independent third parties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to twenty
years.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

37.

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

REHERH (B

(b) fERAEMBEA

REERBECLHAELTHAHEBERN
7] (MIzE39(c)) KB E=HHAET
MAEMERBARB -PAEYWE
FEEEEE RN F1E20F -

RZF-—=ZFFT-A=+—H %%
AR 928 ] o 8 A A R T T 51 B
MR AR R EERE N FARELOT :

Group

E3
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFTT

Within one year 1F R 3,681 4,707
In the second to fifth years, inclusive ZF2F ZEFE55F BIEEHEMF 10,077 10,790
After five years 5 1% 14,298 19,122

28,056 34,619
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—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

38.Commitments

38. L

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 37(b) above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B 3 (B 3137 (0) ) 5 ik 1 45 44 AL R %
Sh - AR 4 HRAE SRS - AN B R AN A A DA
& ARG

Group

rEH
2013 2012
—_E—= —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®EF T

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI AMER B :
Land and buildings T RiEF 7,308 36,623
Plant and machinery R = M Es 21,586 96,037
28,894 132,660
Capital contribution payable for: ERDEER :
Investments in associates B N RIRE - 11,100
Available-for-sale investment (i) At SR E () 24,500 =
24,500 11,100
53,394 143,760

() On 8 June 2013, Jiangsu Leoch entered into
an agreement to invest RMB35,000,000 in an
available-for-sale equity investment. Pursuant to
the agreement, a total of RMB10,500,000 has
been paid as at 31 December 2013 and the
balance of the investment will not become due
until it's called by the general partner managing
the investment. As at 31 December 2013,
RMB24,500,000 has yet to be paid when called.
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39.Related Party Transactions

(@) In addition to the transactions and balances
detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

.BEEALTRS

(@) BAMBEREMHFRNZ IR
BN AEBRBEQARN—FE

Group had the following transactions with related EEFREUNTHRS:
companies and a director during the year:
2013 2012
—E—-= —_F——
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREET T
Purchases from related EEBEAREE (M)
companies (note i)
Shanghai Donmin Vehicle Co., Ltd. EBERMEBHEHRE A G 187 2,059
Shenzhen Marshell Green Power FIEFEREREFR A A
Co., Ltd. 20,909 29,050
Shenzhen Marxon Power Supply YT E R B IR BT
Co., Ltd. BRAHE 1,898 4,059
Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle & 335 78 B E &A%
Co., Ltd. BRAA 5,060 6,120
28,054 41,288
Purchases of facilities from MAZEARBERE
related companies (note ij) ( B &Eii )
Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle & 335 75 B E &L 4%
Co., Ltd. AR AT 19,769 19,354
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—T-=Ft+-A=+—H

39.Related Party Transactions NBEEALRS (&
(continued)
(@) (continueq) (@ &)
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Sales to related companies (note i) FIEEE A FIHE (H5i)
MSB MANUFACTURING SDN BHD MSB MANUFACTURING

SDN BHD 21,138 20,152
Shanghai Donmin Vehicle Co., Ltd. /B ERMNESEER QA 5,354 2,291
Shenzhen Marshell Green Power FIEFEREREFR A A
Co., Ltd. 1,571 1,542
Shenzhen Marxon Power Supply YT R B R BT
Co., Ltd. BRATE 14,104 10,984
Guangdong Marshell Electric Vehicle & 38 35 75 /8 & Eh R K
Co., Ltd. BRAA 8,960 5,566
Shanghai Leoch Power Supply FHBELEREHEE
Co., Ltd. BRAF - 8
Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply 73| T 35 P AR B R BT
Co., Ltd. BRAFA] - 4
51,127 40,547

Lease of office premises from EmEREEARAR

two related companies and —RESHERAEYE
a director
Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply 2RI T 35 7 B B IR 1T
Co., Ltd. (note iii) AR AR (B ki) 690 690
Eastern International LLC (note iv) Eastern International LLC
(Bt Eiv) 2,228 2,263
Mr. Dong Li (note v) BN E (Histv) 263 271
3,181 3,224
198 il Leoch International Technology Limited | Annual Report 2013
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39.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

(@) (continueq)

(b)

Notes:

@M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The sales of products to and purchases of raw
materials and equipment from related companies
were made at prices mutually agreed between the
parties.

In the current year, the Group entered into a
purchase agreement with Guangdong Marshell
Electric Vehicle Co., Ltd, pursuant to which the
Group has agreed to purchase certain reserve
power battery facilities from Guangdong Marshell
at a total consideration of not more than RMB25
million (2012: RMB30 million).

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the
lease of two office premises of the Group to
Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply Co., Ltd. based
on monthly rentals of RMB55,394 and RMB2,136,
respectively, from September 2010.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the
lease of office premises of the Group to Eastern
International LLC based on a monthly rental of
US$30,000 from 1 August 2008.

The rental expenses were paid in relation to the
lease of office premises of the Group to Mr. Dong
Li at an annual rent of RMB72,000 for the period
from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2015 and at
an annual rent of SG$39,000 for the period from 10
March 2010 to 10 March 2014.

The related party transactions in respect of the
sales, purchases, equipment purchases and lease
transactions above also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

QOutstanding balances with related companies:

Details of the Group’s balances with its related
companies are disclosed in note 29.

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

39. E% AiX% (/115

(a)

(b)

(%

GEE

(i)

(i)

(iv)

)

FRE R B HEEm KB E RA MR
HBIRET K77 BRI E VB IRETT -

RAFEE  AEEHERIGSARESHE
RERARIILEE R Bk A%
ERERERGARBESE TESD
B MRETRBBEAREHE T
—E——F: ARKIOEETL) °

m:%—%inﬁt AR T I
BEEREIMARARAE R LB
Www‘*%%ﬁﬁiﬁmﬂiﬁﬁi
2 AR B A R#55,304T kAR
%2,13673%:%10

FLMEastern International LLCHAE A&
SENBRAEMEMINOESH
X HIZEEN\FNA—RAEAMEA
30,0003 7T

RABZEEREAEENHAEY
¥mZAnfes A= —ZTF—
B—BZE-_Z=—Af+=-_A=+—8H
IFEARER R A AR 72,0000 LA K
BT ZETF=ZA+HE_ZT—NF
= A+ B 1 83 &9 4 78 &39,000%7 1N
WL o

*ETJ%J:‘E%EE'J%—I—EA%E’JE% bt

FARIHE BE -
HIBEETT R 5 IR K B &

1= —;/ ~

REBENEERS
ERX SN FFE

ER S

RAEIMREESR:

REEBEARE RN EEEERRE
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Eg\ AjIéC% (/115

39.Related Party Transactions
(continued)

(c) ERRAE 1 AKYEGE

(c) Commitments with related

companies

In September 2010, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into an agreement ended 31 August
2012 with Shenzhen Marshell Power Supply
Co., Ltd., a company which is 100% held by Mr.
Dong Li, a director and controlling shareholder
of the Group, in relation to the lease of two office
premises. The Group extended this agreement
to 23 December 2015. The Group’s total lease
expenses to be paid to Shenzhen Marshell Power
Supply Co., Ltd. will be RMB690,360 in 2014 and
RMB675,514 in 2015.

In August 2008, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into an agreement ended 31 December 2012 with
Eastern International LLC, a company which is
100% held by Mr. Dong Li's spouse, in relation
to office premises. The Group extended this
agreement to 31 May 2026 during the current
year. The Group’s total lease expenses to be
paid to Eastern International LLC in 2014 and
thereafter until 2025 will be RMB2,271,888 per
year and RMB946,620 in 2026.

In January 2010 and March 2010, a subsidiary of
the Group entered into two agreements ended 31
December 2015 and 10 March 2014, respectively,
with Mr. Dong Li in relation to office premises. The
Group extended the agreement which will expire
on 10 March 2014 to 10 March 2015 and the
annual rent had been changed to SG$54,000.
The Group’s total lease expenses to be paid to
Mr. Dong Li will be RMB124,877 in 2014 and
RMB72,000 in 2015.
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39.Related Party Transactions NBAEALIRS (&
(continued)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d) *E=EEZEBAENHE:
the Group:
2013 2012
—g—-= —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Basic salaries and other benefits EXF e REMmET 5,238 4,576
Performance-related bonuses TE B S TEAL 709 1,186
Equity-settled share option expenses AR %5 45 & B8 AL #E 5 2 2,242 2,635
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE F 5T B 50
contributions 72 60
8,261 8,457
Further details of directors’ emoluments are EENEFIBER BTSRRI o

included in note 9 to the financial statements.
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40.Financial Instruments by 40. BRI PN ER T A
Category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of FHE T ARREHAROERERBENT

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Group REE
2013 —E-=F
Financial
assets at Available-
fair value for-sale
through profit Loans and financial
orloss receivables assets Total
AREEED
FFABEMN ERRE AHHE
TREE 7S] cREE At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets TRMEE AR¥TRT AR%¥®TR AR%¥®TRx AR%®Tx
Available-for-sale investments A { H £&8 & - - 10,500 10,500
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWFIE R
L - 1,092,527 - 1,092,527
Deposits and other B REM
receivables FE W FRIR - 27,715 - 27,715
Amounts due from related FE W BB 3E A RIRIA
companies - 6,121 - 6,121
Financial assets at fair value ~ AR BEZB) A
through profit or loss BENemEE 10,484 - - 10,484
Pledged deposits REESEEERA - 684,803 - 684,803
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBeZEY - 138,105 - 138,105
10,484 1,949,271 10,500 1,970,255
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40.Financial Instruments by

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

40. BB DI ERM T A

Category (continued) (#&
Group (continued) NEBR (&)
2013 —E—=5
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities at
through profit amortised
or loss cost Total
DAEBEEED
FFABEN  RESREAN
= 3=R - 8N HE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial liabilities tRAR ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥T R
Trade and bills payables B 5 RWFIE R ERRE - 1,067,658 1,067,658
Other payables H b &~ 5RIE - 97,783 97,783
Financial assets at fair value through X7 (BEE
profit or loss TRMEE 5,117 - 5,117
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITIEE - 1,222,517 1,222,517
Amounts due to related companies  JEfTEE A AIFIE - 31,595 31,595
5117 2,419,553 2,424,670
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40.Financial Instruments by

40. BB DI ERM T A

Category (continued) (#&
Group (continued) NEBR (&)
2012 -4
Financial
assets
at fair value
through profit Loans and
or loss receivables Total
RRBEE
FTABEZEK =694
TREE FE W3R IB Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets TREE ARBFT ARETT ARET T
Trade and bills receivables Z SN BN EE = 957,925 957,925
Deposits and other receivables e R HE o R IE - 36,909 36,909
Amounts due from related companies &4 B3 A B FUE - 7,362 7,362
Financial assets at fair value through A7 BEZ BT ABEH
profit or loss EREE 5,215 - 5,215
Equity investments at fair value AREEZHFTAEEN
through profit or loss RIERE 935 - 935
Pledged deposits [REESLEEEN - 930,923 930,923
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY - 82,893 82,893
6,150 2,016,012 2,022,162
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40.Financial Instruments by 40. BRI DTN ER T A

Category (continued) (#&
Group (continued) KEE (&)
2012 —ET—=F
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
REBRK AR
SRaE
RMB’000
Financial liabilities TRARE ARBTFT
Trade and bills payables B o RN RIENENEE 1,006,935
Other payables H &3R8 66,555
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITIEE 1,394,548
Amounts due to related companies FEH R N Al F B 13,431
2,481,469
Company b/ N/
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Loans and Loans and
receivables receivables
BRE Bk
FE W 7K 1B G
RMB’000 RMB’000
Financial assets ERMEE ARETTT ARBT T
Deposits and other receivables e Kk EAth e I FRIE 9,399 12,267
Pledged deposits EEBER 400,000 559,650
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBFEEEY 1,725 390
411,124 572,307
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40.Financial Instruments by 0.%ZERISMNEMTE
Category (continued) (#&

Company (continued)) P NYNCING - P,

2013 2012

—E—-=fF ==&

Financial Financial

liabilities at liabilities at

amortised amortised

cost cost

REBHRRAEN IRESRKER

EA =N TRAR

RMB’000 RMB’000

Financial liabilities THAE ARBTR ARBTT

Other payables o AN e 361 47

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FTERITEE 373,778 518,541

374,139 518,588

41

.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial instruments approximate
to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged
deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, amounts due
from/to related companies and amounts due from/
to subsidiaries, approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bi#&#RMisE

41.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the
finance manager is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.

The fair values of the non-current portion of pledged
deposits and interest-bearing bank borrowings
approximate to their amortised costs which have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank borrowings as at 31 December 2013 was
assessed to be insignificant.

4A1. €@ T

31 December 2013
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4A1. €@ T

41.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted
financial instruments are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit
quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and
forward rates and interest rate curves. The carrying
amounts of these instruments are the same as their fair
values.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial
instruments, including forward currency contracts, are
measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing models, using present value calculations.
The models incorporate various market observable
inputs including the credit quality of counterparties,
foreign exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying
amounts of forward currency contracts are the same as
their fair values.
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41.Fair Value and Fair Value

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

41.

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

Group

As at 31 December 2013

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

BERREBERAAE
&

ST
BZF (4

BAS EE ENEE
ARE

R=F-=%t=-RA=+—H

Fair value measurement using

MREEFHERAER

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

BEATEE EXTUHR

ERT IS RE WARE BASE
($E18) (%2/8) (53/E) #met
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBF T ARBTF T ARBET T

Financial assets at fair value A7 BEZ B A

through profit or loss BENEREE - 10,484 - 10,484
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41.Fair Value and Fair Value 41. /T
Hierarchy of Financial BEZH (4
Instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEER (&)
Assets measured at fair value (continueqd) A BB EREE (&)

Group (continued) rEE (&)

As at 31 December 2012

R—E——F+=-H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

BEQXREBERALE
=

AREEFEFMAEBR
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTBE EXTABE
ERTISRE BARE BARE
($1/8) (%$2[8) (%3[E) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR
Equity investments at fair value A7 BEZE T A
through profit or loss Té =N EREE 935 - - 935
Financial assets at fair value AREBEEZHTA
through profit or loss BEamemEE - 5,215 - 5,215
935 5,215 - 6,150
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41.Fair Value and Fair Value 41.

Hierarchy of Financial
Instruments (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value
Group

As at 31 December 2013

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H

SEMIANABERA A
E—rn ( 5
EAREBEEFENEE

AEE

R-E—=F+"H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AREBEEFEFABR
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EXTEE EBEAFUEE
ERMIERE BARE PN ¢
(B1E) (%B2F) ($B3E) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR%ETR AR%ETR AR%T R
Financial assets at fair value NABEZHFA
through profit or loss BENEREE - 5,117 - 5,117
The Group did not have any financial liabilities R_E——F+_A=+—H AEETE
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2012. FRAARBEZSFAEZNSRAE
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FN AnEBEFESERESE —BRANEZ

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities. (2012: Nil).

B cHEEEE heMEEREMAE
—E——4F:

PR EEASEHE=FR (
&) -
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31 December 2013
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42 .Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies

The Group‘s principal financial instruments, other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings, and cash
and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, market risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market

interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligation with floating rates.
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42 .Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in interest rate, with all over variables held
constant, of the Group’s loss before tax and the
Group’s equity.

31 December 2013
—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

42. smEREEBWREE

(4&

NEREE (&)
TRITEMBEEEZFTRERT  FIE
AT R B YAEER B EERAE
18 55 O SR R P R

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in Increase/
(decrease) in loss (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
BRBLAT
HEem/ EEEm/ R,
O 2) (R 4) OR D)~
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

2013 —BE—=F
US$ ET

us$ ETT

HK$ BT

HK$ BT

SG$ TN T
SG$ BN T
2012 —E-C—fF
US$ ET

us$ ETT

HK$ BT

HK$ BT

SG$ TN T
SG$ BN T
EUR BT

EUR BT

Excluding retained profits

50 1,519 -
(50) (1,519) -
50 991 -
(50) (991) -
50 116 -
(50) (116) -
50 1,548 -
(50) (1,548) -
50 1,896 -
(50) (1,896) -
50 6 -
(50) (6) =
50 105 -
(50) (105) -

TEERE G
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42 .Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Market risk

The Group’s production process requires a significant
amount of electrolytic lead, Acrylonitrile Butadiene
Styrene plastics (“ABS plastics”), sulphuric acid and
other materials, and the Group’s success depends
significantly on its ability to secure a sufficient and
constant supply of principal raw materials for its
production at acceptable price levels. Electrolytic lead
is the most significant raw material used in the Group’s
production. The Group does not have long-term,
fixed-cost supply contracts of raw materials with its
suppliers. Since many of the Group’s sales are priced
by reference to the market price of lead at the time of
a particular order, its exposure to the risk of changes in
the price of lead is reduced.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures.
These exposures arise from sales or purchases by
operating units in currencies other than the Group’s
functional currency, i.e., RMB. The Group operates
in Hong Kong, the United States, Singapore and
Mainland China. For companies in Mainland China, their
principal activities are transacted in RMB. For other
companies outside of Mainland China, their principal
activities are transacted in US$. Approximately 52%
(2012: 55%) of the Group‘s sales were denominated in
US$, whilst approximately 71% (2012: 91%) of costs
were denominated in RMB. The Group commenced
using forward currency contracts since the year 2012
to eliminate the foreign currency exposures arising
from sales denominated in US$ with a total amount
of US$65 million in 2013 (2012: US$5 million). The
forward currency contracts must be in the same
currency as the hedged item, i.e., US$.
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42 .Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy customers. It is the Group’s policy that
all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are
subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis,
and therefore, the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the other financial assets of the Group,
which comprise cash and bank balances and pledged
deposits, deposits and other receivables and amounts
due from related companies, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Significant concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in
economic, industry or geographic factors similarly
affect groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit
exposure is significant in relation to the Group’s total
credit exposure. The Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 25% (2012: 21%) and 48% (2012:
51%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers respectively. Sales to these customers
accounted for 26% of the Group’s total sales for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 34%).

The Group also had certain concentrations of credit
risk as 43% (2012: 43%) of the Group’s account
receivables were due from four large telecommunication
industry customers. Sales to these telecom customers
accounted for 20% of the Group’s total sales for the
year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: 17%).

31 December 2013
—T-=Ft-A=t+-H
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42 Financial Risk Management 2.crEBEEBENRBER
Obijectives and Policies (#&
(continued)
Liquidity risk REE SRR
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using AEEKABARERSE TS T L
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers BEeERmRRk Lt TAZRAS P"a?i THH
the maturity of both its financial instruments and eRMEE (WESEWFKIE) I HE KR
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected REEBHGHTRESRE

cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between AEENENEURITEER #RBFAEEE
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of CHEEEMEF MR T N AEE
bank borrowings. In addition, banking facilities have MEBRITHMENENSIABSZG-
been put in place for contingency purposes.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, AEEMSHE BN AR RIEE LR
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as WAROTAT
follows:
Less than 3to 12 1to5
On demand 3 months months years Total
RERE D3 A 3-12f8 A 1-56 @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2013 —E-=% ARBTR  ARMTR  AR®Tn  ARMTR  AR%Tn
Interest-bearing bank FTERTEE
borrowings - 359,815 838,632 51,518 1,249,965
Trade and bills payables ~ E SEMZIAK
ERZEE - 1,067,658 - - 1,067,658
Other payables and accruals £ ftt &7 208 &
B 31,785 66,048 - - 97,783
Amounts due to related  FEBE A RIRIFUE
companies 31,595 - - - 31,595
63,330 1,493,521 838,632 51,518 2,447,001

-
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42 .Financial Risk Management

Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

31 December 2013
—F-=Ft+-A=+—H

42. smEREEBWREE

(4&

REEEREE (&)

Less than 3t0 12 1t05
On demand 3 months months years Total
R E R DRSIEA 3-12f8 A 1-5% B
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2012 —T-Cf ARETT  ARBTR ARETT ARBTR  ARETR
Interest-bearing bank FERTEE
borrowings - 443,091 778,436 200,188 1,421,715
Trade and bills payables ~ E HEMFUER
ENRE - 1,006,935 - - 1,008,935
Other payables and accruals £ ftt e+ 508 &
B 16,618 49,937 - - 66,555
Amounts dug to related  FES i@ 1\ A1 MR
companies 13,431 - - - 13,431
30,049 1,499,963 778,436 200,188 2,508,636
Capital management BEXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2013 and 31 December
2012,

AEBERNEENTIZARRERARE
RS EEFRARERFRENEARL
RXFBEHER  UERSBRRNEEREAZER

=

= °

AEBRBLEERAESHEREEARNERH
REL AR - ANEE A BAS TREARKR
B RBRREEEARALBETHRER A #
BENABREARE HE T —=F1+_A
=+—Brk-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HIt
FEAN BEREEANER HENEFILE
gEo
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42 .Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies
(continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by total
assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

42.

SREREREWREE

(45

EXER (&)

AEENEERBHLREEEN  ZHES
ARRITEERAEEE BEPRNEE
BfELLRMT:

Group

EE
2013 2012
—E—=F —=E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE 1,222,517 1,394,548

Total assets BEE 5,006,006 5,097,701

Gearing ratio BEEAGLE 24.42% 27.36%
43.Comparative Amounts 43. LB F

Certain comparative amounts in the consolidated
financial statements have been reclassified to conform
with the current year’s presentation and accounting
treatment.

44.Approval of the Financial
Statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2014.
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Five Year Financial Summary

IFYBRRE

B EE TG EZY B RERNAEENBER
EFREENEENREE BENMIFEREST
ZHHIWTR o

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the published audited financial

statements is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

HEt-A=t-HLEE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
“Z-=F —2--F “Z——F “Z-% “ETNEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETTT
RESULTS #E
REVENUE W2k 3,646,874 3,247,986 3,164,056 2,116,871 1,391,533
Cost of sales HERA (3,040,858) (2,655,784) (2,510,311) (1,591,254) (1,102,083)
Gross profit eS| 606,016 592,202 653,745 525,617 289,450
Other income and gains Hip A R 102,139 43453 70,878 22375 20,561
Seling and distribution expenses ~ HEE R KA (191,408) (159,871) (114,048) (76,495) (57,292)
Administrative expenses TBREY (240,521) (229,761) (179,758) (119,261) (70,084)
Research and development costs ~ FTEF A (125,006) (93,817) (66,730) - -
Impairment losses recognised ARERET BRI
due to suspension of Zhaoging BRAR ([EEE
Leoch Battery Technology Co., T EEMERE
Ltd. (‘Zhaoging Leoch’) VERER=FS (168,049) - - - -
Other expenses HibAx (5,646) (12,545) (6,815) (30,311) (13,220)
Finance costs BT (98,813) (62,850) (29,128) (22,205) (9,614)
Share of profits (losses) of [E{RELE D B A
associates (B8) 394 (296) 122 = =
(LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bia0 (B8) &7 (120,894) 76,515 328,266 299,720 159,801
Income tax expense FEHREAY (8,395) (4,853) (44,646) (42,210 (14,523
(LOSS) PROFIT FORTHE YEAR A2 (E18) %7l (129,289) 71,662 283,620 257,510 145,278
(Loss) Profit for the year AT (BE)
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company ARABEEA (129,289) 71,662 283,620 257,510 145,273
Non-controlling interests R E - - - - 5
(129,289) 71,662 283,620 257,510 145,278
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. apags 3 ==
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
As at 31 December
R+=A=t-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=% “2-—F “2——F “Z2-% —ETNE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

TOTAL ASSETS BEHE 5,006,006 5,097,701 4,251,551 3,084,075 1,091,192
TOTAL LIABILITIES BELE (2,795,705) (2,753,420) (1,921,337) (1,004,301) (594,028)
2,210,301 2,344,281 2,330,214 2,079,774 497,164
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